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COMPANY STRUCTURE
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
Y R

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of China Oil Resources Holdings Limited (“China
0il”), I hereby present to the shareholders the audited results of
the Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2008 (“the Year”). During the Year, the Group
recorded a turnover of approximately HK$351,530,000,
representing an increase of 13.50% as compared with last year,
while profit after tax jumped from approximately HK$2,240,000
to approximately HK$601,305,000 over last year.

During the Year, the surging oil price, the Renminbi appreciation
and the rising labor costs all contributed to the great pressure on
the cost of downstream oil products. Despite the difficulties, the
Group’s existing business of the manufacture and sale of paints
managed to keep up its growth momentum. By reconsolidating
its production plants and facilities and strengthening its costs
control, together with the acquisition of America Archi Colors
Group Limited, the Group has expanded its client base and

achieved a continuous increase in business and profits.

In view of the strong global demand for energy and the limited
supply, the management decided to explore the middle and
upstream oil business. During the Year, the Group actively
pursued new business of oil exploitation in China in the form of
joint venture by acquiring 51% equity interest in Northeast Oil
(China) Development Company Limited (“Northeast Oil”) and
setting up a joint venture with the municipal government of
Qigihar, Heilongjiang for the development of the oilfield projects
in Fu 710 and Meilisi 723 districts. Although the new oil business
just commenced operation during the Year, the potential value
of the projects acquired has substantially increased, proving the
considerable insight of the Group’s management in investment
and development. To better reflect the new business direction,
on 31 August 2007, the Group changed its name to China Oil
Resources Holdings Limited, signifying a new era for the Group’s

development.

China Oil Resources Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2007-08
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
Y R

In the past year, the upward trend of the international crude oil
price persisted while the fuel oil price has increased from
US$58.08 to US$96.65. However, the demand for oil showed no
sign of decrease. This urges the governments of different countries
to explore new energies since oil is a necessity for the society.
The situation may be worsening due to the rapid economic
development in China. According to an authoritative report, China
will become the largest oil consumption country in the world. In
light of this, the Group may enjoy a promising future by taking
this opportunity to develop its oil production business in China.

The coming year will be a turning point for the Group’s business
as the Group has taken a new approach of business diversification
rather than focusing on a single business, and the oil exploitation
business has become a significant profit stream of the Group. In
order to cater the needs for such change in business strategy, the
management has recruited elites of the oil and commercial sectors.
On 1 April 2008, Mr. Leung, Kam Lung Danny joined the Group
as chief executive officer. On 1 July 2008, the Group was
delighted to appoint Professor Albert Ser Yuen Kwong, an
eminent figure of the the international oil sector, as vice chairman
and chief operating officer of the Group. Their expertise and
experience will help to strengthen the Group’s governance as
well as establish a global presence of the Group to become an

international oil enterprise.

Manufacture and sale of paints remained one of the Group’s
steady income sources. According to the forecast of the PRC
Association of Construction and Decoration ( H [ & 5 4& fifi ff)
) , the annual output value of the construction and decoration
sector in the PRC to 2010 will amount to $2,100 billion. The
rapid market growth has encouraged the development of the
manufacture and sale business of construction and decoration
materials. In the coming year, the Group will seek opportunities
to merge with and acquire other companies or projects in the
sector, with an aim to expand its product sales network and to

achieve a sustainable growth in turnover and profit.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
Y R

Besides, it is the Group’s intention to develop the oilfield
technology services, which comprise the provision of technical
support and consultancy services in respect of drilling and
exploitation of oilfield for domestic or foreign companies. “Nano
viscosity depressor”, our latest self-developed product, is the
first project of the oilfield technology services. Such product
has been used in the Group’s oil exploitation projects. The Group
has applied for the patent for the product in China and targets to

launch the product in the future.

The dampening of the international economic environment has
led to the drop in global asset value, the surge in oil price and
high inflation rate. In spite of the difficult operating environment,
the management believes that the Group’s operations will not be
adversely affected, whilst the Board views it as a favourable
condition for the Group’s business development and thus it is

confident about the Group’s prospect.

Last but not least, I would like to take this opportunity to express
my sincere gratitude to the Board and all our dedicated staff for
their invaluable services. I would also like to thank our
shareholders and business partners who have been supportive
over the years. The Board will be committed to maximise the

profit and the return for our shareholders.

By the order of the Board
Poon Sum

Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 July 2008

China Oil Resources Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2007-08
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B BL K wtam K o B

For the year under review, the international crude oil prices
continued to stay in the historical high level. The continuous
increase in the price of crude oil in international markets has
been witnessed, especially in the first quarter of 2008. In general,
market believes that the surge of crude oil prices was due to the
strong growth in demand, geopolitical instabilities and speculative
activities in major oil consumption countries and the continuous
weakening of the United States dollars. As there is no
substantially change in global economic in the period under
review, the Group believes that the average price for domestic

crude oil may stay in a high level.

The mainland China economy maintained a high growth in 2007.
According to the government information, the increment of Gross
Domestic Production is 11.4% in last year. It immediately
increases the domestic demand of chemical products in the
market. On the other hand, the overall prices of the chemical
products in the domestic market continuously fluctuated at a
historical high level. The customers were still cautious about
accepting and placing orders at the high material costs. This
situation developed a fiercely competitive market that our

operation could hardly transfer additional costs to the customers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B BL K wtam K o B

The Group is principally engaged in (i) manufacture and sale of
paints and blended solvents; (ii) manufacture and sale of plastic
colorants; (iii) provision of painting services; (iv) trading of
chemical materials; (v) property investment; and (vi) oil
exploitation. For the fiscal year of 2007/2008, the Group achieved
a turnover of approximately HK$351,530,000 (2007:
HK$309,735,000). This represents an increase in turnover of
13.50% and a decrease in gross profit margin from 20.71% to
13.26%. The high production cost is due to the rapid rise of oil
price and the increase in labour cost in China. On the other
hand, the newly developed oil business was just starting to
contribute income, the preliminary production cost required to

book into the account.

In last year, the Group began to diversify the core business to oil
exploitation. Upon completion of the acquisition of oil business,
the Group recorded a gain from the excess of fair value of net
assets acquired over cost of approximately HK$849,627,000.
There is an increase in net profit after tax from approximately
HK$2,240,000 to HK$601,305,000 over last year.

For the business, the Group completed the acquisition of Archi
Group in April 2007. Archi Group is engaging in the contract
service and sale and distribution of construction paint products
and also acts as an authorised dealer for a number of paint
manufacturers in China. In the year under review, Archi Group

contributed a positive return to the Group.

With the historical high crude oil price, the production was still
under a high pressure in cost increment. The prices of variety
raw materials for production had been rising continuously. The
Group then made continuous efforts to increase efficiency of
production plants. By increasing the production volume,
strengthening the connection among production, sales and the
management of marketing, the goal of selling all products
produced was reached and an increase has been witnessed in

both production and efficiency.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B BL K wtam K o B

On the other hand, the Group was gaining a positive prospectus
on high oil price. In past year, the Group successful entered into
the oil exploitation business. The business is now starting to
contribute revenue to the Group. Although the progress was
delayed by the snow storm in China at the beginning of this
year, it started to contribute turnover since March 2008. Up to
the date of this report, the joint venture company of oil business
has already drilled 21 wells and 8 of them are now under

production.

The Group takes a view that the high oil price will keep at high
side for a period of time. The demand and supply of global
resources are still mismatching and directly support a relatively
high oil price in current position. As oil exploitation is one of
the key businesses for the Group and the Group has large quantity
of oil reserve, the Group tends to use financial instruments to

enter into for hedging purpose.

The division recorded a turnover of approximately
HK$312,763,000 (2007: HK$296,889,000), or an increase of 5%
over the previous year. The division contributed an operating
loss of HK$30,323,000 for the year under review, as compare
with a profit of HK$22,475,000 in the previous year. The major
reasons are the exchange rate, labour and material cost inflated
rapidly over the year. It sharply reduced the gross profit all over
the year.

The division entered into currency swap and the employee share
based benefit charged by inter group. The purpose of the Group
entering into financial derivatives contracts was only for daily
hedging purpose.

AN A B A o AR 4R B ISR R O
[ 25 o A S ] 2 4 Bl S 7 A 1ok B R S
B o % SE B B L B U o A 42 11 A A i i -
fih A7 A6 52 [AT o I A 4 A0 4 2R R 56 2 B
IE > SR %3685 A —FF/\E= HltE #
e SR B A B R &
B O FIZ2U8 I o s B E %
o

AL R T A i S I R A R A — By
] o 4 B S PR OR AT SR i B 8 i > 75 B By
1 DU B ol 15 4 2 A B R KT o R
MBS AR B E T « —> HAE
VAT KR T i > SO SR B )
S T LR b 9

W B A5 B AW %312,763,00000
(—EZLF {1 %296,889,00070) » B X%
AEBEINS% o i Il R AF B » 5% E 5 AR S8
&5 48 7 % 30,323,000C » 117 25 4F £ s A ik
#522,475,0000C o H F= [H 2 ME R~ 25 T &%
JER A A A TR 2 > BT T K s ek A1 4 47
EFlo

% 36 B O T 3L AN 15 0] R A 4 T 52 8
9 A B8 B3 4 M) < A 2 8] < R AT 2 1 A0
M AR B K S AR T SL

oyl B R R IRAF] - 2007-08 4F L

11



12

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B BL K wtam K o B

During the year under review, the division contributed a steady
performance. The increment of turnover was mainly contributed
from the expansion of business scope and newly acquisitions of
sales network in southern China. Due to the re-structuring process
of nano-oil solvent business as announced in 27 March 2008,
the contribution of the business was not as good as the previous
year. The management still believes that the business has potential

to perform well in next years.

In addition with the tight environmental law in southern China,
some competitors were quitting the market. The division believed
that it was a good chance to enlarge the market share. Then the
division paid to acquire sales networks for expansion. In general,

the division remains a steady performance in this area.

However, customers became more cautious and delayed in placing
orders. Our customers like toys and electronic factories on the
whole were in a hard time. With demand tending to weaken
continuously, the market is generally suffering from high

production cost and high inflation rate.

The Group anticipated that the Paints and Blended Solvents
division will continue to be a key contributor of the Group’s
revenue. The management decided to integrate the production
plants in Dongguan and Zhongshan to look for a synergy effect
in the management and the cost of production. In next few years,
the management expects a further improvement in both businesses
and production costs of this section. The Group will further

deploy its marketing strategies to gain the market share.

China Oil Resources Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2007-08
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B BL K wtam K o B

The division contributed a turnover of approximately
HK$9,663,000 (2007: HK$12,846,000), down 25% from the
previous year. Plastic colorants are supplementary raw material
widely used by the toy, electronics, printing and furniture
industries. The division contributed an operating loss of
approximately HK$226,000 for the year under review, as
compared with an profit of approximately HK$821,000 in the
previous year. The decline is mainly due to the increase in

production costs over the year.

To improve the negative impact of increase in raw material costs
and labour cost in China, the division is now considering merging
with the Paint and Blended Solvent division for cost deduction
and also for better management control. It is expected that the

business will continue to grow in the foreseeable future.

For spending of almost two years, the Group developed this new
division of business in oil exploitation. In last year, the Group
had completed the acquisition of Northeast Oil (China)
Development Company Limited and began to set up the
production facilities in certain parts of Fu 710 and Meilisi 723
districts in Fulaerjiqu Oilfield. Up to 6 March 2008, the Group
had injected over 51% of registered capital in the co-operative
joint venture company and formally took the controlling power
of the company and the exploitation right. Up to the date of this
report, the division has already drilled for 21 wells and 8 of
them are producing oil. The remaining wells are expected to

contribute output very soon.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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During the year under review, the division started to produce
crude oil and contributed approximately HK$1,002,000 (2007:
Nil) turnover and approximately HK$743,071,000 (2007: Nil)
operating profit to the Group. As this is the newly startup
business, the contribution of turnover was still small at the
reporting date but the high operating profit is due to the
recognition of a gain from the excess of fair value of net assets
acquired over cost of approximately HK$849,627,000 upon

completion of the acquisition of oil business.

On 1 April 2007, the Group acquired 51% of the issued share
capital of America Archi Colors Group Limited (“America
Archi”). During the year under review, America Archi actively
developed the construction paint and household market. The
division contributed a turnover of approximately HK$20,049,000
(2007: Nil) and an operating profit of approximately
HK$3,070,000 (2007: Nil).

The management of the Group would further diversify the
business, especially in Hong Kong. In last year, the Group formed
a company to invest in Hong Kong property market and other
investments for trade. During the year under review, the division
contributed a turnover of approximately HK$8,053,000 (2007:
Nil) and an operating loss of approximately HK$1,258,000 (2007:
Nil).

As the division is not the core business of the Group, the
management does not have intention to focus on this business
but believes that this business will contribute a steady income in

the foreseeable future.
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To enhance overall performance and shareholders’ value, the
Group continues to identify and evaluate new investment
opportunities and to review and/or restructure existing ones.
During the year under review and up to the date of this report,
the Group has taken further and positive steps in this connection

and the following major efforts are noteworthy:

On 15 July 2008, the Group has successfully completed the
acquisition of Fu 718 district, another oilfield block which
is located in the Fulaerjiqu oilfield, occupies an area of
some 2.94 sq. km. and is situated in proximity to the both
Fu 710 and Meilisi 723 districts. In accordance with an
evaluation report prepared by Daqing Petroleum Institute
(KRB A IMEBL) | it is estimated that the crude oil reserve
of the Fu 718 district amounts to some 0.51 million tons.
In view of the proximity of the Fu 718 district to both Fu
710 and Meilisi 723 districts, the Group considers that it
would make economic sense for the Company to also acquire
the Fu 718 district as part of the Group’s business
development programme. Additionally, the Group can in
future extend its operational experience acquired from both
Fu 710 and Meilisi 723 districts to Fu 718 district.

After completion of the acquisition of Fu 718 district, the
Group now has controlling interest over a total of 3
development districts within its oilfield portfolio with a
combined area of some 36.94 sq. km.. Based upon estimates
made by technical experts, oil reserve contained in the above
3 development districts amounts to some 4.1 million tons
in the aggregate. The Company considers that as a young
oil enterprise in its initial stage of development, it has
successfully built up a reserve in crude oil ready for

extraction in the many years ahead.
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In striving for the market positioning as an integrated energy
and chemical group and facilitating the Group’s further
development in the oilfield exploitation related business,
the Group has partnering with both Ace Level International
Limited (Ace Level) and Mr. Li Xiangdong to form a new
joint venture company, Shenyang Fushun Oilfield Services
Limited (3% B3 & JE ol H R % A BR /A @) , “Shenyang
Fushun”. Shenyang Fushun has been developing a variety
of chemicals with custom-made application techniques for
depressing or diluting the viscosity of thickened oil reserve,
thereby increasing the overall output of oilfield. In view of
promising market demand, the Directors believe that the
scale of super viscous crude oil exploitation will continue
to expand. Recently, innovative chemicals specifically
known as “High Efficiency Viscosity Depressor for Oil
Exploitation” have been developed successfully by the
Group which is now applying for patents in these products.
Having considered the favourable market conditions of
energy resources related business worldwide, it is believed
that the market potential for oilfield-exploitation related
products is tremendous. The Group is desirous of developing
a base of its own for the development and manufacture of

oilfield-exploitation related products.
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For the year ended 31 March 2008, the Group recorded a turnover
of approximately HK$351,530,000. The Group achieved a profit
for the year of approximately HK$601,305,000.

The distribution costs of the Group for the financial year
amounted to approximately HK$18,035,000, representing
decrease of approximately 0.11%. The decrement of distribution
costs was mainly due to the merging of sales force in selling
Nano-oil solvent, Zhongshan Wing Shing Chemical Co. Ltd. and
Dongguan City Changan Xinyimei Paint Co. Ltd.

The administrative expenses of the Group for the financial year
under review amounted to approximately HK$66,332,000,
representing an increase of approximately 107% year-to-year.
The increment is mainly due to the professional fee in corporate
financing activities, salary increment, newly acquired America
Archi Group and newly established oil businesses charged initial

expenditures to the Group.

During the financial year under review, the Company issued
HK$200,000,000 convertible bonds and raised net proceeds of
approximately HK$191,500,000. The use of proceed is for the
development of oil business and general working capital. As at
the date of this report, with amount of HK$160,000,000 bonds
had been converted to shares. In addition, 77,440,000 share
options were exercised by staff over the year. The net proceeds

amount is approximately HK$32,193,000.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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In general, the Group finances its operations with internally
generated cash flow and banking facilities from banks. As at 31
March 2008, a good position of cash being maintained.
The Group had cash and cash equivalents of approximately
HK$87,334,000 (2007: HK$40,575,000) and total outstanding
borrowings and convertible bonds of approximately HK$73,788,000
(2007: HK$72,164,000). Current assets of the Group amounted
to approximately HK$356,838,000 (2007: HK$195,110,000)
whilst current liabilities were approximately HK$229,021,000
(2007: HK$113,516,000). The net current assets amounted to
HK$127,817,000 (2007: HK$81,594,000).

The gearing ratio, calculated by dividing the total borrowing by
the total assets, was equal to 3.15% as at 31 March 2008 (2007:
19.77%).

At 5 May 2008, the Group successful completed an Open Offer
by two existing shares to offer for one offer share. The total new
issued shares on completion were 647,577,739 shares and the
net proceed was approximately HK$180,000,000. The use of
proceed for the Open Offer is to complete the Fu 718 acquisition.
As at the immediate date after the Open Offer, the available
fund of the Group was approximately HK$280,000,000. The
management is of the view that the Group’s incoming cash flow
from the convertible bonds and business operations together with
the available banking facilities will provide sufficient funds for
the Group to meet the requirements of present operation and

further business development in the foreseeable future.

As at 31 March 2008, certain of the Group’s assets with a net
book value of approximately HK$45,385,000 (2007:
HK$41,893,000) were pledged to secure banking facilities granted
to the Group.
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The Group’s business transactions are mainly denominated in
Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. Most interest bearing bank
borrowings of the Group are on floating rate basis. Foreign
currency exposure is monitored closely by the management and
hedged by forward foreign currency contracts. The Group also
uses derivative financial instruments to manage interest rate and

oil price rate exposures for hedging purpose only.

As at 31 March 2008, the Group had an aggregate of 500 (2007:
565) employees of which about 489 (2007: 553) located in
mainland China while the rest were based in Hong Kong and
Macau. The employee’s remuneration package includes salary,
bonus and share options. Pursuant to the Group’s remuneration
policy, employees are rewarded on the basis of merit and market
conditions and in accordance with the statutory requirements of

the respective jurisdiction where the employees located.

In accordance with the disclosure requirements of rule 13.21 of
the Listing Rules, the Company makes the following disclosures
in relation to the details of the Facility Letter (as defined below),
which includes conditions relating to specific performance of

the controlling shareholder of the Company:—

On 7 May 2004, the Group has accepted a facility letter dated 6
May 2004 (the “Facility Letter”) issued by a bank in Hong Kong
(the “Bank’) in relation to various working capital facilities up
to the aggregate amount of HK$68,000,000 including a term
loan facility up to HK$40,000,000 (collectively, the “Facilities”).
The Facilities are subject to periodic review by the Bank at its

sole discretion.

AL 2ETS S O B LB R AR
Iy BT o AN SR BT WY B ERAT A B 3%
BB AT B o SR IRLRR 52 B4 B 4 )
B 0 U Y A1 W A0 3 o AR SR T
i 368 i 5 2 O A A 4l 53 R
2 R A L g o

Mo EEE=ZA=+—H A EEL I
S04 K8 (—FE-LF 5654) » H
HA4894 18 B (—FE L4 :55344) BE
ko B R o > LR R AE s SR o R B
) 3657 T 77 408 6 45 387 4~ 18 AT % A o AR
P57 A [ 1) T < 1B > R B ) R T
28 B i IR L I AR 95 45 R B 52 BT AE Y
A IA A I Y TR OB T

AR F T RIS 13,21 46k ) 4% B - A
2% F LR R 28 LT 30) 1Y RE A
(915 B A % ] 8 B J o 1) o o R BL AT
B B e ) AR T B4 R

R OEENERHLH AEBCERE
W— BT ([3Z8R17]) R B WFEA
AXNHEHMZEEEESME (BERE
7 5 T 68,000,0007C > 1 45 i £ 2 i T
40,000,0007C A & HH B AL E (48R J%
[FZSRE]) ) FHRER S (TRE
BRI AR D) o % 5E Rl B JH 2 2 R4 SR AT R
11009 0 WA 5

oyl B R R IRAF] - 2007-08 4F L

19



20

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B BL K wtam K o B

Under the provisions of the Facility Letter, there are conditions,
among other things, that (1) Mr. Poon Sum, Mr. Poon Sau Tin
and their family members shall collectively maintain at least
50% of the issued share capital of the Company and (2) Mr.
Poon Sum shall remain as Chairman or Chief Executive Officer
of the Group and shall be actively involved in the management
and business of the Group. Should there be any breach of such
conditions, the Bank shall have the right to demand for repayment

of all outstanding amounts due by the Group under the Facilities.

On 30 November 2004, the Group has accepted the renewal of
the Facilities by the Bank together with the same conditions
imposing specific performance obligations on the controlling
shareholder as described above. The aggregate facilities amount
has been revised to HK$66,708,333.35 following the reducing
balance of the term loan facility made by the Group’s installment

repayment as scheduled.

On 19 October 2005, the Group has accepted the further renewal
of the Facilities by the Bank up to the aggregate amount of
HK$48,388,894.30 together with the same conditions imposing
specific performance obligations on the controlling shareholder
as described above, save as the amendment to the condition,
“that Mr. Poon Sum, Mr. Poon Sau Tin and their family members
shall collectively maintain at least 40% of the issued share capital
of the Company is allowed subject to the maintenance of the
consolidated tangible net worth by the Group at no less than
HK$100,000,000 throughout the life of all the Facilities” as duly
renewed by the Bank. Consolidated net worth is defined as
shareholders’ equity less any intangible assets, deferred
expenditure, loan due from directors and loan due from third

party companies.
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On 27 November 2006, the Group has accepted the renewal of
the Facilities by the Bank up to the aggregate amount of
HK$47,900,018.90 together with the same conditions imposing
specific performance obligations on the controlling shareholder
as described above, save as the amendment to the condition,
“that a simultaneous amendment of the shareholding undertaking

and the net worth covenant to the following level is allowed:

Shareholding by the Poon’s Family
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Consolidated Tangible Net Worth
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On 7 April 2008, the Group has accepted the renewal of the
Facilities by the Bank up to a revised aggregate amount of
HK$53,800,000. The term included a 10 years term loan with an
amount of HK$10,800,000 that to be used for re-financing four
properties owned by a subsidiary of the Group. Other than the
conditions imposing specific performance obligations on the
controlling shareholder is amended as “Poon’s family should
maintain at least 23% of the issued share capital of China Oil
Resources Holdings Limited”, there is the same conditions as

described above.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

1 2 & i W

This corporate governance report (“CG Report”) presents the
corporate governance matters during the year covering the
financial year ended 31 March 2008 (“CG Period”) required to
be disclosed under the Rules Governing the Listing of the
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“HKEx”) (the “Listing Rules”).

The Group has adopted the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (“Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules which came into effect on 1 January 2005. During the CG
Period, the Code had been duly complied with except for the

deviations as follows:

Code Provision A2.1 requires the role of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer (“CEQ”) should not be performed by the same
individual. The Company did not have a separate Chairman and
CEO and Mr. Poon Sum held both positions during the year.
The Board believed that vesting the roles of Chairman and CEO
in the same person provided the Group with strong and consistent
leadership in the development and execution of long-term
business strategies. However, pursuant to the expansion of the
business operation of the Company and in order to comply with
Code Provision A2.1, Mr. Leung Kam Lung, Danny has been
appointed as the CEO of the Company and Mr. Poon Sum remains
as the Chairman of the Company with effect from 1 April 2008.

The Non-Executive Director (“NED”) and the Independent Non-
Executive Directors (“INEDs”) of the Company are not appointed
for specific terms but are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company in

accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

1 2 & i W

As at 31 March 2008, the Board comprised a total of eight
Directors, with three Executive Directors (“EDs”), two NEDs
and three INEDs. Two of the INEDs have appropriate professional
qualifications, accounting, or related professional management
expertise, which is required by the Listing Rules. During the CG
Period, four regular Board meetings were held.

The composition of the Board, and the respective attendances of

the Directors are presented as follows:
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Director Board Capacity Attendance
wY LR g &
Mr. Poon Sum ED & Chairman 4/4
i AR ok SRR ok N 4/4
Mr. Wong Kwok Leung ED 4/4
EC s HATES 4/4
Mr. Poon Wai Kong ED & Financial Controller 4/4
i 12 ) 5 2 Y47 3 0 5 B 05 A B 4/4
Mr. Chen Lizhong NED 4/4
Bl AL B SE A AT EF 4/4
Ms. Chew Lye Yin NED 2/4
R B L+ AT EF 2/4
Mr. Chan Kam Ching, Paul INED 4/4
Joi B P SE AR B EHATESR 4/4
Mr. Chan Shu Kin INED 4/4
Joi A B2 S A B EHATESR 4/4
Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung INED 4/4
5% #4106 S 2k B EHATESR 4/4

All the four regular Board meetings were held to discuss and/or
approve the financial performance/results of the Group, report,
discuss and/or resolve for the ordinary business and operation
matters, and the corporate development and decisions. The Board
formulates overall strategy of the Group, monitors its financial
performance and maintains effective supervision over the
management. Daily operations and administration are delegated
to the management. During the CG Period, none of the Directors
above has or maintains any financial, business, family or other

material/relevant relationship with any of the other Directors.
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The Remuneration Committee was formed on 21 March 2005
and adopted specific written terms of reference in accordance
with the provisions set out in the Code. The role and function of

the Remuneration Committee includes:

. recommendation to the Board on the remuneration policy
for the Directors;

. review of, approval of and recommendation for (if any) the
remuneration package of each Director including benefits
in kind, pension right, bonus payment and compensation
payable;

. review and approval of the compensation payment to any
Director upon his/her cessation of directorship in or
employment with the Company; and

. engagement of external professional advisors to assist and/
or advise the Remuneration Committee on its duties when

necessary and reasonable.
For the financial year under review, the Remuneration Committee

had held two physical meetings for the purpose of considering
the remuneration of the Directors.
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The composition of the Remuneration Committee, and the

respective attendances of the committee members are presented

VM ZEgrAR A ZEGMEXAH
JE G DL

as follows:

Member Committee capacity Attendance
B H ZHESH i e &
Mr. Poon Sum Chairman of the committee 2/2
itk AR e ZEGER 212
Mr. Chan Kam Ching, Paul INED 2/2
fok 8 7 S 2R W Sr IR AT 22
Mr. Chan Shu Kin INED 2/2
ok Al B S 2 W Sr IR AT 22
Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung INED 2/2
ik #4856 E 57 JF AT o 2/2

The chairman of the Remuneration Committee since its
establishment has been Mr. Poon Sum.

The summary of the work performed by the Remuneration

Committee for the financial year under review included:

. endorsement to the remuneration policy for the Directors;
and

. review and approval of the remuneration package of each
Director including benefits in kind, pension right, bonus

payment and compensation payable.

The remuneration paid to and/or entitled by each of the Directors
for the financial year under review is set out in Note 16 to the

financial statements.

The share options granted to/or entitled by the Directors during
the financial year under review are inscribed in the section headed
“Directors’ Interests in Equity or Debt Securities” of the

Directors’ Report.
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The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors. Having made
specific equity of all Directors, they confirmed that all of them
have complied with the required standard set out in the Model

Code during the year.

The Company does not have a Nomination Committee. The
Chairman of the Board is responsible to identify and recommend
for the Board’s approval of any eligible candidate to join the
Board for filling the casual vacancy and/or appointing additional
directors. The Board composes members with mixed skills and
experience with appropriate weights necessary to accomplish the
Group’s business development, strategies, operation, challenges
and opportunities. Each member of the Board shall possess, be
recognised for and be able to exhibit high and professional

standard of a set of core criteria of competence.

The Audit Committee has adopted specific written term of
reference in accordance with the provision set out in the Code.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include:

. monitoring the integrity of the financial statements of the
Group;

. providing independent review and supervision of the
effectiveness of the internal control of the Group;

. reviewing of the adequacy of the external audits;

. reviewing on the compliance issues with the Listing Rules
and other compliance requirements;

. providing independent views on connected transactions and
transactions involving materially conflicted interest; and

. considering and reviewing the appointment of the Auditors

and the audit remuneration.
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For the financial year under review, the Audit Committee had
held four physical meetings for discussing and/or approving the
periodic financial results of the Group, reviewing the effectiveness
of the financial reporting process and internal control system of

the Group.

The composition of the Audit Committee, and the respective

attendances of the committee members are presented as follows:

P [o o B A A A% 2 B R R
T VU wk > LU R B B HE AR SR A
I 0 TR 0y o 5 S 400> gt vt A 2 [0 S0 5
R P B A B 42 il 2R 550 B 2 o

FERZREENAR A ZRGNES AN
i DL

Member Committee capacity Attendance
B ZHESH R %
Mr. Chan Shu Kin Chairman of the committee 4/4
A B2 Sl 2 ZETER 4/4
Mr. Chan Kam Ching, Paul INED 4/4
IR 88 2 5 AR 57 JE AT 4/4
Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung INED 4/4
i $ 6 e A 57 JE AT 4/4

The chairman of the Audit Committee since its establishment
has been Mr. Chan Shu Kin.

The analysis of the Joint Auditors’ remuneration for the financial

year under review is presented as follows:

A#EEEBEMOL LA ERER T LR
— L PR ER S Ak

P T B B B g G A B ) P < 2 A
LI

Fee amount (HK$°000)

B GEW T )
Audit Service % BUIR B
— Audit of the annual financial statements — AL AE A R 1,390
Non-audit services IE A% B S
— Taxation services — B Mk 15 110
— Services relating to issue of convertible bonds — A BB AT AT R B 2 ) AR 570
— Financial review services — W5 2% B Ik 5 165
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The Directors recognise their responsibility for maintaining an
adequate system of internal control for the Company. The
Directors have regularly reviewed the internal control policy so
as to safeguard the Company’s assets. In addition, the Directors
have appointed an independent accountancy firm to review the
internal control systems of the Company on an on-going basis.
The review covered Purchases Cycle, Capital Expenditures Cycle
and Operating Expenses Cycle of the production plants. The
report concluded that the management has planned to put in
place a more effective internal control system to safeguard the
interests of the Company. The Directors have discussed and

considered the review report.

The Directors acknowledged their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Group. In preparing the financial

statements for the financial year under review, the Directors have:

. Based on a going concern basis;

. Selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently; and

. Made judgements and estimates that were prudent, fair and

reasonable.
The statement of the Joint Auditors regarding their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in detail in

the Joint Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 52 to 54.

On behalf of the Board

Poon Sum

Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 July 2008
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The directors submit their annual report together with the audited

financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2008.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed by the shareholders of
the Company on 31 August 2007, the Company’s name was
changed from Wing Shing International Holdings Limited to
China Oil Resources Holdings Limited.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 24 to the

financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business
and geographical segments is set out in Note 6 to the financial

statements.

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the

consolidated income statement on page 55.

No interim dividend was paid or declared in respect of the year
ended 31 March 2008 (2007: Nil).

The Board proposed to distribute to the Company’s shareholders
a final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2008 in the form of
warrants to be issued on the basis of one warrant for every
twelve existing Company shares held by the Company’s
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company as at the close of business on 26 September 2008.
Each warrant will entitle the Company’s shareholders to subscribe
for one new Company share at an initial subscription price of
HK$0.5 per Company share in cash, subject to anti-dilutive
adjustments at any time during a period of twenty four months

commencing from the date of issue of the warrant.
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Reference is also made to the results announcement of the
Company dated 26 July 2008. The Directors noted that there
were typographical mistakes in the results announcement. In
particular, it was mistakenly stated that the final dividend in the
form of warrants will be issued on the basis of one warrant for
every ten existing Company shares. The Directors wish to clarify
that the final dividend in the form of warrants will be issued on
the basis of one warrant for every twelve existing Company
shares. The Directors would like to apologise for any
inconvenience that may have caused by such typographical

mistakes.

The registers of members and warrantholders of the Company
will be closed from Monday, 22 September 2008 to Friday, 26
September 2008, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares will be effected, no transfer or exercise of
warrants will be effected and no conversion of bonds will be
effected. In order to determine the identity of members who are
entitled to receive the proposed warrants and to attend and vote
at the annual general meeting, all transfers accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share register in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-16, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 19 September 2008. All completed
subscription forms in relation to the exercise of the non-listed
warrants accompanied by the appropriate subscription monies
and the relevant warrant certificates must be lodged with the
Company in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
non-listed warrants not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 19
September 2008, Hong Kong time and all conversion of bonds
must be lodged with the conversion agent in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the bonds not later than 4:30 p.m. on

Friday, 19 September 2008, Hong Kong time.

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company
during the year are set out in the statements of changes in equity
on pages 59 to 61.
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Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of

the Group are set out in Note 17 to the financial statements.

Details of the convertible bonds are set out in Note 33 to the

financial statements.

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are

set out in Note 35 to the financial statements.

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 March 2008
amounted to approximately HK$358,692,000, comprising share
premium, share option reserve, warrant reserve and retained
earnings. Under section 34 of the Companies Law (Revised) of
the Cayman Islands, the share premium is available for
distribution to shareholders subject to the provisions of the
Articles of Association of the Company, and no distribution may
be paid to shareholders out of the Company’s share premium
unless the Company shall be able to pay its debt as they fall due

in the ordinary course of business.

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association and there was no restriction against such

rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands.

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 183 to

page 184.

The Company has not redeemed any of its securities during the
year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased or sold any of the Company’s securities during the

year.
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Warrants issued in November 2002 were expired on 31 October
2007. A total number of 51,338,716 warrants which conferred
rights to subscribe for shares at an initial subscription price of

HK$0.7 per share had been converted into shares.

On 30 January 2008, the Company had issued 200,000,000 non-
listed warrants, each entitles the holder thereof to subscribe for
one new share at the exercise price of HK$1.00 (subject to
adjustment) at any time during a period of thirty-six months

commencing from the date of issue of the warrants.

Share options are granted to directors, executives and employees
under a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
approved by shareholders at an Extraordinary General Meeting
on 21 October 2002.

The Share Option Scheme is a share incentive scheme and is
established to acknowledge the contributions made or to be made
by participants to the Group. The Board of Directors may, at its
discretion, offer employees, executive and non-executive
directors, officers, advisers and consultants of the Company and
its subsidiaries, the grant of options to subscribe for shares of
the Company. Upon acceptance of the option, the grantee shall
pay HK$1.00 to the Company by way of consideration for the
grant. The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at the
date of approval of the Share Option Scheme. The 10% limit
was refreshed by ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders
at the extraordinary general meeting held on 4 March 2008 which
enabled the grant of further options to subscribe up to
129,335,948 shares, representing 10% of the shares in issue as
at the said date. At the extraordinary general meeting of the
Company held on 16 October 2007, an ordinary resolution
relating to the grant of 48,000,000 share options to Mr. Poon

Sum, the Chairman of the Group, was passed by the shareholders.
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As at the date of the annual report, the total number of shares
available for issue pursuant to the exercise of all options granted
or to be granted under the Share Option Scheme was 88,485,948,
representing about 4.6% of the issued share capital of the
Company. Unless approved by shareholders of the Company, the
total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted to each participant (including both exercised
and outstanding options) in any 12-month period must not exceed
1% of the shares in issue. The Directors will have the absolute
discretion to fix the minimum period for which an option must
be held before it can be exercised, and the performance targets
that must be achieved before the options can be exercised upon

the grant of an option to a participant.

The subscription price of a share in respect of any particular
option granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be such
price as the Board in its absolute discretion shall determine,
save that such price will not be less than the highest of (i) the
nominal value of the shares, (ii) the average of the closing prices
of the shares as stated in daily quotations sheet of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“HKEx”) for the five
consecutive trading days immediately preceding the date of offer
of the option and (iii) the closing price of the shares as stated in
the HKEx’s daily quotations sheet on the date of offer of the
option (which must be a trading day).

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time after the date upon which the
option is deemed to be granted and accepted and prior to the
expiry of such period to be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion and notified to the grantee. No option may
be granted more than 10 years after the date of adoption of the

Share Option Scheme.
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SHARE OPTIONS AND WARRANTS (continued) Jik B BE B R B b ()

Share Options (continued) i I BE (4
Details of the share options outstanding at 31 March 2008 which W EE)NAFEZH =+ —HREFED
have been granted under the scheme are as follows: P2 H i R AT ) B R RE SRS IR
Number of Options Price of Company’s shares
o I HE A v BB BB
Outstanding Outstanding
Exercise as at Granted Exercised Lapsed as at
Date of price per Exercisable 1 April during during during 31 March For Option For Option
Participants grant share Period 2007 the year the year the year 2008 granted exercised
HKS$ HKS$ HKS$
(Note 1) (Note 2)
REFRNE
#oRB LA =H
(34 mA—H =t c#h B8 L
SH% BHAEW  fGME WHEN WARTE  RERRE ORERGE O RERRR i A AT B il ¢ il B¢ HE
bl bl 1
(B &ED) (B 3£2)
Executive Directors
WfES
Mr. Poon Sum 05/06/2006 0.197 05/06/2006 to % 18,000,000 - 18,000,000 - - - 0.677
& AREE 04/06/2009
14/09/2007 1.08 14/09/2007 to % - 48,000,000 - - 48,000,000 1.030 -
13/09/2009
Mr. Wong Kwok Leung 13/08/2004 0.29 13/08/2004 to % 100,000 - - - 100,000 - -
EC S 12/08/2014
Mr. Poon Wai Kong 20/04/2007 0.632 20/04/2007 to % - 3,500,000 - 3,500,000 - 0.610 -
AL 31/03/2008
Non-Executive Director
Tt
Mr. Chen Lizhong 03/04/2006 0.197 03/04/2006 to % 6,000,000 - 6,000,000 - - - 0.693
Bz e 02/04/2008
Independent
Non-Executive
Directors
Bk Eg
Mr. Chan Shu Kin 21/09/2006 0.58 21/09/2006 to % 700,000 - 700,000 - - - 0.624
Bl B2 5 A 20/09/2007
14/09/2007 1.08 14/09/2007 to % - 680,000 - - 680,000 1.020 -
13/09/2009
Mr. Chan Kam Ching, 21/09/2006 0.58 21/09/2006 to % 700,000 - 700,000 - - - 0.624
Paul 20/09/2007
BRSR R LA 14/09/2007 1.08 14/09/2007 to % - 680,000 - - 680,000 1.020 -
13/09/2009
Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung  21/09/2006 0.58 21/09/2006 to % 700,000 - 700,000 - - - 0.624
R A 20/09/2007
14/09/2007 1.08 14/09/2007 to % - 680,000 - - 680,000 1.020 -
13/09/2009
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Number of Options Price of Company’s shares
i I 1 7 2% o) I A Rk
Outstanding Outstanding
Exercise as at Granted Exercised Lapsed as at
Date of price per Exercisable 1 April during during during 31 March For Option For Option
Participants grant share Period 2007 the year the year the year 2008 granted exercised
HKS$ HK$ HKS$
(Note 1) (Note 2)
=R BN
#oRB LA =H
14 mA—H =+—H i A
SHE gmnm  GER wHEEN WARTE  RERRE ORERGE RERRR AT B i I A i B i
il il W
(B 5L D) (K iE2)
Employees in aggregate
B ELAGH
24/11/2003 0.301 24/11/2003 to% 4,500,000 - 3,500,000 - 1,000,000 - 0.697
23/11/2008
13/08/2004 0.29 13/08/2004 to % 3,000,000 - 3,000,000 - - - 0.639
12/08/2014
03/04/2006 0.197 03/04/2006 to % 5,000,000 - 5,000,000 - - - 0.609
02/04/2008
18/04/2006 0.232 18/04/2006 to% 1,080,000 - 1,080,000 - - - 0.607
17/04/2008
26/04/2006 0.275 26/04/2006 to % 2,000,000 - 2,000,000 - - - 0.638
25/04/2007
09/03/2007 0.51 09/03/2007 to % 10,000,000 - 10,000,000 - - - 0.680
08/03/2008
03/04/2007 0.63 03/04/2007 to % - 51,000,000 20,600,000 30,400,000 - 0.620 0.836
31/03/2008
19/04/2007 0.642 19/04/2007 to % - 2,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 - 0.630 0.908
31/03/2008
21/05/2007 0.66 21/05/2007 to% - 5,000,000 1,000,000 4,000,000 - 0.570 0.781
31/03/2008
21/05/2007 0.7 21/05/2007 to% - 12,000,000 2,860,000 9,140,000 - 0.570 0.855
31/03/2008
15/08/2007 0.862 15/08/2007 to % - 4,000,000 - 4,000,000 - 0.850 -
31/03/2008
30/08/2007 0.89 30/08/2007 to% - 1,700,000 1,300,000 400,000 - 0.870 0.801
31/03/2008
19/11/2007 1.18 19/11/2007 to % - 49,800,000 - 12,800,000 37,000,000 1.180 -
18/11/2008
51,780,000 179,040,000 77,440,000 65,240,000 88,140,000
I I I I I
Note: W =%
1. The price of the Company’s shares disclosed for options granted is the 1. T T L W M T B R 1 A 2w AR A A

closing price of the shares immediately before the date on which the

options were granted.

2. The price of the Company’s shares disclosed for options exercised is the

weighted average closing price of the shares immediately before the dates

on which the options were exercised.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors, or their spouse or
children under the age of 18, had been granted any right to
subscribe for the equity or debt securities of the Company or

any of its associated corporations, or had exercised any such

right during the period.
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The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report

were:

Mr. Poon Sum

Mr. Wong Kwok Leung

Mr. Poon Wai Kong

Mr. Chen Lizhong!

Ms. Chew Lye Yin!

Mr. Chan Shu Kin?

Mr. Chan Kam Ching, Paul®
Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung?

Non-Executive Director

2 Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Chan Shu Kin and Mr. Chan Kam Ching, Paul were appointed
for a three-year term expiring on 20 October 2005. Mr. Cheung
Kwan Hung, Mr. Chen Lizhong and Ms. Chew Lye Yin were not
appointed on fixed term.

In accordance with Article 87(1) of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Poon Wai Kong, Mr. Chan Shu Kin and Mr.
Chan Kam Ching, Paul shall retire from office by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer

themselves for re-election.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has entered into

any service agreements with any member of the Group.
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Apart from Directors’ service contracts as described above, no
contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director of the company had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time

during the year.

Mr. Poon Sum, aged 44, is Chairman of the Company and one of
the co-founders of the Group. Throughout the year, he has been,
and still is, primarily responsible for the overall strategic
planning, business development, marketing and formulation of
overall corporate policies of the Group. He has over 19 years of
experience in the paints and coatings industry and the trading of

chemicals in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Mr. Wong Kwok Leung, aged 50, is an Executive Director. He is
currently responsible for the administration and production
management of the Group’s subsidiary in Dongguan. He obtained
the qualification of LCC — Higher Accounting from London
Chamber of Commerce and diploma of supervisory studies from
Hong Kong Productivity Council. Prior to joining the Group, he
worked in the field of finance and accounting for over 12 years
and has obtained extensive knowledge therein. He joined the

Group in September 1997.

Mr. Poon Wai Kong, aged 37, is an Executive Director. He is a
member of both the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Certified Practising Accountant of Australia.
He also holds a Master degree in Business Administration from
the City University of Hong Kong, a Master degree in Practising
Accounting from the Monash University, Australia and a Bachelor
degree in Economics from the University of London, United
Kingdom. He has more than 16 years’ experience in accounting
and financial field. He joined the Group as the Financial
Controller in September 2005. He was appointed as Company
Secretary for the Company in September 2006.
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Mr. Chen Lizhong, aged 54, is a Non-Executive Director. He is
an accountant in the People’s Republic of China and holds a
Master’s degree in business management. Mr. Chen joined
Guangdong Dongshen Water Supply Bureau (the “Bureau”) in
1975. He acted as the general manager of Shenzhen City
Dongshen Industrial Development Holding Company between
1994 to 2000 and vice bureau head of the Bureau between 1996
to 2000. He was an executive director and general manager of
Guangnan (Holdings) Limited between December 2000 to June
2002.

Ms. CHEW Lye Yin, aged 44, was appointed as Non-Executive
Director on 15 September 2006. She graduated from Deakin
University, Australia, with a Bachelor of Science Degree
(Computer Science). She has over 19 years of experience in the
information technology and electronic fields, responsible for
research and development administration, marketing, and project

development at senior level.

Mr. Chan Shu Kin, aged 53, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director. He was appointed on 21 October 2002. He is a certified
public accountant and is a partner of Messrs. Ting Ho Kwan &
Chan, Certified Public Accountants. He is a member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
in the United Kingdom, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. He
has over 30 years of experience in field of auditing, accounting
as well as financial management. He is the past president of the
Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors (the “Society”)
and currently a committee member of the Society. He is also an
independent non-executive director of PYI Corporation Limited

which is a listed company on the main board of the HKEx.
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Mr. Chan Kam Ching, Paul, aged 53, is an Independent Non-
Executive Director. He was appointed on 21 October 2002. He
is the senior partner of Paul K.C. Chan & Partners Solicitors &
Notaries, and has been practising laws in Hong Kong for over 23
years. He obtained a Juris Doctorate degree from University of
Toronto in 1979. He has been admitted as a barrister and a
solicitor in Ontario, Canada and as a barrister in the Australian
Capital Territory, as a solicitor in Hong Kong and in England
and Wales, and as an advocate and solicitor in Singapore. He
became a China-Appointed Attesting Officer in 1995, a member
of Chartered Institute of Arbitrators in 1996, a Notary Public in
Hong Kong in 1997, and HKIAC Accredited Mediator in 1999.

Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung, aged 56, is an Independent Non-
Executive Director. He was appointed on 30 September 2004.
He is a member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He has over 22 years of experience in accounting,
finance and investment banking profession specialising in equity/
debt fund raising, mergers and acquisitions and corporate
restructuring before working with publicly listed companies
undertaking corporate management, planning and strategies
development functions. He is a director of New Ocean Green
Energy Holdings Limited, Golden Dragon Group (Holdings)
Limited and VS International Group Limited, whose shares are
listed on the HKEx.

The Company has received confirmation from each of the
Independent Non-Executive Directors as regards their
independence from the Company and considers that each of the
Independent Non-Executive Directors is independent of the

Company.
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Mr. Leung Kam Lung, Danny, aged 47, is the Chief Executive
Officer of the Group. He joined the Group on 1 April 2007 and
responsible for the Group’s daily operation. He is a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
in the United Kingdom, an associate member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Leung has over 24
years of experience in various functional areas with
responsibilities for strategic planning, business development,
mergers and acquisitions, internal and external auditing and
financial management. Mr. Leung held various management
positions with a number of reputable groups, with business
activities throughout Greater China and the Asia Pacific region,
including a multi-national commercial group headquartered in
Shanghai, a state-owned enterprise headquartered both in Beijing
and Hong Kong, two investment banking and securities brokerage
groups based in Hong Kong, a Hong Kong securities regulatory

body as well as two ‘big-four’ auditing firms.

Professor Kwong Ser Yuen Kwong, Albert, aged 58, is the Vice
Chairman and Chief Operation Officer of the Group. He joined
the Group on 1 July 2008. He is a renowned oil scholar and a
seasoned senior petroleum engineer with worldwide hands-on
exploration and production experience, both onshore and offshore,
plus sharp cross-border business management skills of an
international standard. He has direct exposure to the exploration
and exploitation of oil and gas in North America (covering both
the United States and Canada), South America, Asia (especially
China), Australia, West Africa and the Middle East.

Professor Kwong earned his Bachelor of Science in Computer
Science from the University of South Carolina in 1974 and Master
of Science in Petroleum Engineering from the University of Texas
at Austin in 1977, also later Master of Science in Engineering
Management in Oklahoma, the United States. He had worked as
a research engineer for the Department of Energy, the United
States and later as drilling and operations engineer for Atlantic
Richfield Co.

China Oil Resources Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2007-08

R FESEAE > AT Ty A AR B AT BB -
Bt —FFLAEMA — HIMAARER A
AR B H I o (5 9 B R A D
Erat A B R G B JOHs LR Ry
AHERMATEAELTBEGA T
B o BRSE A AT i 244F TAR RSB R &
15 SR w5~ S5 B 4 > 20 F OF I A A
PR B P 5 A B A 2 ) A G o TR SR
IR & ST PNCIE TP N T E A
A 3 52 1 I 95 7 BB - w% S b SR 1
BLHE — GRS L i Y 15 R 7 2 A
— AR R AL 5t B A HE Y B AT A
ERNPIVE Y B S UEN & & e
RE AL T — 0 U v o B AR R
B % i T S o

Tl IR ZCIZ > S8R - oy AN B 1 A T e
ERH PR FF/NELH —HIMAR
A 1 o 050 5% O 4% 1) A il B R AR B R Y
50 A A i TR A LA A R A i B R L B
B (B RE L e b)) AR RO B I B
A7 3 B (B K T Y 15 R S A TR Al o R
AR Bz 2 B A BR A M A e K IR SRIH
F A BB % B % - 4 Al 9 b Jel 45 L 56
PO SR R &= oK) ~ R S M s
T2 B~ ROR R i T R R R A%
o

S 2L 4% 7 — UL U AR HAS 35 B R A R
AN M ST KBRS R R i — Lk
LA A E N R R (LT
T AR AR A A AR A B b A S
AR A A - B o R AR B A 5 B U
AE VR AT B IF 7% T il > LA A 28 1 3 4
41 1 23 7] Atlantic Richfield Codf 1T 7 JH
VG 88 H M A TR o



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
L

Ms. Liu Yu Qin, aged 40, is the General Manager and Director of
America Archi Colors Group Limited. She joined the Group in
April 2007 and is responsible for the sales and marketing of
paints products in Northeast China Market. She has a post-
graduate degree from the Chinese Academy of Social Sciences.
She has 10 years of experience in the coating industry in both
China and internationally and over 10 years of experience in

sales and marketing.

Mr. Li Xue Tian, aged 65, is the Group’s Vice President. He
joined the Group in June 2006 and responsible to the oil
exploitation business. He graduated from Beijing Institute of
Geosciences “Jb 5t Hb BT 2 B ”, predecessor of the China
University of Geosciences (Beijing) “H Bl i B K £ (4t 50) .
He has over 30 years of experience in the exploitation and
development of oilfields, such as the Daqing Oilfield and Shengli
Oilfield. He has also published 16 research papers and 4 books,
all in the oil field area. Further, he has received seven academic

prizes.

Mpr. Bi Yan Peng, aged 65, is the Group’s Chief Engineer. He
joined the Group in June 2006 and responsible to the development
of oil exploitation business. He graduated from the Beijing
Institute of Geosciences “Jt 5t i B £ Bt ”, predecessor of the
China University of Geosciences (Beijing) “Jb &t M2 K £ (]t
5%) 7. He has involved in geological research in, and exploration
and development of, the Gudao Oilfield, and has been the chief
geologist until 2005. He has also published six research papers
and one book, all in the oilfield area. Further, he has received 21

academic prizes in the oilfield area.
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At 31 March 2008, the interests of the directors and chief
executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company, and any of its associated corporations
(as defined in Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance

(the “SFO”)) as recorded in the register required to be kept

under Section 352 of the SFO or as notified to the Company and

the HKEx pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

Name

4

Mr. Poon Sum

i P

Mr. Wong Kwok Leung
W R IEE

Mr. Poon Wai Kong
18 S

Mr. Chen Li Zhong
BRALAG A

Ms. Chew Lye Yin
HEB L+

Mr. Chan Shu Kin
[

Mr. Chan Kam Ching, Paul
W s OE A

Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung
R

Capacity

b

Beneficial Owner
EEE TN

Founder of a

Discretionary Trust

AHEFTEARA

Beneficial Owner

EECE TN

Beneficial Owner

8% LN

Beneficial Owner

R PN

Beneficial Owner

8% LN

Beneficial Owner

R PN

Beneficial Owner

8% LN

Beneficial Owner

HifaA

Nature of Interests

i 2 P T

Personal Interest (Note 1 & 2)
L AHE RS (B 51 K 2)
Other Interest (Notes 1 & 3)

Jot i 4 (WSRE13)

Personal Interest (Note 1 & 4)
L AHE RS (B 51 e 4)

Personal Interest (Note 1 & 5)
AR (M 5E1KS)

Personal Interest (Note 1)

8 A HE 4R (BEED

Personal Interest (Note 1)

fHARE S (HRED)

Personal Interest (Note 1 & 6)
L AHE RS (W51 6)

Personal Interest (Note 1 & 6)
MARER (M1

Personal Interest (Note 1 & 6)

fHARE S (W RE1J6)
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Number of Equity Total Total % of
Shares held Derivative Interest Issued Shares
FH JBe A Hesf
B %A fik TR BMER BRBEs
77,036,302 48,000,000 376,899,341 29.10%
251,863,039 -
10,857 100,000 110,857 0.01%
800,000 - 800,000 0.06%
3,596,000 - 3,596,000 0.28%
18,240,000 - 18,240,000 1.41%
700,000 680,000 1,380,000 0.11%
1,000,000 680,000 1,680,000 0.13%
700,000 680,000 1,380,000 0.11%
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Notes:

All interests in shares and underlying shares of equity derivatives of the

Company are long positions.

All interests in underlying shares of equity derivatives of the Company
are interests in share options of the Company granted under the share
option scheme of the Company which may be exercised during the period
14 September 2007 to 13 September 2009 to subscribe for 48,000,000

shares at an exercise price of HK$1.08 per share.

These shares are held by Ever Source Enterprises Limited (“Ever Source”).
The issued share capital of Ever Source is beneficially owned as to 50%
by Time Concord Limited (“Time Concord”), a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”) and indirectly owned by a discretionary
trust, the beneficiaries of which are family members of Mr. Poon Sum,
and as to 50% by Guidance Investments Limited (“Guidance”), a company
incorporated in the BVI and indirectly owned by a discretionary trust,
the beneficiaries of which are family members of Mr. Poon Sau Tin, the
elder brother of Mr. Poon Sum. Accordingly, Mr. Poon Sum will be
deemed to be interested in 251,863,039 shares, representing approximately
19.45% of the Company’s shares in issue as at 31 March 2008 through

his shareholding in Ever Source.

All interests in underlying shares of equity derivatives of the Company
are interests in share options of the Company granted under the share
option scheme of the Company which may be exercised during the
period from 13 August 2004 to 12 August 2014 to subscribe for 100,000

Shares at an exercise price of HK$0.29 per share.

All interest in underlying shares of equity derivatives of the Company
are interests in share options of the Company granted under the share
option scheme of the Company which may be exercised during the
period from 20 April 2007 to 31 March 2008 to subscribe for 3,500,000

shares at an exercise price of HK$0.632 per share.

All interest in underlying shares of equity derivatives of the Company
are interests in share options of the Company granted under the share
option scheme of the Company which may be exercised during the
period from 14 September 2007 to 13 September 2009 to subscribe for
680,000 shares at an exercise price of HK$1.08 per share.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2008, none of the
Directors of the Company had held any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (as defined in Part XV of
the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

As at 31 March 2008, the interest of the shareholders, not being
a director or chief executive of the Company, in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO were as
follows:—

B £SO R N I —F T NEFE=H =
T Ho AL R EH B AS 2 R SO AT
] AR g 3 B 96 L8 R B R e 9126
XV 1A A e 453 ~ AR Bl e A7 s i 2 o
B A AR A8 R S B W 9] 265 35200 B 7R
A7 B 8 T A T RC Sk AR R AR e ST I B
288 AR 2 ) Mg 52 P B A AT R i R o

A ZEFENFE=ZH=+H—H REBER
DSBG9 265 33610 ZH A7 L 1Y 5w i T e
BRR (2 JF A 24 = (9 3 2 o T 2 AT B
N B JRAR L ] B Ay B A B B 1y o A
AREE T

Approximate
percentage of

the Company’s

Name of Substantial Number of Equity Total total issued

shareholders Capacity Nature of Interests Shares held Derivative Interest  share capital

fhiAk A

CHAT R A

am

FEBH HAMm JBe A B

X VEL S HE i P BB % H fik TR B A2l

BNP Paribas Jersey Trust Trustee Other Interest 251,863,039 - 251,863,039 19.45%
Corporation Limited (Notes 1,2,3 & 4)

(“BNP Paribas Jersey”) ZitA SO HE 45
(RFFEL~ 2314
Ground Point Limited Interest of Controlled Corporate Interest 251,863,039 - 251,863,039 19.45%

(“Ground Point”) Corporation

5 ¥ o P A

(Notes 1,2,3 & 4)
A

(BHEL > 2> 354)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

(continued)

TR R R (4F)

Approximate
percentage of

the Company’s

Name of Substantial Number of Equity Total  total issued
shareholders Capacity Nature of Interests Shares held Derivative Interest  share capital
ik A
CHfRA
¥ ]
B )3 FiA W Bt A RS
V&L &b B2 P oy 9 H RiET R B Ak
Red Tiles Limited Interest of Controlled Corporate Interest 251,863,039 - 251,863,039 19.45%
Corporation (Notes 1, 2,3 & 4)
5 Y % B GIE £
(FFEEL~ 2~ 3124)
Guidance Interest of Controlled Corporate Interest 251,863,039 - 251,863,039 19.45%
Corporation (Notes 1, 2,3 & 4)
Y I il £
(B3EL > 2~ 3004)
Time Concord Interest of Controlled Corporate Interest 251,863,039 - 251,863,039 19.45%
Corporation (Notes 1, 2,3 & 4)
5 Y % B GE £
(HFEEL~ 2~ 3124)
Ever Source Beneficial Owner Corporate Interest 251,863,039 - 251,863,039 19.45%
(Notes 1,2,3 & 4)
5% TN 2 AR
(BF3EL~ 2~ 3504)
Mr. Poon Sau Tin Beneficial Owner Personal Interest (Note 1) 30,816,302 - 282,679,341 21.83%
jiEaiibs Hafa A {0 AHE RS (B 2R 1)
Founder of a Other Interest 251,863,039 -

Discretionary Trust

A HEAR RE M LA

(Notes 1,2,3 & 4)
HAl o 45
(WHEL > 2 3R4)

o B R B PR A E] - 2007-084F 45
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

(continued)

TR R R (4F)

Approximate
percentage of

the Company’s

Name of Substantial Number of Equity Total  total issued
shareholders Capacity Nature of Interests Shares held Derivative Interest  share capital
ik R
CH#fTRA
¥ ]
FRBH R AW bt A RS
V&L &b B2 P T &y 9 H Rk ] B HARk
Evolution Capital Investment Manager Other Interest 24,742,554 50,806,554 75,549,108 5.83%
Management, LLC (Notes 1 & 5)
RELH Foft 1 42
(BFRE1RS)
Evolution Master Fund, Beneficial Owner Beneficial Interest 24,742,554 50,806,554 75,549,108 5.83%
Ltd. SPC, Segregated (Notes 1 & 5)
Portfolio M [ §i XD it
(BE1RS)
Novatrust Limited Interest of Controlled Corporate Interest 91,377,108 - 91,377,108 7.06%
Corporation (Notes 1 & 6)
5 Y ] B GIE £
(W3E1R6)
Cheyne Capital Interest of Controlled Corporate Interest 91,377,108 - 91,377,108 7.06%
Holdings Limited Corporation (Notes 1 & 6)
Y T il £
(Kt 1%6)
Cheyne Capital Interest of Controlled Corporate Interest 91,377,108 - 91,377,108 7.06%

Management (HK) Limited

Corporation

Ve i I

(Notes 1 & 6)
AT
(BHE1 & 6)

China Oil Resources Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2007-08



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
L

Notes:

All interests in shares and underlying shares of equity derivatives of the

Company are long position.

All interests of BNP Paribas Jersey, Ground Point, Red Tiles, Guidance,
Time Concord and Ever Source and the other interest of Mr. Poon Sau

Tin were duplicated.

BNP Paribas Jersey is deemed to be interested in the shares in the capacity

of a trust through interests of corporations controlled by it as follows:—

Name of Controlling

T AR ) 8 BB B B AS i A T 5L AR B s 43 1)
JIT AT HE 28 35 7 UF A

BNP Paribas Jersey * Ground Point * Red Tiles *
Guidance * Time Concord &% Ever Sourcely it
£ B 55 H S A 0 L il AR 25 8 [R] — HE A

Sz
fi. ©

BNP Paribas Jersey A {5 #€ & £ 4% 4 A~ |y
FCE ) A vk I RE AR I AR S B R 0 R HE

E9X

1 -

Name of Controlled Corporation Shareholders Percentage
ZRWL AR Eed i ARy "l
Grand Point BNP Paribas Jersey 100%
Red Tiles BNP Paribas Jersey 100%
Guidance Ground Point 100%
Time Concord Red Tiles 100%
Ever Source Guidance 50%
Ever Source Time Concord 50%

These Shares are held by Ever Source. The issued share capital of Ever
Source is beneficially owned as to 50% by Time Concord, a company
incorporated in the BVI and indirectly owned by a discretionary trust,
the beneficiaries of which are family members of Mr. Poon Sum, and as
to 50% by Guidance, a company incorporated in the BVI and indirectly
owned by a discretionary trust, the beneficiaries of which are family
members of Mr. Poon Sau Tin, the elder brother of Mr. Poon Sum.
Accordingly, each of Mr. Poon Sum and Mr. Poon Sau Tin will be deemed
to be interested in 251,863,039 shares, representing approximately 19.45%
of the Company’s shares in issue as at 31 March 2008, because each of
them is the respective founder of the aforesaid two discretionary trusts

which indirectly own 50% beneficial interest in Ever Source respectively.

5% %5 % )3 i Ever Sourcef# A < Ever Source fiY
T4 T IEAS ol — [ A 5 G i Lo B S o 1 o
K —IEAMHEG R (2R A BERCAENR
AL E) %A 1)) 7] Time Concord#E A
50% » 10— [ 5% JB8 b 2 1 55 5 i Sr B i
—TERREMS 5T (225 A B3 AR A4 1 i R %
FHEEMRBERE) MTHEAENAHA
GuidanceE A 53 4M1I50% = RIIL > i A 9% 7k St
A S 0 5SS A 4 N A bl W 42 A Ever
Source B i HE 25 509% 1) i JB 2= 4 {5 5T 19 B S
N WO A A BN RO 2 AT 251,863,039/
J A3 BE £ AHE R A A R R B R NEZH
=t —HME BT RBA19.45% ©

ol B R BE A E] - 2007-084F i 47



48

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
L

5. All interests of Evolution Master Fund, Ltd. SPC, Segregated Portfolio
M and Evolution Capital Management, LLC were duplicated. Evolution
Capital Management, LLC was the investment manager of Evolution

Master Fund, Ltd. SPC, Segregated Portfolio M.

6. (i) All interests of Cheyne Capital Management (HK) Limited, Cheyne
Capital Holdings Limited and Novatrust Limited were duplicated.

(ii))  Cheyne Capital Management (HK) Limited was wholly owned by
Cheyne Capital Holdings Limited, which was in turn owned as to
75% by Jalner International Limited, which was in turn wholly
owned by Novatrust Limited. Novatrust Limited was the trustee of

the Galilee Trust.

(iii) Each of Cheyne Fund L.P. and Cheyne Leverage Fund L.P.
beneficially held 39,628,554 shares, both of which were wholly
owned by Cheyne General Partner Inc., which was in turn wholly

owned by Cheyne Capital Holdings Limited.

(iv) Cheyne Pan Asia Long/Short Fund L.P. beneficially held 12,120,000
shares which was wholly owned by Cheyne General Partner II
Inc., which was in turn wholly owned by Cheyne Capital Holdings
Limited.

Save as disclosed above, there was no person known to the
directors of the Company, other than a director of the Company,
who as at 31 March 2008 had an interest or short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the

register kept under section 336 of the SFO.

China Oil Resources Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2007-08

5. Evolution Master Fund, Ltd. SPC, Segregated
Portfolio M} Evolution Capital Management,
LLCH) BT & HE % & [7] — 4It # 25 ° Evolution
Capital Management, LLC %} Evolution Master
Fund, Ltd. SPC, Segregated Portfolio M &
g Sl

6. (i) Cheyne Capital Management (HK)
Limited * Cheyne Capital Holdings
Limited % Novatrust LimitedJ it 5
s J [ — M 4

(ii)) Cheyne Capital Management (HK)
Limited Cheyne Capital Holdings
Limited4: & # A > 1l Cheyne Capital
Holdings Limited H Jalner International
Limited# 7 75%H # - Jalner
International LimitedH Novatrust
Limited4: & # > Novatrust Limited /¥
Galilee TrustZ {5 5L A °

(iii) Cheyne Fund L.P.} Cheyne Leverage
Fund L.P.% H % £ £ 39,628,554 /%
JB #y > bl W W 4§ ¥ B Cheyne
General Partner Inc.? & #H > 1fi
Cheyne General Partner Inc.H Cheyne
Capital Holdings Limited4: & #E £ o

(iv) Cheyne Pan Asia Long/Short Fund L.P.
T 25 35 A 12,120,0008% % 43 > Cheyne
Pan Asia Long/Short Fund L.P.H
Cheyne General Partner II Inc.Z2 &
£ > i Cheyne General Partner IT Inc.
i Cheyne Capital Holdings Limited 4>
EHEA -

B b SCHT 4% 7 3 A > A 22 F EE 2 TR
hZRENEZ] =+ —HRIEE R R
W18 Aok 91 565 33605 ZH A7 L 19 8 R It A RD
#ko MEHEAL T N & (LR A R RIS R
AR w4 B A7 sAR R B A5 T A i
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No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company

were entered into or existed during the year.

During the year, the Group purchased less than 30% of its goods
from its 5 largest suppliers and sold less than 30% of its goods

to its 5 largest customers.

During the year, the Group entered into transaction with certain
Directors or companies related to them. Details of the significant
related party transactions and the Directors’ interests therein are
set out in Note 41 to the financial statements. The rental expenses
of approximately HK$1,441,000 payable to Luen Yat Enterprises
Company Limited, and approximately HK$384,000 payable to
Mr. Poon Sum and Mr. Poon Sau Tin, also constitute connected
transactions under the Listing Rules. Mr. Poon Sum and Mr.
Poon Sau Tin have beneficial interests in Luen Yat Enterprises

Company Limited.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other transactions, which
need to be disclosed as connected transactions in accordance

with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

None of the Directors has an interest in a business which

competes or may compete with the business of the Group.

7 B2 T A PR A R BT S7 SRAEAE A B AR
] 2 S AT A R O HR A S B Y A B AT
B & e

>t

A TR > A S [ ) G L 45 g R A R R
B & IR30% i KA RKER
B DIR30% °

@y v
/

¥y
i S
I
&

il
N
>
7

AT 5 A 42 (9] B T HE < ol B S5 A TR 1Y
INFVRT LA S o F B B K B 2 5 Iy
i R R R SR B R M
41 o JEAT T W S A 26 A PR 4 J A s
1,441,0007T 1 FH 42 BH 3> DA K AT T 985 #%
Je A F w5 B e A 499 15 384,000 70 19 3K
TE S5 M R b T AR B R R B 5 ) o i AR T
A i w5 T S AR A T g 4 6 PR A FF
A H A5 o

Bk b ST 3 5 3 A1 - AR L A 52 B ZE AR
TR Y R R A T R S ) R

ABR 4 0 = Y B AR £ [ S5 A N T RE A
I FE S B S B R A AT R HE 2 o
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With effect from 1 December 2000, the Mandatory Provident
Fund scheme (“MPF scheme”) was set up for certain employees
in Hong Kong, in accordance with the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme Ordinance. Under the rules of the MPF scheme, the
employer and its employees in Hong Kong are each required to
contribute 5% of the employees’ gross earnings with a ceiling of
HK$1,000 per month to the MPF scheme. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the MPF scheme is to make the required

contributions under the scheme.

Employees in the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are required to
participate in a defined contribution retirement scheme operated
by the local municipal government. The PRC subsidiaries
contributes 2% to 4% of the employee payroll to the scheme to

fund the retirement benefits of the employees.

No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the contribution

payable under the above schemes.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its Directors, as at the
date of this report, there is sufficient public float of not less than
25% of the Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing

Rules.

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
Executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the

Independent Non-Executive Directors to be independent.
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Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited and Lau & Au Yeung C.P.A.
Limited retire and, be eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.
A resolution for reappointment of Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
and Lau & Au Yeung C.P.A. Limited as the joint auditors of the
Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Poon Sum

Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 July 2008

A s K HE gt S P A R A % SRR
W w25 I A7 R A R AR AT IS
B ELIRR AT o AR 24 W] H 1A I Jed e SR
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BAKER TILLY
HONG KONG LIMITED
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
B R F# G S HI B T A PR )
12/E,, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre,
168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong

FWBTF#HEP168-200%
f5 @ 0 B R OKE 12 M

To the shareholders of

CHINA OIL RESOURCES HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Formerly known as Wing Shing International Holdings Limited)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Oil Resources Holdings Limited (the “Company”) set out on
pages 55 to 182, which comprise the consolidated and Company
balance sheets as at 31 March 2008, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory notes.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in

the circumstances.
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Lau & Au Yeung C.P.A. Limited
21/F., Tai Yau Building

181 Johnston Road

Wanchai, Hong Kong
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LR A 3 4 E &

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to
you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for

the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the HKICPA. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the

financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

A A R 1Y) B AR T AR R A AL B A T
TR &5 3 Bz B R RE R R
18 1) A B (FF J0 ik ) A A ity
T A% 30 A A 1 A 3k o AS A% BT AS £
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A 0 13 9 R AT IR B B o R P
SR D 4 B S TEUA B Y TR A B R SR AR
i 88 S F) R e BB 7 A ST 1) 4 > £ 4%
A P A U RS T 2 R S R AR
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In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 March 2008 and of the Group’s profit and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 26 July 2008
Andrew David Ross

Director

Practising certificate number PO1183

Lau & Au Yeung C.P.A. Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 26 July 2008

Au Yeung Tin Wah

Director

Practising certificate number P02343
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

B A W AR R

For the year ended 31 March 2008
WE -ZEZAE=ZA=+T—HILEE

2008 2007
“EENE R LA
Note HK$’°000 HK$’000
B 5 #®W T e
Turnover BREM 7 351,530 309,735
Cost of sales £ B B A (304,900) (245,587)
Gross profit £ H 46,630 64,148
Other revenue HoA Ik %5 7 7,597 2,551
Other net (expenses)/income HoAth (BHSZ) /Wi AT 4R 8 (148,409) 4,627
Distribution costs o 85 LA (18,035) (18,055)
Administrative expenses 17 BUBH 52 (66,332) (32,075)
Share-based payments DBy S A 1) 3K (60,140) (13,584)
Excess of fair value of net assets & U 1 & & B 3 FH
acquired over the cost of e i Fi — [ 6 e
acquisition of a subsidiary 78 A AR 1 AR 38(a) 849,627 -
Profit from operations B %A 9 610,938 7,612
Finance costs il A 10 (10,161) (4,639)
Profit before income tax B T 15 B U a8 ) 600,777 2,973
Income tax JIr 15 Bt 11 528 (733)
Profit for the year AR AR JE it A 601,305 2,240
Attributable to: PP AL R4
Equity shareholders of the Company 4% /A 7] # I 3 12 610,535 2,070
Minority interests D B RME £ (9,230) 170
Profit for the year AR AR JE it 601,305 2,240
Dividend 1 B 13 - -
Earnings per share 5 B & A 14
Basic FHA HK54.80 cents#fill  HK0.28 centsit il
Diluted e HK51.40 centsi#fill  HK0.26 centsi il

W BRF £ A 5 2 B 5 S R Y — R )

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

A E A AR

As at 31 March 2008
RoFFEANFZA=ZT—H

2008 2007
“EENE _EFXLE
Note HK$’°000 HK$’000
(i #’W T e
Non-current assets Ikt W)
Property, plant and equipment L ERY N & i 17 163,123 126,363
Exploration and evaluation assets YR B REAG & 18 14,152 -
Prepaid land lease payments FAAT 4 b FH B RRIE 19 36,033 28,290
Investment properties wEWE 20 14 15
Goodwill i 2 21 — 10,424
Other intangible assets At 8 TE 22 1,756,626 -
Available-for-sale financial assets AR B 6 Al 23 439 400
Deposits paid for acquisition of C A i = 10 I RT
long-term assets 25 13,000 4,500
1,983,387 169,992
Current assets o W %
Inventories e 26 43,945 23,215
Trade and other receivables 54 Gy T Al 1 g 5k TH 27 165,962 123,545
Trading securities HEES 28 37,652 4,642
Derivative financial assets i A 4 T 29 19,210 676
Income tax recoverable a] Wi | By 45 L 2,735 2.457
Cash and cash equivalents He B4 %SEHEA 30 87,334 40,575
356,838 195,110
Current liabilities it B £ %
Trade and other payables B Gy B HAth A 3k TH 31 47,326 54,733
Derivative financial liabilities A 4 A R 29 138,344 687
Income tax payable JRE 485 i 15 B 58 54
Bank and other borrowings SRAT K HAM & 32 43,293 58,042
229,021 113,516
Net current assets R A TE 127,817 81,594
Total assets less current liabilities 48 & /&= 3% 7 B £ {5 2,111,204 251,586

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

»\’%g%ﬁ{ﬁ

As at 31 March 2008
RoFFEANFZA=ZT—H

%

2008 2007
“EENE _EFXLE
Note HK$’°000 HK$’000
B 5 #’W T e
Non-current liabilities Ik 5 £ 45
Bank and other borrowings SRAT R HAM & 32 10,394 14,122
Convertible bonds GRS &S 33 20,101 -
Deferred tax liabilities R A B TH A iR 34 964 1,793
31,459 15,915
Net assets % A A 2,079,745 235,671
Capital and reserves JBe AR B £k Hi 35
Share capital Ji& A 12,952 8,727
Reserves it 6 1,203,608 226,944
Total equity attributable AR 2 vi) JB S ME Al iy
to shareholders of HE 2% A8
the Company 1,216,560 235,671
Minority interests A 0B SR 2 863,185 -
Total equity HE 2% 28 75 2,079,745 235,671

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

26 July 2008.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements.

Poon Sum
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Director
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

2 B R AR

As at 31 March 2008
B EENFE=ZH=+—H

2008 2007
ZEENE EFFLF
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
bt i WL BT
Non-current assets I ) B
Property, plant and equipment L ENY N & L) 2 -
Investments in subsidiaries A R E 24 63,772 47,942
63,774 47,942
Current assets )
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE WA BFF 8§ 2 ) R IE 24 274,766 142,818
Trade and other receivables & oy Be HoAth 1 i 3K TH 27 161 162
Cash and cash equivalents B4 kH4E&HSFMEEH 30 72,601 10,193
347,528 153,173
Current liabilities RS
Trade and other payables B 5y K Ho A A ROH 31 1,840 981
Derivative financial liabilities i A 4 A R 29 17,717 -
19,557 981
Net current assets AL G 327,971 152,192
Total assets less O W ) A4
current liabilities 391,745 200,134
Non-current liabilities I B 1 %
Convertible bonds A 4 i £ 75 33 20,101 -
Net assets pe g 371,644 200,134
Capital and reserves JBe A Be fiki
Share capital Ji& A 35 12,952 8,727
Reserves it e 358,692 191,407
Total equity HE % A8 71 371,644 200,134

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

26 July 2008.

Poon Sum
%
Director

#HE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements.
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
B 35 58 W) %

For the year ended 31 March 2008
WE -ZEZAE=ZA=+T—HILEE

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

AR A i B M A
Share
Share ~ Share Merger  option Warrant Exchange Retained Minority Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total interests  equity
i IR I HYB R
Bk Bedri B o ORGME BREE GRE BELGE RERN  ME RS ERAW
HK$’000 HKS$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HKS$000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
W R T WM Tor W Tor W Tor BN Tou W Tor W ToU W T W T R T
At 1 April 2006 REFEARE
MH—H 6,111 53,033 3,248 3,641 - - 64,198 130,231 554 130,785
Issuing costs BATHOA - (664) - - - - - (664) - (664)
Net expense recognised ~ FL 1% it i 4 P HERE
directly in equity 2B - (664) - - - - - (664) - (664)
Profit for the year AR JE i ) - - - - - - 2070 2,070 170 2,240
Total recognised income A4 HERE 2
and expense N ibE
for the year - (664) - - - - 2,070 1,406 170 1,576
Share-based payments DA 03 3 A f 0H - - - 13,584 - - - 13584 - 13584
Issue of new shares A7 10 1 O
upon exercise of BITH R
share options 1,086 41,026 - (9,672) - - - 32,440 - 32,440
Issue of new shares g oUN S
by public placing Bk 1,530 56,480 - - - - - 58010 - 58010
Issuing costs BATHOA - (664) - - - - - (664) - (664)
Acquisition through BSR4 O O
business combination - - - - - - - - (724) (724)
2,616 97,506 - 3912 - - - 104,034 (724) 103,310
At 31 March 2007 REFT L
=ZA=+—H 8,727 149875 3248 7553 - - 66268 235671 - 235671
At 1 April 2007 RZFELE
MA—H 8,727 149,875 3,248 7,553 - - 06,268 235671 - 235,671
[ssuing costs BAT A
~ warrants LL - - - - - - -1
Translation of St SR £l
foreign reserve - - - - - 16,100 - 16,100 - 16,100
Net income recognised HHMER PR
directly in equity bAIUN & - - - - (131) 16,100 - 15969 - 15969
Profit for the year AR JE i ) - - - - - - 610,535 610,535  (9,230) 601,305
Total recognised income A4 HERE 2
and expense N BE L
for the year - - - - (131) 16,100 610,535 626,504  (9,230) 617,274
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
B 35 58 W) %

For the year ended 31 March 2008
WE -ZEZAE=ZA=+T—HILEE

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

7 A i JB R M A
Share
Share Share Merger  option Warrant Exchange Retained Minority Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total interests  equity
T I OB B YRR
BeA Bouesl AR MH R EREME REAN  BE MG ERAE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$000 HKS$’000 HKS$000 HK$ 000
T BT BT BT BT BT BT BT BT BB T
Share-based payments DA 03 3 A f 0H - - - 46,900 - - 13,240 60,140 - 60,140
Issue of new shares 7 T O
upon exercise of BT
share options 775 43393 - (11,975 - - - 32,193 - 32,193
Issue of new shares for MEHA
business combination AT I 649 41,750 - - - - - 42399 - 42399
Issue of warrants IR T - - - - 2,000 - - 2,000 - 2,000
Issue of new shares TS L
upon exercise of BITHR
warrants 769 53,079 - - - - - 53,848 - 53,848
Issue of new shares A7 ] 45 5 5 O
upon exercise of BITHK
convertible bonds 2,032 161,773 - - - - - 163,805 - 163,805
Acquisition through ERER A O
business combination - - - - - - - - 872,415 872,415
4,225 299,995 - 34925 2,000 - 13240 354,385 872,415 1,226,800
At 31 March 2008 RZFFNE
“H=+—H 12,952 449,870 3,48 42478 1,869 16,100 690,043 1,216,560 863,185 2,079,745
I I B B B I D B D

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements.
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
W 2 58 ) L 5

For the year ended 31 March 2008

BEEZZNE=A=+—HILFE

Share
Share Share option Warrant Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve losses Total
‘ amphe
Berc OBy R B B A Wi Rt k]
HKS$’000 HK$000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
T wWTor WWTx wWTx kWt W T
At 1 April 2006 hZFENE
WH—H 6,111 110,969 3,641 - (5,359) 115,362
Issuing costs BAT A - (664) - - - (664)
Net expense recognised FLHE AR 4 AR
directly in equity Z B SR - (664) - - - (664)
Loss for the year AT - - - - (18,598) (18,598)
Total recognised income AR Z WA
and expense for the year BB S R - (664) - - (18,598) (19,262)
Share-based payments LU 3 @: QL] - - 13,584 - - 13,584
Issue of new shares frfl %Hﬂ% IR
upon exercise of BATH K
share options 1,086 41,026 (9,672) - - 32,440
Issue of new shares B B B
by public placing BRI 1,530 56,480 - - - 58,010
2,616 97,506 3,912 - - 104,034
At 31 March 2007 REEELE
“A=Z+—H 8,727 207,811 7,553 - (23,957) 200,134
At 1 April 2007 R EELE
mH—H 8,727 207,811 7,553 - (23,957) 200,134
Issuing costs — warrants BITWA
— R - - - (131) - (131)
Net expense recognised B ﬁ_f. EP R
directly in equity Z B S - - - (131) - (131)
Loss for the year LNy 2 - - - - (177,509 (177,509)
Total recognised income AR FETERR Z A
and expense for the year T B S 4 - - - (131)  (177,509)  (177,640)
Share-based payments DA 43 52 19 308 - - 46,900 - 8,005 54,905
Issue of new shares 17 8 il R
upon exercise of BRI
share options 775 43,393 (11,975) - - 32,193
Issue of new shares for BT 5
business combination BT 649 41,750 - - - 42,399
Conversion of convertible 4 4 R
bonds o 2,032 161,773 - - - 163,805
Issue of warrants #A7 i B il - - - 2,000 - 2,000
Issue of new shares 7 {0 JBC M By
upon exercise of BRI
warrants 769 53,079 - - - 53,848
4,225 299,995 34,925 2,000 8,005 349,150
At 31 March 2008 W ZEENE
“H=1+—H 12,952 507,806 42,478 1,869 (193,461) 371,644

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

EEB4eRER

For the year ended 31 March 2008
WE -ZEZAE=ZA=+T—HILEE

2008 2007
ZRENE L
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
B 5 #BWT L BT oo
Cash flows from operating activities % E BN B &M &
Cash used in operations R ZEH 1) Bl 4 37(a) (132,759) (20,169)
Interest paid e AR (3,274) (4,639)
Hong Kong profits tax paid A5 A5 Uk ) 15 B (476) (160)
PRC income tax paid 45w B T A5 B (201) (56)
Net cash used in operating P 48 85 SR 5 0 BL & i
activities (136,710) (25,024)
Cash flows from B By B AR R
investing activities
Net cash paid in i G OF B E AT Y
business combination Bl 4 1§ HE 38(d) (23,794 (493)
Purchase of property, L3R/ ERY N & 4
plant and equipment, prepaid TA AT 4 b L B BOE A K&
land lease payments and DR K R Al
exploration and evaluation assets (73,714) (28,643)
Proceeds from sale of property, W R B Rk A
plant and equipment JIr 15 3K IH 10,385 4,499
Purchases of available-for-sale Wi ATt B
financial assets (222) -
Deposits paid for acquisition of C A i g = 30 Y AT
long-term assets (8,500) (4,500)
Interest received B Al R 3,998 410
Net cash used in investing F % 8 % 36 ) i
activities B4 H 3 (91,847) (28,727)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

EEB4eRER

For the year ended 31 March 2008
WE -ZEZAE=ZA=+T—HILEE

2008 2007
ZRENE L
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
B 5 #BWT L BT oo
Cash flows from financing activities % 3% B 9 31 £ 9 &
Proceeds from issue of new shares BEAT B BT A5 B IE = 90,450
Issuing costs paid oA EE AT LA (131) (664)
Capital elements of il AH B K T 1 AR S Ay
finance lease payments (876) (460)
Proceeds from issue of warrants BEAT R0 B R T 45 B A 2,000 -
Proceeds from issue of AT AR ﬁﬁ 5 3 IE
convertible bonds 200,000 -
Proceeds from exercise of warrants 17 { 58 & 1 56 T 15 2K I8 53,848 -
Proceeds from exercise of A e g J3C W T A5 R IE
share options 32,193 -
Drawdown of bank loans R AT B = 20,500
Repayments of bank loans TR R AT 8K (40,800) (36,763)
Drawdown of trust receipt loans HUE R B 27,895 2.866
Net cash generated AR A
from financing activities W B4 A 274,129 75,929
Net increase in cash and BeERkB&%5MH
cash equivalents JEH B4 m 3 8 45,572 22,178
Cash and cash equivalents B —HBB SR
at 1 April Be&%fiHH 34,212 12,132
Effect of foreign exchange b W BE % 55 B Y 5 B
rate changes 7,550 98)
Cash and cash equivalents RE=HAH=1+—HWMB%
at 31 March BB E&SMHHEH 30 87,334 34,212

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements.
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The Company was incorporated as an exempted company
with limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the
Companies Law of Cayman Islands. The address of its
registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The
address of its principal place of business is Suite 1006,
10th Floor, Ocean Centre, Harbour City, Tsim Sha Tsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Pursuant to an extraordinary general meeting of shareholders
of the Company held on 31 August 2007, a special resolution
was passed to change the name of the Company from Wing
Shing International Holdings Limited to China Oil
Resources Holdings Limited.

The Company is an investment holding company. The

principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 24.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all
applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”),
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange. The
financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for the financial instruments
classified as trading securities and derivative financial

instruments, which have been measured at fair value.

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
(“HK$”) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand

except when otherwise indicated.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may

differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both

current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and estimates with a significant risk of material

adjustment in the next year are discussed in note 5.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W 5 ok WY ik

(a) The HKICPA has issued a number of new and (a) F TN G EHMZ

66

revised HKFRSs and Interpretations that are first
effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group and the

Company.

There have been no significant changes to the
accounting policies applied in these financial
statements for the years presented as a result of
these developments. However, as a result of the
adoption of HKFRS 7, “Financial instruments:
Disclosures”, and the amendment to HKAS 1,
“Presentation of financial statements: Capital
disclosures”, there have been certain additional

disclosures provided.

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 7, the
financial statements include expanded disclosure
about the significance of the Group’s financial
instruments and the nature and extent of risks

arising from those instruments, compared with

TEHT AT S KA W T A ok S s
ek QI s B TR AR
S 1 R AR m A 1t 3
M 1 W A A AT Rt R R
A o

% S {07 5 3l 48 M B4
B ik b out Bt 2 97 4F T
JH B wH UK B R A
5 o R > 1A BR Ak 7 o U 5
ot HE SR 75% [ & T
B gk | A ik i at e
SIS 198 B 1B 5T T I s ik
R T ' AR
e ] 7R o T AN
#EHIH

T DR A0 7 i B 5 i At Y
SRTREAR > LR ARYE A U
ot MRS 3258 [ &l T
Hoo g e B3 HUE R
R T B R R B AR

the information previously required to be WEARALE TR
disclosed by HKAS 32, “Financial instruments: EEMED AZE TR E

Disclosure and presentation”. These disclosures
are provided throughout these financial

statements, in particular in note 4(a).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S B A A B ik

(b)

The amendment to HKAS 1 introduces additional
disclosure requirements to provide information
about the level of capital and the Group’s and
the Company’s objectives, policies and processes
for managing capital. These new disclosures are
set out in note 35(d).

Both HKFRS 7 and the amendment to HKAS 1
do not have any material impact on the
classification, recognition and measurements of
the amounts recognised in the financial

statements.

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period (see note 2.1(b)).

New and revised HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective

- HKFRS 2 (Amendment), “Share-based
payment — vesting conditions and
cancellations”, effective for annual periods

beginning on or after 1 January 2009.

- HKFRS 3 (Revised),

combinations”, effective for annual periods

“Business

beginning on or after 1 July 2009.

(b)

A s 1 ak A AR 1R 1B
HEIGS EZi§ 35Vl
S BEAT B E A KT DA KA
A FH BLAS 2y R B A B
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S B A A B ik

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 8, “Operating segments”, effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2009.

HKAS 1 (Revised), “Presentation of
financial statements”, effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January
2009.

HKAS 23 (Revised), “Borrowing costs”,
effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 20009.

HKAS 27 (Revised), “Consolidated and
separate financial statements”, effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2009.

HK{FRIC)-Int 12, “Service concession
arrangements”, effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2008.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W 5 ok WY ik

(b) New and revised HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective (continued)

—  HK{IFRIC)-Int 13, “Customer loyalty
programmes”, effective for annual periods

beginning on or after 1 July 2008.

—  HK{JFRIC)-Int 14, “HKAS 19 — The limit
on a defined benefit asset, minimum funding
requirements and their interactions”,
effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2008.

The effect on the adoption of HKFRS 3 (Revised)
and HKAS 27 (Revised) to the results and
financial position of the Group when they become
effective will depend on the incidence and timing
of business combinations occurring on or after 1
April 2010.

The Group is currently assessing the impact of
the adoption of the other new standards,
amendments to standards and interpretations
above that are applicable to the Group in future
periods, but are not yet in a position to state
whether they would have material financial

impact on the financial status.

(b)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W 5 ok WY ik

A 5% S B R R PR AR Y R
At BORE ST

The significant accounting policies adopted in the

preparation of these financial statements are set out below:

70

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its

subsidiaries made up to 31 March each year.

Subsidiaries are those entities in which the Company,
directly or indirectly, controls more than one half of
the voting power; has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies; to appoint or remove the
majority of the members of the board of directors; or
to cast majority of votes at the meetings of the board

of directors.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are consolidated from the effective
date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group
obtains control, or up to the effective date of disposal,
as appropriate and continue to be consolidated until

the date that such control ceases.

The acquisition of subsidiaries during the year has
been accounted for using the purchase method of
accounting. This method involves allocating the cost
of the business combinations to the fair value of the
assets acquired, and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed at the date of acquisition. The cost of the
acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the fair
value of the assets given, equity instruments issued
and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of
exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the

acquisition.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W 5 ok WY ik

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary is
calculated by reference to the net assets at the date of
disposal including the attributable amount of goodwill
but does not include any attributable goodwill

previously eliminated against reserves.

All significant intra-group transactions and balances

are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside
equity holders in the results and net assets of the

Company’s subsidiaries.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less any impairment
losses. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividends received

and receivable.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account
for the acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses by the
Group. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the
fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued
and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of
exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the
acquisition. Identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the subsidiaries or businesses
in an acquisition are measured at their fair values at

the acquisition date.
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The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the subsidiaries
or businesses is recorded as goodwill. Any excess of
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over the cost of acquisition is recognised in profit or

loss.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment
losses of goodwill are recognised in profit or loss and
are not subsequently reversed. Goodwill is allocated
to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment

testing.

(i) Oil properties

Oil properties are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depletion, depreciation and
amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses. The successful efforts method of
accounting is used for oil properties. Under this
method, all costs for development wells, support
equipment and facilities, and acquired proven
interests in oil properties are capitalised. Proven
oil reserves are the estimated quantities of crude
oil and condensate oil which geological and
engineering data demonstrate with reasonable
certainty to be recoverable in future years from
known reservoirs under existing economic and
operating conditions, i.e. prices and costs as of
the date the estimate is made. Prices include
consideration of changes in existing prices
provided only by contractual arrangements, but

not on escalations based upon future conditions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S B A A B ik

(¥

(ii)

Oil properties (continued)

Depletion and depreciation are provided to write
off the cost of items of oil properties over the
shorter of the unexpired term of the joint venture

and their estimated useful lives.

Other property, plant and equipment

Other property, plant and equipment are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and any

impairment losses.

The cost of an item of other property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset
to its working condition and location for its
intended use. Expenditure incurred after items
of other property, plant and equipment have been
put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss
in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where it can be clearly demonstrated that the
expenditure has resulted in an increase in the
future economic benefits expected to be obtained
from the use of an item of other property, plant
and equipment, and where the cost of the item
can be measured reliably, the expenditure is
capitalised as an additional cost of that asset or

as a replacement.
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(i) Other property, plant and equipment (ii) H ALY ¥ - B 5 K ik i
(continued) (%)
Buildings and other property, plant and MG R AR 2 R K
equipment are depreciated at rates sufficient to WA DA B AR 4R AL R AT
write off their cost less accumulated impairment 1 F AR A D)2 DA HC A
losses and residual value, if any, over their NSNS RN RPN E S
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. BE (nh) W3 & 5t
The principal annual rates are as follows: BT FEAERWN ¢
Buildings 2 - 4.75% M 2—4.75%
Plant and machinery 9 -20% T 75 B 9—20%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 18 —20% BTREE
B 5% A 18—20%

Motor vehicles 9 -30% 1 9—30%
The useful lives and residual values of other A A5 H s AR e
property, plant and equipment are reviewed and 5 B B A A 6 B Iy o R
adjusted, if necessary, at each balance sheet date. fib ¥y 2~ R KRR A B9 ]

o5 4F J00 % 9 5 {8 L -
Major costs incurred in restoring other property, A A ) 2 B Rk A
plant and equipment to their normal working HAE 2R EAERD - R
conditions to allow continued use of the overall Bon] A A A A A
asset are charged to profit or loss. (2 O S W N

ERE
An item of other property, plant and equipment FoAth ) 3~ W55 D 3 f 7H
is derecognised upon disposal or when no future At B IR Bl 0 L fd
economic benefits are expected from its use or P B R AR H R R
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or T8 ] i IR S8 SR o A
retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year B T R 2K LR Rk A
the property, plant and equipment is derecognised A BE AE 18 4 R AR A B
is the difference between the net sales proceeds BRI 2 A 0 AT AT i £ B
and the carrying amount of the relevant property, 5 48 - F5 B B A5 3K E i
plant and equipment. THELA Y R Bk

i MR T P 2 R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W 5 ok WY ik

(iii) Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents oil properties
and buildings under construction and is stated at
cost. No depreciation is made on construction in
progress until such time as the relevant property,

plant and equipment are available for use.

Geological and geophysical costs are expensed as
incurred. Costs of exploratory wells are capitalised
pending a determination of whether sufficient
quantities of potentially economic oil reserves have
been discovered. The related well costs are expensed
if it is determined that such economic viability is not
attained within one year of completion of drilling.
Otherwise, the related well costs are reclassified to
oil properties and subject to depletion and impairment
review. For wells found economically viable reserves
in areas where a major capital expenditure would be
required before production can begin, the related well
costs remain capitalised only if additional drilling is
under way or firmly planned. Otherwise the well costs
are expensed as dry holes. The Group has no costs of

unproven properties capitalised in oil properties.

Exploration and evaluation asset is depreciated over

its useful life of 10 years.
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(0

(ii)

Prepaid land lease payments

Prepaid land lease payments under operating
leases are initially stated at cost and subsequently
recognised on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and buildings
elements, the entire lease payments are included
in the cost of the land and buildings as a finance

lease in property, plant and equipment.

Finance leases

Leases that substantially transfer to the Group
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets
are accounted for as finance leases. Finance
leases are capitalised at the inception of the lease
at the lower of the fair value of the leased assets
or the present value of the minimum lease
payments. Each lease payment is allocated
between the capital and finance charges so as to
achieve a constant rate on the capital balances
outstanding. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included
in long-term and short-term liabilities, as
appropriate. The finance charges are charged to

profit or loss over the lease periods.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated
over the shorter of their estimated useful lives or

the lease periods.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W 5 ok WY ik

(iii) Operating leases
As a lessee

Leases where substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of assets remain with the
leasing company are accounted for as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases net
of any incentives received from the leasing
company are charged to profit or loss on a

straight-line basis over the lease periods.

As a lessor

Rental income, included rentals charged in
advance from properties let under operating
leases, is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-

line basis over the terms of the relevant leases.

Investment properties, which are properties held to
earn rentals and/or capital appreciation, are carried at
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment loss, if any. The costs of investment
properties are depreciated over their estimated useful
lives of 20 to 50 years using the straight-line method.
Gains or losses arising from disposal of properties are
determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the properties

and are recognised in profit or loss.

(iii) BEME
1E 74 7R A
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Exploitation rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Exploitation rights
are amortised on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of 20 years. The useful lives of the
exploitation rights are reviewed annually in accordance
with the production plans of the Group and the proven
and probable reserves of the crude oil. Exploitation
rights are written off to profit or loss if the oil

properties are abandoned.

Available-for-sale financial assets are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs. At each
balance sheet date the fair value is remeasured, with
any resultant gain or loss being recognised directly in
equity, except for impairment loss and, in the case of
monetary items such as debt securities, foreign
exchange gains and losses which are recognised
directly in profit or loss. When these investments are
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised directly in equity is recognised in profit or
loss. Investments in equity instruments that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and shall be measured at

cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W 5 ok WY ik

Inventories comprise raw materials, work in progress
and finished goods and are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost is calculated using the
weighted average basis and comprises all costs of
purchase, costs of conversion and an appropriate
proportion of all production overhead expenditure. Net
realisable value is determined on the basis of
anticipated sales proceeds less estimated selling

expenses.

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at
fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost less impairment losses for bad and
doubtful debts. A provision of impairment of trade
and other receivables is established when there is
objective evidence that the Group will not be able to
collect all amounts due according to the original terms
of receivables. The amount of the provision, recognised
in profit or loss, is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest

rate.
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Trading securities are classified as investments held
for trading under the category of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss. At each balance sheet
date subsequent to initial recognition, investments held
for trading are measured at fair value, with changes in
fair value recognised directly in profit or loss in the

period in which they arise.

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised
at fair value on the date on which the contract is
entered into and are subsequently remeasured at their
fair value. Fair values are obtained from quoted market
prices, discounted cash flow models and options
pricing models as appropriate. All derivatives are
carried as assets when fair value is positive and as
liabilities when fair value is negative. The gain or loss
on remeasurement to fair value is charged immediately

to profit or loss.

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories, deferred tax assets, financial
assets, investment properties and goodwill), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is calculated as the higher of the
asset’s or cash generating unit’s value in use and its
fair value less costs to sell, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets, in which case, the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-

generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W 5 ok WY ik

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with

the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to
whether there is any indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, however not to an amount higher
than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation), had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of such impairment loss is
credited to profit or loss in the period in which it
arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant

accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance
sheet at cost. For the purpose of the cash flow
statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
on hand and deposits held at call with banks and short
term highly liquid investments which are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the

Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the balance sheet, cash and bank
balances comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, which are not restricted as to

use.

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost unless
the effect of discounting would not be material, in

which case they are stated at cost.

Bank and other borrowings are recognised initially at
fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, bank and other
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between cost and redemption value being
recognised in profit and loss over the period of the

borrowing using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W 5 ok WY ik

Convertible bonds issued by the Group that contain
both liability and conversion option components are
classified separately into respective items on initial
recognition. Conversion option that will be settled
other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash
or another financial asset for a fixed number of the
Company’s own equity instruments is a conversion
option derivative. At the date of issue, both the liability
and conversion option components are recognised at

fair value.

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The conversion option
derivative is measured at fair value with changes in

fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability and
conversion option components in proportion to their
relative fair values. Transaction costs relating to the
conversion option derivative is charged to profit or
loss immediately. Transaction costs relating to the
liability component are included in the carrying amount
of the liability portion and amortised over the period
of the convertible bonds using the effective interest
method.
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Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. The
charge for income tax is based on the results for the
year as adjusted for items, which are non-assessable
or disallowable. Income tax is recognised in profit or
loss, or in equity if it relates to items that are
recognised in the same or a different period directly

in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and
prior periods are measured at the amount expected to

be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities.

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on all temporary differences at the balance
sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively

enacted at the balance sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carry-forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carry-forward of unused tax credits and unused tax

losses can be utilised except:

(i) where the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

and

(ii) in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which

the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the

deferred tax asset to be utilised.
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Conversely, previously unrecognised deferred tax
assets are reassessed at each balance sheet date and
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all

or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable

temporary differences, except:

(i) where the deferred tax liability arises from
goodwill or the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable

profit or loss; and

(ii) in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in

the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity

and the same taxation authority.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset. All other borrowing costs
are charged to profit or loss in the year in which they

are incurred.

These financial statements are presented in HKS$, which
is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional

currency.

Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded
using the functional currency rates ruling at the date
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the
balance sheet date. All differences are taken to profit

or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was

determined.
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The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries are currencies other than the HKS$. As at
the balance sheet date, the assets and liabilities of
these entities are translated into the presentation
currency of the Company at the exchange rates ruling
at the balance sheet date and, their income statements
are translated into HK$ at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year. The resulting exchange
differences are included in the exchange reserve. On
disposal of a foreign entity, the deferred cumulative
amount recognised in equity relating to that particular

foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into HK$ at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into HK$ at the weighted

average exchange rates for the year.

(i) Employee leave entitlements

The Group provides paid annual leave to its
employees under their employment contracts on
a calendar year basis. Under certain
circumstances, such leave which remains untaken
as at the balance sheet date is permitted to be
carried forward and utilised by the respective
employees in the following year. An accrual is
made at the balance sheet date for the expected
future cost of such paid leave earned during the

year by the employees and carried forward.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(ii) Pension obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution
retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible
to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC”) are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. The subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of the payroll
costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of

the central pension scheme.

The Group’s contributions to the defined
contribution retirement scheme are expensed as

incurred.
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(iii) Share-based payment transactions (iii) AR} 11 X ) & 5%

The fair value of services received determined 2 F I IR HE A 4t H Y
by reference to the fair value of share options ONTE 1 2 1 B IR A
granted at the grant date is expensed over the {H g A A B R R A
relevant vesting periods to profit or loss, with 18 £ S8 - AR R 7Y BB T
the corresponding amount credited to share-based A RE 2 TR AR5 27 BE Bl 1Y)
employee compensation reserve within equity. 1 B I A5 £ 145 o

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the i RE IR £ T RE € I A AR S

economic benefits will flow to the Group and when J U g e 4 AT 5E Hh n+$ i > A

the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following Fie T 51 ik E e 5B Uk

bases:

(i) Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised (i)  TEHEA FEM 48 R 4 R B
when the significant risks and rewards of Jo [m] i £ WAL 2 H Ty IR
ownership have been transferred to the buyer, HI) & e 58 8 8 B A9k
provided that the Group maintains neither g o ME A AR ) 2 B P R
managerial involvement to the degree usually T ZEAIK 7 B A TR A B
associated with ownership, nor effective control oM REBRENCE &
over the goods sold. Hi ©

(ii) Crude oil sales represent the invoiced value of (i) D 8 B i A 2 (B 4
sales of crude oil attributable to the interests of £ B 5L 8 5 S SR
the Group, net of royalties. Sales are recognised o B SR RE o B B A
when the significant risks and rewards of T A RE Y RS 4y R B
ownership of oil have been transferred to N Il A% 2 % 5 I e
customers. il o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(iii) Revenue from a fixed price individual service

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

contract is recognised using the percentage of
completion method, measured by reference to the
percentage of contract costs incurred to date to
estimated total contract costs for the contract.
When the outcome of a service contract cannot
be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only
to the extent of contract costs incurred that it is

probable will be recoverable.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis
using the effective interest method by applying
the rate that discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument to the net carrying amount of the

financial asset.

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion

basis over the terms of the lease.

Subcontracting income is recognised when the

underlying services are rendered.

(iii) T fE A ARl R S 5 #64) FY)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)
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Research costs are expensed as incurred. Costs incurred
on development projects relating to the design and
testing of new or improved products are recognised as
an intangible asset where the technical feasibility and
intention of completing the product under development
has been demonstrated and the resources are available
to do so, costs are identifiable and there is an ability
to sell or use the asset that will generate probable
future economic benefits. Such development costs are
recognised as an asset and amortised on a straight-
line basis over a period of not more than 5 years to
reflect the pattern in which the related economic
benefits are recognised. Development costs that do
not meet the above criteria are expensed as incurred.
Development costs previously recognised as an
expense are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent

period.

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group
that is engaged either in providing products or services
(business segment), or in providing products or
services within a particular economic environment
(geographical segment), which is subject to risks and

rewards that are different from those of other segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial
reporting system, the Group has chosen business
segment information as the primary reporting format
and geographical segment information as the secondary
reporting format for the purposes of these financial

statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Segment revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities
include items directly attributable to a segment as well
as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to
the segment. For example, segment assets may include
property, plant and equipment, inventories and trade

receivables.

Segment revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities are
determined before intra-group balances and intra-group
transactions are eliminated as part of the consolidation
process, except to the extent that such intra-group
balances and transactions are between group entities
within a single segment. Inter-segment pricing is based
on similar terms as those available to other external

parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred
during the year to acquire segment assets, both tangible
and intangible, that are expected to be used for more

than one year.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and
corporate assets, interest-bearing loans, borrowings,

tax balances, corporate and financing expenses.
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(0

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require
the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee for a
loss the holder incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payment when due in accordance
with the terms of a debt instrument. Where the
Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair value
of the guarantee (being the transaction price,
unless the fair value can otherwise be reliably
estimated) is initially recognised as deferred
income within trade and other payables. Where
consideration is received or receivable for the
issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s
policies applicable to that category of asset.
Where no such consideration is received or
receivable, an immediate expense is recognised
in profit or loss on initial recognition of any

deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised over the terms
of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are
recognised if and when (i) it becomes probable
that the holder of the guarantee will call upon
the Group under the guarantee, and (ii) the
amount of that claim on the Group is expected to
exceed the amount currently carried in trade and
other payables in respect of that guarantee, ie
the amount initially recognised, less accumulated

amortisation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(ii) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or
the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected

to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is

remote.
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For the purposes of these financial statements, a party

is considered to be related to the Group if:

()

(ii)

(ii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

the party has the ability, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, to control
the Group or exercise significant influence over
the Group in making financial and operating
policy decisions, or has joint control over the
Group;

the Group and the party are subject to common

control;

the party is an associate of the Group or a joint

venture in which the Group is a venturer;

the party is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent, or
a close family member of such an individual, or
is an entity under the control, joint control or

significant influence of such individuals;

the party is a close family member of a party
referred to in (i) or is an entity under the control,
joint control or significant influence of such

individuals; or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan which
is for the benefit of employees of the Group or

of any entity that is a related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be

influenced by, that individual in their dealings with

the entity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group’s business. The
Group is also exposed to equity price risk arising from its

equity investments in other entities.

These risks are limited by the Group’s financial management

policies and practices described below.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade and other receivables, listed debt investments
and derivative financial instruments. Management has
a credit policy in place and the exposures to these

credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of
making payments when due and current ability to pay,
and take into account information specific to the
customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. Trade
receivables are due within 30 days to 90 days from
the date of billing. Debtors with balances that are more
than 4 months past due are requested to settle all
outstanding balances before any further credit is
granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral

from customers.
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Investments are normally only in liquid securities
quoted on a recognised stock exchange, except where
entered into for long term strategic purposes.
Transactions involving derivative financial instruments
are with counterparties of sound credit standing and
with whom the Group has a signed netting agreement.
Given their high credit standing, management does
not expect any investment counterparty to fail to meet

its obligations.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer. The default risk of the industry and country
in which customers operate also has an influence on
credit risk but to a lesser extent. At the balance sheet
date, the Group has a certain concentration of credit
risk as 20% (2007: 15%) and 39% (2007: 45%) of the
total trade and other receivables was due from the
Group’s largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively within the paints, blended solvents and

chemical materials business segment.

The maximum exposure to credit risk without taking
account of any collateral held is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset, including
derivative financial instruments, in the balance sheet
after deducting any impairment allowance. The Group
does not provide any other guarantees which would
expose the Group or the Company to credit risk. The
maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of these
financial guarantees at the balance sheet date is

disclosed in note 42.
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Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade and

other receivables and set out in note 27.

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the parent company’s board
when the borrowings exceed certain predetermined
levels of authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor its liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and readily realisable
marketable securities and adequate committed lines
of funding from major financial institutions to meet

its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

A1 B AR 5 M BRI R 5y I H
At R WS LT E 2R 19 A B L B
9 HE — 20 SR SO A 27

A T A% AR E R A AT
AREABEEH Qe
LB A 0 B0 D B R A
JE A T ) B 4 7 B A i 4
o T R S R B B ZE B Y
] T S I o AR 2 B BUR
MR RE e wE K
5 B2 50 B0 AT 1 UL - AR
AE TR 70 R 114 B 4 ik A B AT B R
BB A E R LA 2
F = BB B R B A8 T RO
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The following table details the remaining contractual

maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s

and the Companys’ non-derivative financial liabilities

and derivative financial liabilities, which are based on

contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest

payments computed using contractual rates or, if

floating, based on rates current at the balance sheet

date) and the earliest date the Group and the Company

N RFEIIAE M KA\ IR
7 A < B AT A < AL fR
AAEH B ER T A A E
Do A BB T AR A R AT
BB (LA E A%
il (o i B A ) A5 H R By
1 ) 515 AR AT 30 AR
A5 ) B A o W) AT R A S

can be required to pay: R H I EE
Group A 4R
2008 2007
SRR “RRLE
More than More than
Total More than 2 years Total More than 2 years
contractual Within 1 1 year but but less contractual Within 1 year but but less
Carrying  undiscounted  year or on less than than Carrying  undiscounted year or on less than than
amount cash flow demand 2 years 5 years amount cash flow demand 2 years 5 years
LR —~kn N LR HEAH —ER —ENE WEME
Wi MEAHE  REKEX HEENT  MAEENT Jmfi  ARENE  AREk ERENT  BEEFUT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HKS$'000
gL wWTE @Mk wWTE #WT wWTx %I #¥Tx #% T #¥Tx
Trade and other payables & 5 J Jh
TR 308 41326 41,326 41,326 - - 54,733 54,733 54,133 - -
Derivative financial i ama s
liabilities 138,344 138,344 138,344 - - 687 687 687 - -
Bank and other BRI E
borrowings 53,687 53,687 43,293 1,663 8,731 72,164 72,164 58,042 3,320 10,802
Convertible bonds W5 20,101 20,101 = > 20,101 - - - - -
259,458 259,458 228,963 1,663 28,832 127,584 127,584 113,462 3320 10,802
— — — — — — — I — I
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Company y: A |
2008 2007
“ERNE “EERLE
Total Total
contractual Within 1 contractual Within 1
Carrying undiscounted  year or on Carrying undiscounted  year or on
amount  cash flow demand amount cash flow demand
R A I8l —4E #) 3 A AT B — R
Wewifi MBAWE  RIEEX RmE MESRE  SEEXK
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EWTL BWTaL WWTxX W Tx WWTx wWTx
Trade and other B 5 B A
payables JE {57 IR 1,840 1,840 1,840 981 981 981
Derivative financial 174 4 fll & &
liabilities 17,717 17,717 17,717 - - -
19,557 19,557 19,557 981 981 981

Except for short term bank deposits, the Group has no
significant interest-bearing assets, the Group’s income
and operating cash flows are substantially independent
of changes in market interest rates. Management does
not anticipate significant impact on interest-bearing
assets resulted from the changes in interest rates
because the interest rates of bank deposits are not

expected to change significantly.

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from bank and
other borrowings, derivative financial liabilities and
convertible bonds. Borrowings obtained at variable
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.
Borrowings at fixed rates expose the Group to fair
value interest rate risk. Details of the Group’s bank

and other borrowings are set out in note 32.

% Sl 0 R A A7 A1 > A 4 ST
I A B R E T A 4
W A R HE 8 B iR BUA T
S5 M| A 55 B R B o R BR AT AF
EES B N i B N
Y o R I > 7 B SIS TE A )
5 ) o ¥ R B B A R E R
7

=

A A 18 1) R R R AR B R AT K
At A8 £ fiT 2R 4 B M AT
o A 75 o He V7 B OAY  B
il A 42 8 7K 27 B 4 Ui 2 R % L
B o 4 2 B TR0 R A B B 0 A
£ (8 7R 7 0N 7B ) R B o A
B2 B Y SR AT S A B R
R B EE320
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The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to convertible bonds (see note 33 for
details). It is the Group’s policy to keep its borrowings
at fixed rate so as to minimise the cash flow interest

rate risk.

At 31 March 2008, it is estimated that a general
increase or decrease of 100 basis points in interest
rates on HK$ denominated borrowings, with all other
variables held constant, would decrease/increase the
Group’s profit by approximately HK$6,676,000 (2007:
HK$3,322,000). The above sensitivity analysis has
been determined assuming that the change in interest
rates had occurred at the balance sheet date and had
been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for
financial instruments in existence at that date. The
100 basis points increase or decrease represents
management’s assessment of a reasonably possible
change in interest rates over the period until the next
annual balance sheet date. The analysis was performed

on the same basis for 2007.

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
through its bank and bank deposit balances that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the operations to which they relate. The
currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily

Canadian dollars and United States dollars.

The Group ensures that the net exposure on recognised
assets and liabilities arising from bank and bank
deposit balances that are denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the operating to
which they relate is kept to an acceptable level, by
buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rate where

necessary to address short-term imbalances.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(i) Exposure to currency risk (i) HPF M BE R G
The following table details the Group’s and the TR RO SR [ S A T
Company’s exposure at the balance sheet date to A &5 B iR R LUAR A
currency risk arising from recognised assets or A Al Yrae & LA & A
liabilities denominated in a currency other than [ELBISRT 28 < g% =K 4]
the functional currency of the entity to which JEE A= B A1 TR o

they relate.

Group AL
Assets Liabilities
¥ A 1 i
2008 2007 2008 2007

“RBANE XL LF ZRBAE FT LR
HK$°000  HK$000 HK$’000  HKS$000
wWTr WHTT wWTx BWTT

Canadian dollars fnoc 32,424 - - _
United States dollars E TG 828 _ _ _
Company AR A ]
Assets Liabilities
¥ =R
2008 2007 2008 2007

TRBNAE —EELE ZZFNE —EELE
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000  HK$°000
BWHT L WB¥To ®BWTX B¥Tx

Canadian dollars ot 32,424 - - _

ooyl R BRI A E] - 2007-084F ) 103
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(ii) Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the approximate
change in the Group’s profit after tax (and
retained profits) and other components of
consolidated equity in response to reasonably
possible changes in the foreign exchange rates
to which the Group has significant exposure at
the balance sheet date. The sensitivity analysis
includes balances between Group companies

where the denomination of the balances is in a

(ii) K B S

NREBURAEBBRB (K&
PR B g ) A% i A LA M A
3 HE ft H At AL RS 23 (R R
A ] 57 FOR O B 5 T
T i HEE 3 5 8 i A 4 H
FEAE B S B - A SR
P 5 % ) [H] & o DA AR 7
{7 T RE & W LU AN B W 51
(B> SO 70 M7 60 45 46 1

currency other than the functional currencies of o5 ) [B] 45 i o
the lender or the borrower.
Group A 4R
2008 2007
“EENE —“EFLE
Increase/ Effect Increase/ Effect
(decrease) on profit Effect  (decrease) on profit Effect
in foreign after tax on other  in foreign after tax on other
exchange and retained components exchange and retained components
rates profits of equity rates profits of equity
HEr B R B 5 H BB K Hik 4
Ex LT/ REERA%R HRAR EXER REEAMNEZE  HGHER
(F) BWAMEE B2mER (Fi) WHMZE Breps
HK$°000  HKS$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
EWTe ®B¥T BT EWT
Canadian T 10% 2,675 - - - -
dollars (10%) (2,675) - - - -
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(ii) Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the change in foreign exchange
rates had occurred at the balance sheet date and
had been applied to each of the Group entities’
exposure to currency risk for both derivative and
non-derivative financial instruments in existence
at that date, and that all other variables, in

particular interest rates, remain constant.

The stated changes represent management’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes in
foreign exchange rates over the period until the
next annual balance sheet date. In this respect, it
is assumed that the pegged rate between the HK$
and the United States dollar would be materially
unaffected by any changes in movement in value
of the United States dollar against other
currencies. Results of the analysis as presented
in the above table represent an aggregation of
the effects on each of the Group entities’ profit
after tax and equity measured in the respective
functional currencies, translated into HK$ at the
exchange rate ruling at the balance sheet date
for presentation purposes. The analysis is

performed on the same basis for 2007.

(ii) MBS (H)

BHURREE 73 W 75 R % e A
HOoRHRERELE W
JRE YT AR 4 B 452 =) TR
PEIE H EAFAE AT AE )
JE AT A 4 R A
B - EL B A HL At 8 8 (L

T2 R ) AR AN 5 T e

2z

JE °

ot S Y BB
I AR S B R
R PR e B Pty
A A o LT - C AR R
T B 5 5T 2 T ) g R
R EA % 370 5 HoAh o
W EE B .
K EIW TR T A
A 1 25 22 W LA AS AT B 2h g
B R 0 BRBAR i A S
[ REeas 2 BRIV R(E
3 LA &5 H 28 ] A B
AR T U W o A B 2 AT
e B LA B A9 AR
GE R
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The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising
from equity investments classified as trading securities
(see note 28). Other than unquoted securities held for

strategic purposes, all of these investments are listed.

The Group’s listed investments are listed on the HKEx.
Decisions to buy or sell trading securities are based
on daily monitoring of the performance of individual
securities compared to that of the Index and other
industry indicators, as well as the Group’s liquidity

needs.

All of the Group’s unquoted investments are held for
long term strategic purposes. Their performance is
assessed at least bi-annually against performance of
similar listed entities, based on the limited information
available to the Group, together with an assessment of

their relevance to the Group’s long term strategic plans.
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The following table indicates the approximate change
in the Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits)
and other components of consolidated equity in
response to reasonably possible changes in the relevant
stock market index (for listed investments), the price/
earning ratios of comparable listed companies (for

unquoted investments) to which the Group and the

TREUSAEMERB (KR H
i A A% v M DL B &5 HE 4
b AL B > PR AT B R 2 T
GRS O Ed R E) Al
PO b iy 2 w9 T R O
WEAEMS) G EES)
17 2 AR B R & S B R 45 5 H

Company have significant exposure at the balance sheet N R NN RN 2
date. &) o
Group A 4R
2008 2007
“EENE “ERELE
Increase/ Effect Increase/ Effect
(decrease) on profit Effect  (decrease) on profit Effect
in the after tax on other in the after tax on other

relevant risk and retained components relevant risk and retained components
variable profits of equity variable profits of equity
HBRE  BERRER Bhes  MEER  HEREK )i E
SN/ RERA®  JCRADR BENN REEAE  HLAR
(WD) BAIMGER 0N (WD) BMEBE WY E

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
EWTe ®¥TH BT BWT
Stock market index B L i &
in respect of listed 1 3
investments: (R EiE & 10% 3,765 - 10% 464 -
Hang Seng Index 184 5 & (10%) (3,765) - (10%) (464) -
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The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming
that the reasonably possible changes in the stock
market index or other relevant risk variables had
occurred at the balance sheet date and had been applied
to the exposure to equity price risk in existence at
that date. It is also assumed that the fair values of the
Group’s equity investments would change in
accordance with the historical correlation with the
relevant stock market index or the relevant risk
variables, that none of the Group’s available-for-sale
investments would be considered impaired as a result
of a reasonably possible decrease in the relevant stock
market index or other relevant risk variables, and that
all other variables remain constant. The stated changes
represent management’s assessment of reasonably
possible changes in the relevant stock market index or
the relevant risk variables over the period until the
next annual balance sheet date. The analysis is

performed on the same basis for 2007.

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair values as at 31
March 2008 and 2007.
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Estimates and judgements used in preparing the financial
statements are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. The Group makes
estimate and assumptions concerning the future. The
resulting accounting estimates may not equal to the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant effect on the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities are discussed below:

The Group tests at least annually whether goodwill
and other assets that have indefinite useful lives have

suffered any impairment.

Other assets are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount of an asset of a cash-
generating unit has been determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations require the use

of estimates.

The value-in-use calculations primarily use cash flow
projections based on five-year financial budgets
approved by management and estimated terminal
values at the end of the five-year period. There are a
number of assumptions and estimates involved for the
presentation of cash flow projections for the period
covered by the approved budget and the estimated
terminal value. Key assumptions include the expected
growth in revenue and operating margin, effective tax
rate, growth rates and selection of discount rates, to
reflect the risks involved and the earnings multiple

that can be realised for the estimated terminal value.
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Management prepared the financial budgets reflecting
actual and prior year performance and market
development expectations. Judgement is required to
determine key assumptions adopted in the cash flow
projections and changes to key assumptions can
significantly affect these cash flow projections and

therefore the results of the impairment reviews.

The directors determine the estimated useful lives and
residual values for its property, plant and equipment.
The directors revise the depreciation charge when
useful lives are different from previously estimates.
Obsolete or non-strategic assets, that have been

abandoned or sold, shall be written off or written down.

The fair value of option granted is measured using
Trinomial model based on various assumptions on
volatility, option life, dividend yield and annual risk-
free interest rate, excluding the impact of any non-
market vesting conditions, which generally represent
the best estimate of the fair values of the share options

at date of grant.
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Oil reserves are key elements in the Group’s investment
decision-making process. They are also an important
element in depletion, deprecation and amortisation
calculation and in testing for impairment. Changes in
proven oil reserves will affect unit-of-production
depreciation charges to profit or loss. Proven reserve
estimates are subject to revision, either upward or
downward, based on new information, such as from
development drilling and production activities or from
changes in economic factors, including product prices,
contract terms or development plans. In general,
changes in the estimation of oil reserves resulting from
new information becoming available from development
and production activities have tended to be the most
significant cause of annual revisions. Changes to the
Group’s estimates of proven reserves, may affect the
amount of depletion, depreciation and amortisation
recorded in the Group’s financial statements for
property, plant and equipment related to oil production
activities. A reduction in proven reserves will increase
depletion, depreciation and amortisation charges
(assuming constant production) of oil properties and

reduce profit.
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As disclosed in note 22(b) and pursuant to the Qiqihar
Contract, the exploitation rights granted by the PRC
Government for the Qiqgihar Contract to Qiqihar Oil
will expire on August 2010. However, under the terms
of Qiqgihar Contract, the jointly operating parties are
responsible for the renewal of the rights. The
management of the Group expects that the rights will
be granted for the extension of at least another 17
years of production period. Up to the date of this
report, the success of the application to extend the
rights has not yet confirmed. If the Group fails in its
application for the extension, the related oil properties,
exploitation rights and related assets existed of
approximately HK$588,694,000 as at 31 March 2008
may be impaired and this would reduce profit.
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Paints, blended

solvents and Property
chemical materials Plastic colorants Service contract investment Crude oil Eliminations Total
ik RAwA
REETER HRAGH LV k] LiES 344 B B it

008 2007 2008 2000 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2000 2008 2007 2008 2007
CERRAE CRTLE CFFAE CRRLE CRRAR CRRLE CRRAF SRTLE CRAE SRTLE CRPAR CTRLE SRR ZTELE
HES000  HKS'000 HK§'000 HKSO00 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS00 HKS'000 HKS'000  HKS000
BT ENTE RETA EWTE RWTL ENTX RETE RN EMTA ERTR BMTRE ENTx RMTR BT

(restated) (restated)
(&) (%51
Segment revenue g 18

Revenue from external customers SN % F i 312,763 296,889 9,663 12846 20,049 - 8,053 - 1,002 - = - 31530 309735
Inter-segment revenue 3 B g = 2,346 o - = - = - = - o (2,346) = -
Other revenue from external customers 14 % F 3l 46 3,446 1,974 127 167 - - 2 - - - o - 3,599 2,141
316,209 301,209 9,790 13,013 20,049 - 8,079 - 1,002 - = (2346) 355129 311876

I I B I I B DI B B T B S S —

Segment results 3 B3 (30323) 22475 (226) §21 30m0 - (1,288) 7Y - T34 23296

I B B S B B B S S —

Unallocated expenses KRR (107,394)  (19,195)
Unallocated income RARMA - 3,101
Interest income FlERA 3998 410
Profit from operations ABER 610,938 7612
Finance cost B A (10,161) (4,639
Profit before income tax ik 15 i 600,777 2973
Income tax Fi 8 528 (133)
Profit for the year AR 601305 2040
—— —

Segment assets AHYEE 316,226 299,000 4448 5500 11,344 - 1874 - 1,798,908 - 2,149,675 304,526
Unallocated corporate assets ARAFAEE 190,550 60576

2,340,225 365,102
—

—
Segment liabilities AEAH nI 50767 M5 16 - 4t - s 7 54513 5255
Unallocated corporate liabilities FARATARE 105967 76,879

260,480 129,431
——— —

Other segment information EoAuen
Capital expenditure BARR X 36,690 28909 ) 27 65 - o - 21955 -
Depreciation and amortisation iR 19 10,134 480 515 97 - 3 - 603 -
Impaiment Wl 26,898 - W - am - = - -

I I I S DI DI D B S ——
No geographical segment analysis is presented as less H 7 R B 5 AR A A 4
than 10% of the Group’s turnover and contribution to o RO A T A R D R
operating profit is attributable to customers located 10% > Iz 0 52 30 M 16 3 8193
outside the PRC. Hr o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and

sale of paints, blended solvents and plastic colorants, trading

of chemical materials, provision of painting service, property

investment and exploitation and sale of crude oil. Revenue

A B2 B E AR o R O
REWH M BREOH BHELT
JERE S i SRR AR S~ W SE B LA K
PR PR K B B JRUi o 8 A 4F B e RR

recognised during the year are as follows: ORI
2008 2007
ZRFNE FFLF
HK$’000 HK$°000
#W T T T
Turnover BEH 351,530 309,735

Other revenue B b ¢ A

Bank interest income SRATFE U A 3,723 410
Other income HAth i A 906 952
Other interest income oA R U A 275 -
Rental income e A 2,269 1,189
Subcontracting income RINON 424 -
7,597 2,551
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W 5 ok WY ik

2008 2007
ZRENE BT LA
HK$°000 HKS$’000
¥ T T
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, W 6 M B Rk A
plant and equipment (IR ETPAY i) 825 (450)
Bad debts recovery Wi [m] S B = 1,000
Bad debts written off S 0 e (1,337) (18)
Exchange (loss)/gain, net BE 58 (B548) /i 35 19 %8 (4,439) 1,569
Fair value adjustment on derivative of AR R ST AE LAWY
convertible bonds /NS [ 5,264 -
Impairment on other intangible assets HAth 48 T2 & ek (5,650) -
Impairment on goodwill R ik (E (20,012) (6)
Impairment on trade and other receivables B 5 S H: th i wie 3 T8 I8 (E (6,057) (446)
Net realised and unrealised (loss)/gain e T EMDE8E &
on derivative financial instruments KEB (B8
Wi 4t & (101,046) 1,631
Net realised and unrealised (loss)/gain on B & &5 77 ) £ %8 B &
trading securities KB (FiH)
I ETREE (6,206) 1,214
Unrealised loss on properties held FAEEEENYEN
for trading A 5 B 4R (870) -
Issue cost on convertible bonds A 4R AR 5 1 AT AR (8,423) -
Others HAth (458) 133
(148,409) 4,627

oyl B R R IRAF] - 2007-08 4F L

115



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W 5 ok WY ik

Profit from operations is stated after charging/(crediting) g PR R, (FEA) A4 IH
the following: 1% 5 1 -

Group
A 4

2008 2007

“RENE FFTLF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BW T HEi e B

Amortisation B &

— exploration and evaluation assets — B B wAL 331 -

— prepaid land lease payments — TE AT 1 b FH B 3KIH 463 723

— investment properties —WEYE 1 1

— intangible assets — WY & = 7,349 -
Auditors’ remuneration A% BT I <

— provision for the year — A A A 1,814 1,352

— overprovision in prior year — A R A - (29)
Cost of inventories (note (a)) 7B EA (5 (a)) 304,900 229,749
Depreciation g

— owned property, plant and equipment —BEWE- WE K 11,975 9,575

— leased property, plant and equipment —HEWE- BE S - 350
Impairment loss on inventories 17 5 1 W81 e 1B 1,536 58
Impairment loss on available-for-sale A B 6 b E Y

financial assets Uk 1 s 18 183 -
Operating lease charges: minimum lease #8218 S KA &

payments

— hire of land and buildings — L M FERSE 2,001 995

— hire of plant and machinery — W M bk 25 AH 4 179 21
Research and development costs (note (b))  WF & A (B 5 (b)) 1,117 368
Staff costs (including directors’ B THA (1% F M E)

emoluments) (note 15) (B 5E15) 99,709 39,164

Note: ff 53 -

(a)  Cost of inventories includes HK$13,946,000 (2007: HK$9,328,000) (a) FrEMAEE R TRUA - 378 K ik 6
relating to staff costs, depreciation and amortisation expenses, B 3~ A0 AH & 3 JE i ¥ 13,946,000
operating lease charges, which amount is also included in the J6 (R F A 15 %9,328,0007T) - 7%
respective total amounts disclosed separately above for each of BRI E AN b SO A J B SO ST Bk
those types of expenses. B IHA SR -

(b)  Research and development costs including HK$709,000 (2007: (b)  WFEERAEEEE WA LS A &I
HK$304,000) relating to staff costs and depreciation, which amount FIE 5 H709,0000T (F T LA
is also included in the respective total amounts disclosed 304,0007C) » @ HEIN T A SO &
respectively above for each of those types of expenses. KB B EE M IE A RN
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 W A MY

10 FINANCE COSTS 10 E AR
2008 2007
ZR®RBANE EFFLF
HK$°000 HKS$’000
W% T M o BT
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts SR AT B EL B S ) B, 2,531 4,610
Interest element on finance leases Fl L A R BB 4 55 29
Interest on convertible bonds A K 75 19 RS 6,987 -
Other interest expenses HoAh )L B S 588 -
10,161 4,639

11 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 11

INCOME STATEMENT

it B3 W A A A il Y i 1 B

(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement (a) ESRERARG B :

represents:

Group
. YL |
2008 2007
“RENE EFFLF
HK$’000 HK$°000
#W T T T
Current tax: AR I
— Hong Kong profits tax — WA 1B - 54
— PRC enterprise income tax — B A 3 BT A5 B 395 56
Deferred taxation relating to BRI IRE 22 LAY A AR I
the origination and reversal of 5 0] A7 B Y 28 2E B TH
temporary differences (note 34) (Bff 5 34) (923) 623
Income tax (credit)/charge R (%) L (528) 733

oo B YR A PR A .
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W 5 ok WY ik

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made
as the Group did not have any assessable profits for
Hong Kong profits tax purposes during the year. Hong
Kong profits tax has been provided at 17.5% on the
estimated assessable profit for the year ended 31 March
2007.

Pursuant to relevant tax rules and regulations in the
PRC, Beijing Arch Technology Co., Limited (“Beijing
Arch”), a subsidiary of the Group, is subject to an
enterprise income tax of 18%. For the year ended 31
March 2007, certain of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries
are subject to an enterprise income tax of 27% on the
estimated assessable profit of the PRC subsidiaries

for that year.

Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law (the
“New Law”) passed by the Tenth National People’s
Congress on 16 March 2007, the new PRC income tax
rates for domestic and foreign enterprises are unified
at 25% effective from 1 January 2008. The enactment
of the New Law is not expected to have any significant
financial effect on the amounts accrued in the
consolidated balance sheet in respect of taxation

payable and deferred taxation.

China Oil Resources Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2007-08
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W 5 ok WY ik

(K %) /S B0 L
Kﬁ%ﬁﬁ‘]@aﬂmﬂﬁ‘]“ﬁﬁﬁﬂu
—F

Reconciliation between tax (credit)/charge and

accounting profit at applicable tax rate:

Group
Y|
2008 2007
“RENE LR LHF
HK$°000 HK$°000
#BWT L T oo
(restated)
(FE )
Profit before income tax %% Fir 75 A B e A 600,777 2,973
Notional tax on profit before B H17.5%
income tax, calculated at 17.5% (ZFEELFE:17.5%)
(2007: 17.5%) wE B R BT 45 BT
i ) 45 FEBLIA 105,136 520
Effect of different taxation rates in At ] ‘725 RE [ K [|] Bl %
other jurisdictions 1 5 4 (2,983) 154
Tax effect of temporary differences A fiff 58 B IRF 2= %A (1)
not recognised T o 2 1,459 (252)
Tax effect of unused tax losses A e w8 R B A B IE s R Y
not recognised T 5 2 19,898 1,133
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses Bl FH % £ 7 ifé 52 Bl T 5 48
not previously recognsied 1) 5 e 2 - (69)
Tax effect on non-taxable income F ZE B A 1) B 5 72 gE. (136,809) (5,034)
Tax effect on non-deductible expenses A A 4118 BH 7 1Y B 75 52 2% 12,771 4,281
Income tax (credit)/charge i8R (JE%) /Sl (528) 733
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The consolidated profit attributable to shareholders of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2008 includes a loss
of approximately HK$177,509,000 (2007: HK$18,598,000)
which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the

Company.

The Board proposed to distribute to the Company’s
shareholders a final dividend for the year ended 31 March
2008 in the form of warrants to be issued on the basis of
one warrant for every twelve existing Company shares held
by the Company’s shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company as at the close of
business on 26 September 2008. Each warrant will entitle
the Company’s shareholders to subscribe for one new
Company share at an initial subscription price of HK$0.5
per Company share in cash, subject to antidilutive
adjustments at any time during a period of twenty four
months commencing from the date of issue of the warrant.
Further details with respect of the warrants issue will be

published in a separate announcement.

Reference is also made to the results announcement of the
Company dated 26 July 2008. The Directors noted that there
were typographical mistakes in the results announcement.
In particular, it was mistakenly stated that the final dividend
in the form of warrants will be issued on the basis of one
warrant for every ten existing Company Shares. The
Directors wish to clarify that the final dividend in the form
of warrants will be issued on the basis of one warrant for
every twelve existing Company Shares. The Directors would
like to apologise for any inconvenience that may have caused

by such typographical mistakes.

China Oil Resources Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2007-08
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AN T A HREN RS F
FINEZH=Z+—HIEFEEHAL
] JBE R A 4 A e ) 0 555 s 1E A0 v
#177,509,0007C ( - FE L4 ik
18,598,0007C) ©

EHEEEER N FT/ER
H 275 H g 2E R [ 45 R R 24 51 A
25 T4 B AR 24w BOR #1504
BRRFA A AR 2 F B B A
AT — 17 0 P MR ) 2 > DLER AT R
Jise e 1 B 2K ) AR 28 R B TR A
B2ORTNFE=ZA=1+—HILFE
(9 AR S B B o o 5 S B o MK
AN T R BE R - 12 4 A 6 I AE 1
JBeAR 2 ) B A7 it 0.5 70 L B 4w
— BEAS 2 E T By o S FT R 3R AT R
JIHE 8 H RS T | T
(19 AF: o] Fg (] A0 b 8 3 o o AR
A AE A7 R IBOHE R Y A R
el s ke

il PE PR A A2 A —EE VB
i VANIE R & U E S AR o G
BEESLEPHBETFRZ® T
LR LA A7 58 O R AR 38 R
W BB L YE S BRS Jy HR gEA t
JBeAR 2% W BLAT Iy A R AT — M B X
HE R o B S VB - DL EE AT AR R b
i B 2R B R 0 1 B R SR e Sy
R A AR L F BLAT By A
11—y AR B HE A - B A B T
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W 5 ok WY ik

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based
on the profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of
the Company of approximately HK$610,535,000
(2007: HK$2,070,000) and the weighted average
number of approximately 1,114,080,000 (2007:
746,035,000) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based
on the profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of
the Company of approximately HK$616,299,000
(2007: HK$2,070,000) and the weighted average
number of approximately 1,198,931,000 (2007:
784,190,000) ordinary shares.

(i)  Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the
Company (diluted)

B B A R AR AR R AN
A 7 B PR A v ) s
610,535,0007C ( —FE L4 i
¥ 2,070,00070 ) K& B ¥ 17
W R BT ¥ A
1,114,080,000/8 ( —F &L 4 :
746,035,000/ ) 7% -

B 8 8 8 0 R AR AR D
WO R ROME AL v A A i N
616,299,0007C (—FE L4 i
¥ 2,070,00070) K 3% %8 B (4 0
T 7 24 #49 1,198,931,000 /%
(= FE L 784,190,000/ )
AR

(1) AR 2 ] 20 i s R A i
GINE 30

2008 2007
CREAE CEFLE
HK$°000 HK$’000
BW T HE S B
Profit attributable to 8 e e SR A T
ordinary shareholders 610,535 2,070
After tax effect of effective T SRT R R O B AR AR
interest on the liability ) B B RIS B B S
component of
convertible bonds 5,764 -
Profit attributable to ordinary W 78 R Jie oA A e )
shareholders (diluted) €: 30 616,299 2,070

oyl B R R IRAF] - 2007-08 4F L

121



122

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S B A A B ik

(ii) Weighted average number of ordinary shares (i) A B B i T 34 S (i
(diluted) )
2008 2007
“REAE  CEELE
No. of shares No. of shares
J& 4y ¥ H J& 3 % H
000 ’000
Tk T &
Weighted average number of & = H =+ — H iy %% ik
ordinary shares at 31 March TInRE - 5 8 1,114,080 746,035
Effect of conversion of A ] 4 I 2R 1Y
convertible bonds (note 33) R (K 5E33) 84,148 -
Effect of deemed issue of PR A A4 A ) B i R
shares under the Company’s w0 AR AT I A 1Y
share option scheme for B (M EE36)
nil consideration (note 36) 703 38,155
Weighted average number of W= =4 — R ik
ordinary shares (diluted) JinRE ST 35 B (4T
at 31 March 1,198,931 784,190
Group
45
2008 2007
ZRFNE FFLF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BW T HEi e B
Salaries, wages and other benefits e L8 R HAAE R 38,465 24,982
Share-based payments DAy A R CIE 60,140 13,584
Contributions to defined contribution E R AR FOR R EE B Y AR
retirement plan 1,104 598
99,709 39,164
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S B A A B ik

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section

TH 3 P < R R A v 4 m R 15

161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as 16115 B & 0 -
follows:
Group
AEM
2008 2007
“EENE —ETLE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement = Employee
Directors’ and benefits scheme share option
fees in kind contributions benefits Total Total
WA Bkt fiE H
HHFWE REWAR ok I HE A it Bt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HKS$’000
BT ®WTx BWTx ®BWTx ®BWTI W T
Executive Directors #17 # %
Mr. Poon Sum i e - 5,761 12 28,589 34,362 8,232
Mr. Wong Kwok  # B R %/
Leung - 520 12 - 532 408
Mr. Poon Wai Kong ¥ f& ] /& = 1,612 12 611 2,235 782
- 7,893 36 29,200 37,129 9,422
Independent o e AT
Non-Executive g
Directors
Mr. Chan Shu Kin  Ffi B B¢ 56 242 - - 405 647 228
Mr. Chan Kam Ching, Bf & 72 %5 £
Paul 242 - - 405 647 228
Mr. Cheung Kwan 5% )9 & &
Hung 242 - - 405 647 228
Non-Executive FHATES
Directors
Mr. Chen Lizhong B 37 i 56 291 - - - 291 646
Ms. Chew Lye Yin i B B & & - - - - - -
1,017 - - 1,215 2,232 1,330
Total At 1,017 7,893 36 30,415 39,361 10,752
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|

16 REMUNERATION FOR DIRECTORS AND 16 EHFEEMHEALHNE ()

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued)
(a) Directors’ remuneration (continued)

None of the directors of the Company waived any
emoluments paid by the Group during the year (2007:
HK$Nil).

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year include two (2007:
three) directors whose emoluments have been reflected
in the analysis presented above. The emoluments

payable to the remaining three (2007: two) individuals

(a)

(b)

A (A)

AR AR ] HE S S R R
WA A T S A Y A AT P <
(ZFFLF ) -

A T:F PR

A JEE oy A A [ 38 I i R ) T
ANLEFEWL (CFT LA
=%) wH M E R B3 2
A 2 M T R W AR A EAS T
Hp =4 (“FFLF MWL)

during the year are as follows: /NG o 1 (1

Group

7 45
2008 2007
“RENE —EFFTLEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
#BW T T T
Salaries and other emoluments S At I 4 6,542 860
Retirement scheme contributions ER N i R 24 24
Share-based payments DA 03 A B RO 30,137 116
36,703 1,000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W 05 W M ek

16 REMUNERATION FOR DIRECTORS AND 16 EHEEHHEALME (FH)
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (continued) b)) hHaEEHAL ()
The emoluments of these individuals fell within the W% O 1 4 JE R DL T A
following bands: & :
Group
Number of individuals
A M
A¥
2008 2007

SRRAE CEFLE

Emolument bands P <5 i [
Nil to HK$1,000,000 % 2 1 1,000,0007C - 2
HK$1,000,000 to HK$2,000,000 7 % 1,000,0007T &

¥ 152,000,0007C 2 -
HK$2,000,000 to HK$3,000,000 5 #2,000,0007T £

it 5 3,000,0007C 1 -

3 2

During the current and prior year, no emoluments were A AS AR B R A AR B A 4R
paid by the Group to any of the above directors or the Nfr 40 iy b 200 AT o] B S A
five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join i N ST ] B 48 > 1F £y
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss IS 2 ] 1) 48 BBl A S Bk
of office. i1
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Group
M
Furniture,
Plant and fixtures and Motor Oil Construction
Buildings machinery equipment vehicles  properties in progress Total
BR-RE
By RERES B A R Ruyx ARIA it
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
WWTT W T EWTx T wWTx BWTrx EWTx
Cost JA
At 1 April 2006  RZEZANE
MA—H 72,323 39,692 31,218 9,840 - 529 153,602
Additions mE 44 7,766 8,381 837 - 12,098 29,126
Disposals & (2,559) (4,038) (9,217) (80) - - (15,894)
Transfers L8 8,086 3,923 - - - (12,009) -
Exchange adjustments [ 5 3 % 648 1 - - - - 649
At31 March 2007 RZFELE
“H=+—H 78,542 47,344 30,382 10,597 - 618 167,483
At 1 April 2007 N_FELE
MA—H 78,542 47,344 30,382 10,597 - 618 167,483
Acquisition through 7 # ¥ %
business & Pl g
combination - 34 54 500 - - 588
Additions nE 11,265 20,178 1,724 1,664 12,486 500 53,817
Disposals & (8,980) - (18) (3,292) - - (12,290)
Transfers L8 618 - - - - (618) -
Exchange adjustments [ 5 3 % 2,348 2,140 973 455 - - 5916
At 31 March 2008 R _ZZN\4
=A=Z+—H 83,793 69,696 39,115 9,924 12,486 500 215,514

China Oil Resources Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2007-08



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S B A A B ik

Group
K%M
Furniture,
Plant and fixtures and Motor Oil Construction
Buildings machinery equipment vehicles  properties in progress Total
BI-%kE
By REERS 3 R Ru¥w ARLIA it
HK$’000  HK$°000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS$’000
BT Tk wWTx MWtk wWTx BBtk BRTx
Accumulated Rl &
depreciation and W fi
impairment
At 1 April 2006  RZFEZANE
MA—H 3,173 13,018 22,517 6,041 - - 44,749
Charge for the year ~ ZAX4F Ji 3 8 2,041 3,764 2,770 1,350 - - 9,925
Written back on 4 IR A
disposals (687) (3,581) 9,217 (79) - - (13,564)
Exchange adjustments [ it 7 & 10 - - - - - 10
At31 March 2007 R =FZELHE
=A=+—H 4,537 13,201 16,070 1,312 - - 41,120
At1 April 2007 REFELE
H—H 4,537 13,201 16,070 1,312 - - 41,120
Charge for the year  ZAX4FJi 3 8 2,112 4,866 3315 1,123 559 - 11,975
Written back on 1 IR 45
disposals - - (1) (2,729) - - (2,730)
Exchange adjustments & 5 5 % 212 765 722 293 34 - 2,026
At 31 March 2008 R -FF N4
ZA=Z+—H 6,861 18,832 20,106 5,999 593 - 52,391
Carrying amount i i ffi
At 31 March 2008 R -FF N4
ZA=Z+—H 76,932 50,864 19,009 3,925 11,893 500 163,123
At31 March 2007 R ZFELE
=A=t—H 74,005 34,143 14,312 3,285 - 618 126,363
At 31 March 2008, the carrying amount of motor vehicles WZEFENAEZN =+ —H AR

held by the Group under finance lease amounted to HK$Nil

(2007: HK$1,888,000).

] R ¢ LB R A Y 9T A R T
“EEFLF M

{8 /% ¥ % % T (

#1,888,0007T) ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group’s buildings at their carrying amounts are analysed AL ] R M S 4R IR T (E 4 b

as follows:

T

Group

4R M
2008 2007
“EENE LR LE
HK$°000 HK$’000
#BW T T

In Hong Kong L 7 Wk
Medium-term leases AT & 415 424
Outside Hong Kong S T 7 W LA S Hl [
Short-term leases M E 47,296 34,139
Medium-term leases AT & 29,221 39,442
76,932 74,005
Group
AL
HK$°000
T T
Cost B AR A
Additions and at 31 March 2008 WERRN EEZNF=H=1T—H 14,504
Accumulated amortisation PR3]
Charge for the year ENCES 331
Exchange adjustments i b, o & 21
At 31 March 2008 RoEENE=ZHAH=1T—H 352
Carrying amount R i
At 31 March 2008 R-ZENE=ZH=+—H 14,152
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Group

A AR
2008 2007
SERAE CFELE
HK$°000 HK$’000
#BW T T T

Cost B AR A
At 1 April W H—H 29,491 32,053
Additions wE 5,393 -
Disposals & - (3,598)
Exchange adjustments Ve 5, 7 B 2,929 1,036
At 31 March W=H=+—H 37,813 29,491
Accumulated amortisation Bl 8 B WA

and impairment
At 1 April wHHA—H 1,201 1,449
Charge for the year A4 JE S8 463 723
Written back on disposals H B I 43 [l - (979)
Exchange adjustments Ve 5, 7 B 116 8
At 31 March W=A=+—H 1,780 1,201
Carrying amount MR i
At 31 March W=H=+—H 36,033 28,290
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The Group’s prepaid land lease payments at their carrying A4 E] ) TE AT 1 AR B R OE $ R
amounts are analysed as follows:— [GRIER I
Group
A4
2008 2007
“EENE —“FXLE
HK$°000 HK$’000

W T oo T oo

In Hong Kong L 7 Wk

Medium-term leases WA 1,285 1,315
Outside Hong Kong 57 7 A s DA A b [

Medium-term leases A 34,748 26,975

36,033 28,290

At 31 March 2008, the Group’s prepaid land lease payments R _FENEZ =+ —H AL
situated in the PRC, with an aggregate carrying value of 1 ﬁ Hh [ Y FE A AR BOE
approximately HK$45,385,000 (2007: HK$41,893,000), AAE %0 7 W5 %45,385,0007T (—
were pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Tiﬁ@ s #41,893,0000T) E1E
Group (note 40). A RS T AEBENBRITE

£ (M 5E40) -
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20 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

20 HEWE

Group
p: i |
2008 2007
“RENE CEFFTLE
HK$°000 HK$’000
#BW T W T T
Cost B AR A
At 1 April and 31 March WA —HEk=H=+—H 27 27
Accumulated amortisation Bl 8 8%
At 1 April wH—H 12 11
Charge for the year ENCES 1 1
At 31 March B=H=+—H 13 12
Carrying amount W i
At 31 March =H=+—H 14 15

At 31 March 2008, the Group’s investment properties are

situated in Hong Kong and held under medium-term leases.

Bfef-

S USRS
VA 258 0 S oL A S > L o A

oyl B R R IRAF] - 2007-08 4F L

131
I



132

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Group
A% 45 M
2008 2007
“RENE EERLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
W T L T T
Cost % N
At 1 April A H—H 10,430 10,424
Additions nE 9,588 6
At 31 March W=H=+—H 20,018 10,430
Accumulated impairment Bl WA
At 1 April wH—H 6 -
Impairment Tk B 20,012 6
At 31 March W=H=+—H 20,018 6
Carrying amount W
At 31 March W=HA=+—H = 10,424

At 31 March 2008, due to changes in market condition, an
impairment loss of approximately HK$20,012,000 was

recognised in profit or loss for the year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W 5 ok WY ik

Group
.|
Customer Exploitation
list rights Total
¥ PAH HEZS ol
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000

it M T e i T e T o

Cost 7S fE
Acquisition through business 7 SE B A D I A
combination and at A TEE AR
31 March 2008 =H=+—H 5,650 1,763,975 1,769,625

Accumulated amortisation and 2 &} # 8 5% Wi

impairment
Amortisation for the year A A E 4 - 7,349 7,349
Impairment (note (a)) BB (B E (a) 5,650 - 5,650
At 31 March 2008 REERNE
=H=+—H 5,650 7,349 12,999
Carrying amount iR i
At 31 March 2008 RERENE
Z=H=+—H - 1,756,626 1,756,626
At 31 March 2008, the Group carried out reviews of AZEENFEZH=+—H>
the recoverable amount of its customer list, having AEEHCma HEF 2
regard to the changes in market conditions, an R[] 45 > 2B R B T DLA AR
impairment loss of approximately HK$5,650,000 was AN A JBE 1Y 48, A T R D6 (L R 18 4
recognised in profit or loss for the year. # %5 5,650,0007T °
Exploitation rights represent the rights for mining and BH PR HE 5 7% v B PR BE VL PR 0
exploitation in the location of Heilongjiang Province KRR f i —F =L
of PRC expiring in 2027. The average remaining N —FEFENEZA =
amortisation period of the exploitation rights is 20 +—H o BR8N
years as at 31 March 2008. SRSy — 4o
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Pursuant to an oil production sharing contract (the
“Qiqihar Contract”) entered on 16 April 2007 between
the Group and a PRC incorporated oil exploitation
and sales company 7 2 W5 7 il FH BH %% £ 5 40 2 W)
(“Qiqgihar Oil”) to develop and produce crude oil in
certain parts of the Fu710 and Meilisi 723 districts in
the Fulaerjiqu Oilfield, Qiqihar City, Heilongjiang
Province, the PRC (the “Joint Development Zone”),
the Group and Qiqihar Oil, the holder of the
exploitation license for the Joint Development Zone,
formed a jointly controlled entity, 7% 75 ¥ 7 17 # L
£ M BH B A BRSEAE 2 | (“FRFF 0R T A i) on 25
May 2007, which the registered capital is
USD®6,450,000. Under the Qiqihar contract, Qiqihar
Oil would provide 5% of the share capital and the
exclusive rights to exploit oil in Joint Development
Zone to 7575 W5 W A1 90 for 20 years from 2007 to
2027. In return Qiqihar Oil collects a 5% of the total
oil revenue to be generated from the Joint Development
Zone. The Group is responsible for 95% of the
registered capital amounting to USD6,130,000. The
Group is responsible for contributing all the relevant
capital expenditures for the exploitation business and
to bear all the operating costs involved. In return, the
Group is entitled to share all the profit after the
deduction of 5% of the total oil revenue to Qiqihar
Oil mentioned above.
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W 5 ok WY ik

AN ZREFLFEMH N H AR EE
B 7% 75 0y A I PH BH B SR AR N )
(T 7 0 T 90 FE ) 5 o B e A i o7
(3 i B PR B 8 B A WD) R AL A i
FE o AR ([ /A m ) o
N2 B Hp B 2R BE LA 2R AR A
7 & LA AL A E 71008 & K& i
B W 72305 a2 T 38 4 (1 3 W] B %
[ | ) BHEE K A 7 T T o AR 4 7 7 0
A IR > A% 48 3 B 45 A L [R) BH 2 @
B B 30 IR ) 2 2R 0 AT R R
EAERA —H H R L E
B 7 0 0 T B AL A S B A PR B
RN ([ ARG AT A0 ) - ARG
W A W EE & A £ 6,450,000
TG o MR 45 75 2R 0 T 45 [A) » 5 2R o AT I
MR —FFLFERE F L4
B sy o o s RN RS P B
5% A e i 3 [m] BA % [ BH £8 A i B0
T8 5% RE ) > T 2% 25 W 8 A v HI) T i
i i W e S P e N L ]
5% o AREEEE M EARNS% > S
#06,130,0003 7t - A 4 [ & 5 /% BH
PR BE AL P A5 AH BE & A B S i
JE RV B ) — U 5878 A > i A
42 B A EE A AS 0 R b gl 7R RS A T A
TH T A A7 S AR 2 B 5% 15 1Y T A
o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In accordance with the valuation report issued by LCH
(Asia-Pacific) Surveyors Limited, an independent firm
of professional valuers, the fair value of exploitation
rights is determined with reference to the present value
of expected net cash flows from the oil exploitation
operation. The discount rate applied to cash flow
projections is 17% and the total oil reserves, based on
the new Chinese system (Rule 66) promulgated by the
National Mineral Reserve Committee, amounted to

approximately 20.26 million barrels in February 1994.

The amortisation charge for the year is included in
“administrative expenses” in the consolidated income

statement.

Available-for-sale financial assets are investments in unlisted
equity securities which were stated at cost as they do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and whose

fair value cannot be reliably measured.

R 4% 18 7 S Aok (B Rl A T R B A )
Al A R 2 % B Al (B 05 > BH B
BE Y 28 T T3 2 B8 B IR SE B 7R
WS FEHERMBEEE B4
i T T AT LR 517 % o AR
A B T E e R B 6 AT S
il B (5 66f) whaA - M W i & %
— JLILPY A = )T 49 £520,260,0004 ©

ACAE B B 22 T C R A KRS i
Fh AT BB e

AT A A R b T B R
Fr 1%E - RS TE T BT 4 b SI0 d T
G B A EARER] SEwt &
B A (51 Mz -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W 5 ok WY ik

Company
A
2008 2007
“EFNE CETLF
HK$°000 HK$’000
#BW T T T
Unlisted investments, at cost FE LA HRE s A E 73,772 57,942
Less: impairment loss T B (E s 1R (10,000) (10,000)
63,772 47,942
Amounts due from subsidiaries JFEE Wi o B > ) R T 274,766 142,818
The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest JRE Wiz BT B N T 2R TE A AR g B
free and repayable on demand. B A Fe B R B A o
The following list contains only the particulars of R A R A B )
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets B R B B S A R REAS o
or liabilities of the Group. The class of shares held is Bk o5 A7 w5 B 2 40 > r RE I A 34
ordinary unless otherwise stated. 2y % 2 B o
Particulars
Place of of issued/ Attributable Principal
incorporation/  registered and equity activities and
Name establishment paid up capital interest held place of operation
wk W SE CEAT i K kS
% B % B 5 S8 B A Yy MEAG BB EEEH KRB
DIRECTLY HELD:
B
China Oil Resources British Virgin 100 shares of 100%  Investment holding in
Group Limited Islands US$1 each Hong Kong
(6‘BVI7’)
Tl EREEMARAR  REELHE 100/ 5 Kk (H 100% A FEWERF R EER
13& 7T 19 & 45y
Wing Shing Group BVI 52,000 shares of 100%  Investment holding in
Limited (“WSGL”) US$1 each Hong Kong
KA AT PR 2 ] IR LR 52,000/ % it 1 (H 100%  HA 7 dEfE BB I
(TR AR ) 138 7T 1 i 1y
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W 5 ok WY ik

Particulars
Place of of issued/ Attributable Principal
incorporation/  registered and equity activities and

Name establishment paid up capital interest held place of operation

ol 1 ¥ CEAT ki R kS

% 1 O S S B0 R IBe A Yy ¥ MEABeHE BEBHEREBBE

INDIRECTLY HELD:

1 2 5 17

America Archi Colors BVI 500,000 shares 51%  Investment holding in
Group Limited of US$1 each the PRC
(“America Archi”)

FE R R () W JE IR LREE 500,000/ 15 1% 1 (B 51%  JA Hb B S 480 P
AR A 138 T Y M 13
(T ])

Beijing Arch Technology PRC RMB3,000,000 51%  Provision of painting
Co., Limited service, sale and
(“Beijing Arch”) distribution of paint

products

bt s A S B H 2 A R #3,000,0007C 51%  fRALERRG - 8 E X
AR B R
(MemEi gtz ])

China Oil Resources Hong Kong 1 share of 100%  Inactive
Company Limited HK$1 each

o R AT PR Y 7 v 1B T (i 100% M3

1T i 4y

Dongguan City PRC RMB10,500,000 100%  Manufacture and
Changan Xinyimei sale of lacquer and
Paint Company emulsion paint
Limited (“Xinyimei”) in the PRC

WM REHMERER PR A R #10,500,0007C 100% % v I ik I

ARAR ([HER])

S LB B
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W 5 ok WY ik

Particulars
Place of of issued/ Attributable Principal
incorporation/  registered and equity activities and

Name establishment paid up capital interest held place of operation

ol 1 ¥ CEAT ki R kS

% 1 O S S B0 R IBe A Yy ¥ MEABeHE BEBHEREBBE

INDIRECTLY HELD: (continued)

WA ()

Dongguan Tung Shing PRC HK$54,000,000 100%  Manufacture of paints
Fat Chemical (note (a)) and blended
Company Limited solvents in the PRC
(“Tung Shing Fat”)

WSEH AL T H ik ¥ 54,000,000C 100% 7 v 1B 3t Il i K
ARRA A (THRBE]) (B} 5% (a)) Ry

Easyrich Group Holdings Hong Kong 100 shares of 51%  Investment holding in
Limited (“Easyrich”) HK$1 each Hong Kong

FIREMBERARAR T 100 %5 % 1H {E 51% &R F BUE MR

(TEE ) WM T Y IRy

Go Wealthy Investment Hong Kong 1 share of 100%  Property holding in
Limited HK$1 each Hong Kong

1] & £ G A PR F e 1B T 100% AT s 5 A7 ) 2

W LT Y By

Hai Yue Chemicals Hong Kong 1,000,000 shares of 100%  Investment holding in
Company Limited HKS$1 each Hong Kong
(“Hai Yue”)

R TEBARAR  Fil 1,000,000/ % it [ {8 100% T 7 s 4 35 4% & FE ik

(M2 ]) W LT Y By
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W 5 ok WY ik

Particulars
Place of of issued/ Attributable Principal
incorporation/  registered and equity activities and

Name establishment paid up capital interest held place of operation

ol 1 ¥ CEAT ki R P #%

% 1 O S S B0 R IBe A Yy ¥ MEABeHE BEBHEREBBE

INDIRECTLY HELD: (continued)

WA ()

Honour Bright BVI 1 share of 100%  Investment holding in
Investments Limited US$1 each Hong Kong
(“Honour Bright”)

SR B E A R BB LREE URMEEIET 100% i s 18 3 8 1 Ak
(T4 ]) ¥ e 3

Northeast Oil (China) Hong Kong 10,000 shares of 51%  Investment holding in
Development HKS$1 each Hong Kong
Company Limited
(“Northeast Oil”)

WAL (h ) %R i 10,0005 %5 Fit T (L 51% T 7 o S B0 E PR
AR W LT Y By
(T3RAL A )

Win Profit (Asia Pacific)y = Hong Kong 100 shares of 100%  Investment holding in
Company Limited HKS$1 each Hong Kong
(“Win Profit”)

KA (5K) ARAR F# 100 %5 % 1H {H 100% i A s 18 3 8 E 1 Ak

([KAEH ) WM LT Y IRy

Wing Shing Chemical Hong Kong 3,000,000 shares of 100%  Sale of paints,
Company Limited HKS$1 each lacquer, enamel and
(“Wing Shing polyurethane in
Chemical”) Hong Kong

K IEAL T A7 BR 2 ] A i 3,000,000 45 B T8 (i 100% 7 7 itk 845 I i~ 3

(K BAE T 1) W LT Y By REWR NP R R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S B A A B ik

Particulars
Place of of issued/ Attributable Principal
incorporation/  registered and equity activities and

Name establishment paid up capital interest held place of operation

wk W SE CEAT i % kS

% B % B 5 S8 B A Yy kA MEAG BB EEEH KRB

INDIRECTLY HELD: (continued)

W4 (4)

Wing Shing Chemical Macau MOP500,000 100%  Sale of paints and
Macao Commercial blended solvents in
Offshore Company Macau
Limited

K AL T i R L 1 [ % 500,0007T 100%  JA 81 865 I S
7 26 R B AR 2 A 1R G v il

Wing Shing Colours Hong Kong 100,000 shares of 100%  Manufacture and
Limited HKS$1 each sale of plastic

colorants in the PRC

AR BCERAT BR 2 ] i 100,000 /8 % i T {0 100%  Ji B i K

S 17T 0 % 5 & B RE O )

Zhongshan Wing Shing PRC RMB51,964,200 100%  Manufacture and sale
Chemical Co Ltd (note (b)) of emulsion paint
(“Zhongshan in the PRC
Wing Shing”)

Ho i K AL TARA R A R 51,964,200 7T 100% 7 P B S5 e
(T ) (Bt &E (b)) 8 AL B3

A6 5T & NE A B3 PRC RMB3,000,000 51%  Inactive
AR A

Y A B 3,000,0007C 51% MWE¥E
WEE ERE M Ay PRC RMB 1,000,000 100%  Manufacture of
IR %5 A1 BR 2 7] Nano oil solvents in
the PRC
g A B #1,000,0007C 100% i b B 7 ok
0 ot 71
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W 5 ok WY ik

Particulars

Place of of issued/ Attributable Principal

incorporation/  registered and equity activities and
Name establishment paid up capital interest held place of operation

wk W SE CEAT i % kS
% B % B 5 S8 B A Yy kA MEAG BB EEEH KRB
INDIRECTLY HELD: (continued)
W4 (4)
PP W T AL B #F PRC USD6,450,000 48.45%  Exploitation and sale

AR EALA A (note (c)) of crude oil in
the PRC
i [ 6,450,000 T 48.45% i v B B 4R K
(B 5T (c)) 5 8 J5L

Notes: B 5
(a) On 3 November 2007, Tung Shing Fat’s registered capital was (a) W oEELEL—HA=ZH> KREH

(b)

(©)

increased to HK$54,000,000 by the additional paid-in capital of
HK$12,000,000. The amount was fully paid by Wing Shing
Chemical. Upon the capital injection, the Group indirectly holds

the entire equity interest in Tung Shing Fat.

On 14 March 2008, registered capital of #7111 /K i was increased
to RMB51,964,200 by the addition of RMB30,000,000. Up to 31
March 2008, Win Profit had injected RMB15,324,970 and the
remaining capital of RMB14,675,030 will be paid-in before 13
March 2010.

This entity is accounted for as subsidiary by virtue of the Group’s

control over the entity.

The above table lists the companies of the Group which, in

the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results

for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets

of the Group. To give details of other companies of the

Grou

p would, in the opinion of the directors, result in

particulars of excessive length.

(b)

©)

HMEABHEF MM EBEARBE
12,000,0007% > 34 Jin % # ¥ 54,000,000
JG o A7 B B TE A B gk AL T3 A e iR
T 5 A SR T R A R R A
JE i -

R REFENAEZH I H kR
B oGk M OB A E B M AN R W
30,000,0007C - ¥ m £ A R ¥
51,964,2007C B & ~EENE=H =
T —H kKB AMEEAANRFE
15,324,97070 > 1fi i N & A& AN R ¥
14,675,030 0% —F —FFE=H + =
H R8T

PR A 5 I AT 5% 2 R I 4 o RE S
%2 AR5 AE B A T

bR SN Ly R AR AR
KT B R 28 N A 4 I O
(EEION PR S ) /AT

Ty B AR 4R b 8 R R E

HELRIFBERITE-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W 5 ok WY ik

Group
Y|
2008 2007
“ERNE —EZXLF
HK$’000 HK$°000
#BWT L T
Deposit paid for acquisition of CL AT i B 2 1Y R T 4
a business (note (a)) (B 5% (a)) 13,000 -
Deposit paid for project development and £\ 1 TH H %% J&& K g 1% Bt &
acquisition of a subsidiary (note (b)) 8\ FET 4 (B 5E (b)) = 4,500
13,000 4,500

Notes:

(a)

(b)

On 4 January 2008, the Group entered into a formal agreement
with an independent third party for the developing the oil
exploitation business in the Joint Development Zone of Fu 718 in
Qigqihar City, Heilongjiang Province. The total consideration for
the transaction is HK$130 million. The Group paid for an initial
deposit of HK$13 million in January 2008 and the remaining
balance of HK$117 million is disclosed as a capital commitment
in note 39(a). The relevant agreement has been success fully
completed in July 2008, details of which are disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 16 July 2008.

During the year of 2007, the Group prepaid deposits according to
terms of signed agreements for the development project of oil
exploitation business and an acquisition of a subsidiary in sales

and distribution of paints products business in the PRC.

China Oil Resources Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2007-08

Bt

(a)

(b)

R ENAFE—H M H - A —
208 L5 =0 R R PR RE VL A R
W TR 718 I B St (] BE A LAY B
2B RT oL 1E R - s% T sC ) 1 4R
4B £ 3 ¥ 130,000,000C » A 55 [ £
N FERINFE—H AT e
13,000,0007% » £ & #5 % 117,000,0007C
W B 3E 39(a) B 78 £ ARG o AH B 1)
MO ZFFZNELATERF
BN B R AN A H R R
JNAEEH IS H AR

W TR R AR B AR B A i B R
SEF I RIAH RO — R PR e
S 45 Ko o) 0 U ORLEE A 2E 5 B0 B
o T AR B BRI  n SK TR A £
THiT & e



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 W A MY

26 INVENTORIES 26 iR
Group
AR
2008 2007
“REBNE T LE
HK$’000 HK$’000
¥ T T oo
Paint business R E
Raw materials A 13,623 15,842
Work in progress e /5 4,150 3,753
Finished goods R 3,917 3,620
21,690 23,215
Oil business FaRliE
Consumable store 15 FE 747 -
Crude oil in tank it TE 591 380 -
1,127 -
Properties held for trading FAEEENYE 21,128 -
43,945 23,215

oyl B R R IRAF] - 2007-08 4F L
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W 5 ok WY ik

Group Company
¥ 0| v N
2008 2007 2008 2007

SRENE CTFTLE SRRANE CTTLE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HKS$ 000
WWTL  WMTOL WWTR WM TC

Trade receivables and & 5y e I M

bills receivable A Wi S 4 118,699 110,732 - -
Less: allowance for Bk - R TR 48 A
doubtful debts (Bt 5E (b))
(note (b)) (7,290) (3.720) - -
111,409 107.012 - -
Other receivables, A i Kk JE
prepayments and AT ROE KT 4
deposits (note (d)) (Bt 5% (a)) 54,553 16,533 161 162
165,962 123,545 161 162
All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be JIT A B T B At B A R TE TR B R —
recovered within one year. AF A (] o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W 5 ok WY ik

Included in trade and other receivables are trade oy e KA U R TH B35 %)
receivables and bills receivable (net of allowance for JRE VAT ER T B B S B (1B R
doubtful debts) with the following ageing analysis as HRABEA) - A BRSRIE A 4558 H Y
of the balance sheet date: MRS M -
Group
¥ YL |
2008 2007
“ERNE EZXLF
HK$’000 HK$°000
#BWT L e B
Current E{1R: 52,293 54,351
Less than 1 month past due WA 2 —1E A 19,488 19,428
1 month to 3 months past due mfA—MWA = =MA 21,486 14,447
More than 3 months but less than a1 At — {1 H
1 year past due HAR R —4F 15,966 17,758
Over 1 year past due i 0] A — 4F 2,176 1,028
Amounts past due 1 1 B IH 59,116 52,661
111,409 107,012
Trade receivables and bills receivable are due within & Ty JRE Wk Ve R A 22 4% 8%
30 days to 90 days from the date of billing. Further = HMAEF30H £290H A
details on the Group’s credit policy are set out in note o AL 5 R BUR B — 2
4(a). FEE HOR B EE4(a) ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W 5 ok WY ik

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables and
bills receivable are recorded using an allowance
account unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of
the amount is remote, in which case the impairment
loss is written off against trade receivables and bills

receivable directly.

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts
during the year, including both specific and collective

loss components, is as follows:

B4 5 B SR T R A R 114 9
{6 i 15 DA 484 1R AR HfE i
A5 B R T W e R TE A A
NN UR SRR FECNERE S §
B Ty MBS T B i 5 B

SRR AR A B ) (R
I8 7l B 3t [6] s BB 40 ) 40 R

Group

p: i L |
2008 2007
“EENE _EFXLHF
HK$°000 HK$’000
#BWT L W T
At 1 April wHa—H 3,720 3,274
Impairment loss recognised e it 58 ok (L M 18 3,057 446
Exchange adjustments FE 54, % B 513 -
At 31 March W=H=+—H 7,290 3,720

At 31 March 2008, the Group’s trade receivables and
bills receivable of approximately HK$17,845,000
(2007: HK$22,504,000) were individually determined
to be impaired. The individually impaired receivables
related to customers that were in financial difficulties
and management assessed that only a portion of the

receivables is expected to be recovered.

China Oil Resources Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2007-08

RN oEENE=ZA=+—H>
AN 42 8 4 4k ¥ 17,845,0000C (—
F T AF i %22,504,0000C)
1) & 5 E WSO T I e B2
I 731 2 A L R AE © A Al L K
(L IR WA K T L T S B R 8 1Y
HEAR A ME DS ER
AR 43 M SR I TE AT T ik
[E]o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W 5 ok WY ik

The ageing analysis of trade receivables and bills
receivable that are neither individually nor collectively

considered to be impaired are set out in note 27(a).

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there

was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a
good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality
and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these

balances.

Included in other receivables of the Group is an amount
due to sundry debtors of approximately HK$5,047,000,
out of which HK$3,000,000 was impaired in the year
(2007: HK$N:il).

8y 1 1] 3 (] 24 A8 AL 2
AR 10 5 B WK T R A
A% B BR A 23 AT SRS B 5127 (a)

ENTIE Y] SIS
T 3 30 4. AL B 0 R
HF

78 81 L A 9 (L 1) B WA 0 T
VEZA TS S EN IR
BREOIE L o AR DL AE B
B LT AR AR B 2RO A% 4 & BR T
P& B R RS B R
B 2 T 2 ol ] o A 4R [T
M W 5% S5 A B BF A AT AT 4R A

=]
HH °©

A% A2 (8] At R SR T v B R
A5 M TH AR 3K 40 s %K 5,047,000
JG > H s % 3,000,0000C 2 7
ERE (CFEE L) -

Group
Y|
2008 2007
“ERNE EZXLF
HK$’000 HK$°000
#BWT L e B
Trading securities, listed in Hong Kong A& #s L0 E & & 5 37,652 4,642
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Group
AEH
2008 2007
“EENE e
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
973 1% EE At
Note HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 51 #BW T #BWT L T T BT T
Currency options B A (a) — 12,139 257 -
Forward foreign exchange #& 1 7 ¥ [ >R
rate contracts E 4 (b) = 35 419 318
Interest rate swaps ] 35 4 1Y (c) - 396 - 369
Fuel contracts RN G A (d) 19,210 108,057 - -
Conversion option S, 45 HE AT AR B )
derivative component (e) - 17,717 - -
Total AR 19,210 138,344 676 687
Company
AR
2008 2007
“EENE e
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
973 1% EE At
Note HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
B 5T BW T #BW T T T BT T
Conversion option i, ¥ AT A AR A
derivative component (e) - 17,717 - -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Currency options

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding currency options
at 31 March 2008 are approximately HK$302,137,000 (2007:
HK$966,250,000). The currency options were scheduled to settle
or expire, through October 2009.

Forward foreign exchange rate contracts

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding financial assets
or liabilities of forward foreign exchange rate contracts at 31 March
2008 are HK$Nil (2007: HK$9,750,000) and US$500,000 (2007:
HK$13,914,000) respectively.

The above forward foreign exchange rate contracts were scheduled

to settle or expire, through February and July 2008 respectively.

Interest rate swaps

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding interest rate
swap contracts at 31 March 2008 are approximately HK$25,000,000
(2007: HK$56,301,000).

The interest rate swap contracts were scheduled to settle or expire,
through November 2008.

Fuel contracts

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding fuel contracts at
31 March 2008 are approximately HK$31,301,000 (2007: HK$Nil)
and US$35,000 (2007: US$Nil). The fuel contracts were scheduled
to settle or expire, through May 2009.

Conversion option derivative component

The fair value of the placement rights in respect of convertible
bonds was valued by LCH (Asia-Pacific) Surveyors Limited, an
independent qualified professional valuer not connected with the
Group. The valuation was made by using Binomial Option Pricing

Model. Details of the convertible bonds are set out in note 33.

B R -

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

12 90 Hi

WEEBENEZHA=Z+—H> RI7
BN A A SEHO LB
302,137,0007C ( — & & £ 48« #k W
966,250,0007C) © £ W 1 HE T8 1 € it —
FEILE T AEEFT R

3 390 A W R A 49

R EENAEZAZ+—H > EWA
e W 2R A 1Y) R B 4 L B 1
WA BAGES AN BB T T (ZF
B 4E  #E159,750,00078) K 500,0003
I (ZEF LA W %13,914,00000) ©

b 3l 2 A A0 TE 3R 45 40 A 3 Al —
BENAE T R ZEBENEL A&
= E 3 -

IR FM

Mo EENEZH=Z+—H>REK
FI S A& H 0 B BA S L BT
25,000,0007C ( — & & L 4F : ¥k W
56,301,0007C) ©

A 245 ) 4 M B 2N FEA—
H &5 5 o -

#8 uh 5 &9

WEEENEZA =+ —H o RER
KA A B0 4 S A S BLA B s
31,301,0007C (=& -L4F % 0)
$%35,000%7¢ (= FF L FRIT) °
2R A B R ELE LA
R D

S6 AR HE A AT 4y

T 4 FR A 2 T P T (S ol B AR
AR T SIf 08 I 22 1) 8 7 4 AR BN (E
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VA T A0 R A O A o T IR A
FrwETEHOR M 5533
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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The Group mostly undertakes its transactions in foreign

exchange, interest rate and commodities contracts with its

A £ [ 75 46 K 22 I DT B AR
SRATHEAT A1 HE 52 By LA R AT 57 ) 2 K

bankers. A& e
Group Company
AR A2 H
2008 2007 2008 2007
ZRENE —FLLFE ZRENE —FFLF
HK$’°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
wWTx WB%tTx WBWTLT WB¥T
Cash at banks and on hand B 17 /2 3k X FHH I 4 19,730 31,075 4,997 693
Short-term bank deposits & #f] R 17 17 3Kk 67,604 9,500 67,604 9,500
Cash and cash equivalents & & & ff§ % 1 1) Bl &
in the balance sheet o Bl 45 H B 87,334 40,575 72,601 10,193
Bank overdrafts AT L = (6,363)
Cash and cash equivalents %% & Bl & i & &
in the consolidated 1 B4
cash flow statement B4e%EEE 87,334 34,212

Cash and cash equivalents of approximately HK$6,753,000
(2007: HK$8,572,000) were denominated in RMB and kept
in the PRC. The remittance of these funds out of the PRC
is subject to the foreign exchange control restrictions

imposed by the PRC government.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W 5 ok WY ik

Group Company
A 4R 1 A 2 )
2008 2007 2008 2007

“ERENE ZTT LT ZREFAE STT LR
HK$°000  HK$°000  HK$’000  HKS$’000
wWTL WwWTor #wWTx W To

Trade payables B 5y AT 3K A 21,675 12,799 - -
Bills payable JE A SR 45 - 29,241 - -
Other payables and Aty AT R TE K
accruals JEFHIEH 15,661 12,693 1,840 981
Amount due to a minority M} — % L #
shareholder J SR 3k TH 9,990 - = -
47,326 54,733 1,840 981
All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled JIT A B8 G B At R AT 35 3 TE A —
or recognised as income within one year or are repayable AF TR B S BOHE R 2 O IR B R
on demand. % -
Included in trade and other payables are trade payables and B 5y e HoAh E AT I AL 45 & o) E AT
bills payable with the following ageing analysis as of the T Je ME AT SRR - A BH R I & A
balance sheet date: H Y R 88 2 an -
Group
. Y|
2008 2007
“EENE “EFXLE
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T
Less than 1 month ARE—1fA 10,509 19,356
1 month to 3 months — A Z=1MA 7,906 21,098
More than 3 months but less than 1 year 8 # =il H {H A & —4F 3,260 1,586
21,675 42,040
The amount due to a minority shareholder of a subsidiary JREASH B JBS 2 W] — 24 70 OB AR R I Sy
is unsecured, interest free and has no fixed term of A 41E F7 > S0 B S JHE [ o 2 R o
repayment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W 5 ok WY ik

Group
. Y|
2008 2007
“EENE _EFXLEF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T T
Current liabilities i By £1 05
Bank loans, secured (note (a)) AT E K (5 () 2,472 1,500
Bank loans, unsecured (note (a)) A0 3 ER 4T i% (Bt 5% () = 8,179
Obligations under finance leases (note (b)) il & fll & 7?@7% ( |3ﬁ 7 (b)) - 393
Short-term bank loans, unsecured e 3 H A B ER 1T B 5 = 28,681
Trust receipt loans, unsecured 4 A1C H (5 ST U B 40,821 12,926
Bank overdrafts, unsecured 4B K PR SR 1T 45 S = 6,363
43,293 58,042
Non-current liabilities I i W £1 4%
Bank loan, secured (note (a)) A HCHH R AT B K (Bt 5 (a)) 10,394 10,500
Bank loan, unsecured (note (a)) A0 HE PP SR AT B 3K (B 5T (a) = 3,139
Obligations under finance leases (note (b)) il & fll & 7?@7% Bt 5 (b)) - 483
10,394 14,122
The analysis of the above is as follows: Bl A TR AT IR
— Wholly repayable within five years — JH A B N 7R U R 53,687 72,164
Notes: B 53
(a) At 31 March 2008, the Group’s bank loans are repayable as follows: (a) MI-ZEFZNF=ZA=+—H - A%&H
SRAT BRI IA R 5 ) AE R
Group
A 4R M
2008 2007
ZRRNAE ZRELF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BW T W F T
Within one year — 4R 2,472 9,679
In the second year BER 1,663 2,949
In the third to fifth year BEFHEHAENRN 8,731 10,690
12,866 23,318
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 W A MY

32 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

(continued)

(b) At 31 March 2008, the Group had obligations under finance leases

repayable as follows:

32

AT B J AL AR B (4

b) N_EENFE=ZA=Z+—H > A%£H
R il AR R A U T 5 AR

Group
A 45 1
2008 2007
ZRZN4E ZEE LA
Present Present
value of the Total value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BEAEEM BREASMH SEHASHE RIEKHSEH
BT BW T i aTH W T
Within 1 year —4EN - - 393 428
After 1 year but — R HEWE RN
within 2 years - - 371 404
After 2 years but WEZHEILER
within 5 years - - 112 112
- = 483 516
- - 876 944
I I
Less: total future interest 38 A< 3¢ F & B =7 48 %1
expenses - (68)
Present value of lease & AR BUE
obligations - 876
I I

oyl B R R IRAF] - 2007-08 4F L
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S B A A B ik

On 4 July 2007, the Group issued convertible bonds
denominated in HKS$ of 200,000,000 (the “Bonds”) with
maturity date on 3 July 2012. The bonds bear interest at

0.5% per annum and are unsecured.

The principal terms of the Bonds are as follows:

—  Conversion rights are exercisable at any time between
18 July 2007 to 18 June 2012.

—  The holders of the Bonds are entitled to convert the
Bonds into ordinary shares of the Company at a
conversion price of HK$0.7873 per each ordinary

share.

—  If any of the Bonds have not been converted, they will
be redeemed on the maturity date at 128.33% of the
outstanding principal amount of the Bonds.

—  The Conversion Price of the Bonds will be reset
annually for the first four years if the arithmetic
average of the closing price of the Shares for each
day during the period of 15 consecutive trading days
immediately prior to the relevant reset date was at
least 130%, being 3 July 2008, 3 July 2009, 3 July
2010 and 3 July 2011.

- The Conversion Price cannot be reset below 85% of

the prevailing Conversion Price in any one year.

— The Conversion Price cannot be reset below 70% of
the initial Conversion Price of HK$0.7873 i.e. there is
an absolute floor of HK$0.5511 (as adjusted for

anti-dilution events).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—  On 3 January 2009 (the “First Put Option Date”) and
3 July 2010 (the “Second Put Option Date” and
together with the First Put Option Date, the “Put
Option Dates™), the holder of each Bond will have the
right at such holder’s option to require the Company
to redeem all or some only of the Bonds of such holder
on the relevant Put Option Date at their early
redemption amount plus interest accrued on the
redemption date in prescribed form and in accordance
with the Terms and Conditions (“Put Exercise Notice”)
not earlier than 50 days and not later than 45 days
prior to the relevant Put Option Date. A Put Exercise
Notice, once delivered, shall be irrevocable (any may
not be withdrawn unless the Company consents to such
withdrawal) and the Company shall redeem the Bonds
the subject of Put Exercise Notices delivered as

aforesaid on the relevant Put Option Date.

The Bonds contain two components: liability component
and conversion option derivative component are presented
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
and is measured at fair value with changes in fair value

recognised in profit or loss.

- RIEFFRE-HZH ([
ERBVEHER ) = F—F
FEEH =R (5 R
H9I 1) LR 55— 58l 00
B &8 R 2y [ Rd 0k 9 #E A
W) > B EIRREA O A RER
Rz R A AR A B R
T IHE B AT AR50 H HOA
45 H N> DU E T X Ktk
MR AR S R PR BESR A R A
I 0 SO ) 00 DAL B L )
SR A ) O G RE A
B T B A P A B WA A
N ZR O 80 0 0 47 il 2
FL) o R AT o 2 o — &€
B RIS AT CES (3 AS AT
0] > B IR AR 22 A F] AR D) > A
23w E AR R A % i A R
SRR AT o 208 R A IR R 0 U
H 107 1§ [m] i 5 -

B 7R A0 A TR e AT AR AR
o3 WA R A U AR g R LA P
{6 91 B 1O <5 b B8 52 8 I 4 8 F
(B w8 T 22 ~F- (6 2 B JI) S 48 45 1

N
b
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The effective interest rate of the liability component is
25.55%. The movements of the liability component and

conversion option derivative component of the bonds for

the year is set out below:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W 5 ok WY ik

£ 4 I BE 1 R % £525.55% < 1K
1 21 B0 57 B SO0 AT 2 43 7
4 i 1) 5 B 1

Group and Company

A 4 1 B AR A )
Conversion
option
derivative Liability
component component
SR
5 478 4 1145 5 4
HK$’000 HK$°000
T T T T
Nominal value at the issuance date AT H WA T (E 114,905 85,095
Interest expense S B ¥ - 6,987
Interest paid e A R - (100)
Conversion during the year SN (91,924) (71,881)
Gain arising on changes of fair value N F-(B 5 B A AR Y I AR (5,264) -
At 31 March 2008 hZFEINE
“H=+—H 17,717 20,101
Group
A 4
2008 2007
ZRFNE FFLF
HK$’000 HK$°000
#W T T T
At 1 April A H—H 1,793 1,170
(Credit)/charge to the income statement AU 25 % (FFA) 0Bk
(note 11) (B EE1D) (923) 623
Exchange adjustments i 5, o 94 -
At 31 March Hh=HA=+—H 964 1,793
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W 5 ok WY ik

&=t
[
piy

B A Hran

Analysis of deferred tax liabilities is as follows:

Group
AEM
Accelerated tax
depreciation Others Total
o B 3 Hfb it
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

“ERERANF CEZETLHE CRFAR CFTLF ZERIAE STTLF
HK$°000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$000
wW T wWTr  EWTx  EWTx BNt BN

At 1 April A —H 421 421 1,372 749 1,793 1,170
(Credit)/charge M %
to the income (FFA) / = - (923) 623 (923) 623
statement eIl
Exchange HE 56, 77 %
adjustments - - 94 - 94 -
At 31 March W=H=+—H 421 421 543 1372 964 1,793

Deferred tax assets are not recognised for temporary FH 7 0 30 i 0 TR R A R U
differences and tax losses carried forward due to the HI T 7 A= B AR B BB A 45 - i
uncertainty of the related tax benefit being realised IR SOE ol T T NI A L I 2
through future taxable profits. The tax effect on J &5 v 1) 0 T Ml 4E TR o 1 —
temporary differences and unrecognised tax losses was FEENFE=H=Z+—H>
approximately HK$20,337,000 (2007: HK$1,502,000) 75 R K Tl R T e 18 1) B I
as at 31 March 2008. S BEH Ty i 1020,337,0000T (—

TR LA {1 1,502,0007T) ©
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(i) Authorised and issued share capital

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W 5 ok WY ik

(i) PR O FEA A

Company
AR
2008 2007
“ERNE “ERLAF
No. of No. of
shares HK$°000 shares HK$’000
JB £ % H W T JBe 4 % H wW T
Authorised iy
Ordinary shares of g I T (o
HK$0.01 each 0.017T ) 35 48 A% 2,000,000 20,000 2,000,000 20,000
Ordinary shares, CEiT R
issued and fully paid SR EE R
At 1 April WA 872,656 8,727 611,136 6.111
Subscription of shares &0 i A% i - - 153,000 1,530
Shares issued under R 455 T
share option scheme At BT A 77,440 775 108,520 1,086
Share issued on exercise A7 f1 50 M
of warrants 2% 17 B A 76,926 769 - -
Conversion of b4 T e 5 2
convertible bonds 203,226 2,032 - -
Shares issued for 25 4 1
business combination AT A 64,907 649 - -
At 31 March REA=+—H 1,295,155 12,952 872,656 8.727
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to o R N A RECROR

receive dividends as declared from time to time

and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings

of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally

with regard to the Company’s residual assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W 5 ok WY ik

(ii) Increase in authorised share capital

(iii)

By an ordinary resolution passed at the annual

general meeting held on 5 May 2008, the

company’s authorised ordinary share capital was
increased to HK$80,000,000 by the creation of
an additional 6,000,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each, ranking pari passu with the

existing ordinary shares of the Company in all

(ii)

9 I 35 & JE AR

RIFIR —FEFENFEHA A
H 847 09 i s 4F K & b
A A A — JE R
AN B 3 A AN i
i 357 14 6,000,000,000 B 45
% T (B 35 5 0.01 70 1Y 3 48
Ji& » 14 Jin %2 5 %5 80,000,000

respects. TG > A B R A R B A
) LA 2 R & D T =
A 7] 45 HEF o
Terms of unexpired and unexercised share (iii) R EFSH - K 20 % A A7
options at balance sheet date 1 i B B 1 B 2K
Exercise 2008 2007
Exercise period price Number Number
“RENE ZERRLAF
179 70 #UH HH
24 November 2003 to ~ —FZF =4 +—HZ+UH %
23 November 2008 —“EFENE+—-AZ+=H 0.301 1,000,000 4,500,000
13 August 2004 to “EERNEANATEZHE
12 August 2014 “EF—-MENANA+TZH 0.290 100,000 3,100,000
14 September 2007 to - EFZLFJLA+MH &
13 September 2009 “EENFENLAT=H 1.080 48,000,000 -
14 September 2007 to  ~EFE-LHERHA TN H &
13 September 2009 “EEZNLFENA+T =R 1.080 2,040,000 -
19 November 2007 to _EFEFELtHE+—H+LHEZE
18 November 2008 ZEENFE+F—H+NH 1.180 37,000,000 -
3 April 2006 to “EEANFEIAZAE
2 April 2008 “EFENENAZH 0.197 - 11,000,000
18 April 2006 to TERRNENA TN E
17 April 2008 “EFENENA+LA 0.232 - 1,080,000
26 April 2006 to TEENENAZTAAEE
25 April 2007 “EEFELFENA A AH 0.275 - 2,000,000
5 June 2006 to CEENEASALHAE
4 June 2009 “EENESAMA 0.197 - 18,000,000
21 September 2006 to  —FEXRFENLH Z+—H=E
20 September 2007 “EFLFENAZTH 0.580 = 2,100,000
9 March 2007 to “EEZELEZANLHE
8 March 2008 “EZENFE=H/)NH 0.510 — 10,000,000
88,140,000 51,780,000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W 5 ok WY ik

(iii) Terms of unexpired and unexercised share (iii) 453 H - K 2V ) % £ A7
options at balance sheet date (continued) 1% Jif§ JBE HE 1) 0 5 (4E)
Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for g 1y i e HEE WK 0 A
one ordinary share in the Company. F 58 W A A — i

JiZ o

(i) Share premium (i) MR
The application of the share premium account is JB A7 v 158 R 114 98 ) 2 A
governed by the Company’s articles of association ) 1Y 4 Ak R A R K B 2
and the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, BES A ANERLE > E
which provides that the share premium account S A5 v A W WT P A 1) i
may be applied in making distributions or paying AR 43 IR 832 AT B
dividends to members, provided that immediately P T B B 45 S A 00 R B
following the date on which distribution or SHEH A& A R e A
dividend is proposed to be paid, the Company A H A SES R P A GRS
will be able to pay its debts as they fall due in ) 30 I 18 6 o 1B M0 Yas 1 IR
the ordinary course of business. The share AT AEEAT SR SL I 7 a8
premium may also be distributed in the form of Ko

fully paid bonus shares.

(ii) Merger reserve (ii) 7 OF bk fif

The Group’s merger reserve represents the A B8 [ Y 5 17 £ A4 1 AR 5
difference between the aggregate of the nominal PREEELAE _FET F
value of the share capital of the subsidiaries T Z AN H 58 R Tk
acquired pursuant to the Group reorganisation i T Jo85 2 ) 1 Je A A T
completed on 26 October 2002 over the nominal BRLAC N ) Jy R BUCA B A
value of the share capital of the Company issued TEE 47 1Y e A T E 2 [H] 1Y
in exchange there for. o
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(iii) Exchange reserve

(iv)

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations
as well as the effective portion of any foreign
exchange differences arising from hedges of the
net investment in these foreign operations. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the

accounting policies set out in note 3(t).

Share option reserve

The share option reserve represents the fair value
of the actual or estimated number of unexercised
share options granted to employees of the
Company recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for share-based

payments in note 3(u)(iii).

At 31 March 2008, the aggregate amount of reserves

available for distribution to shareholders of the Company,
was HK$690,043,000 (2007: HK$66,268,000).

(iii) WE 5 1k fiF

e 52, {60 435 ¥ 53 ¥t 0 3
WS R R W A T A
REE 58, 25 B K 34 I 5% 55 i Ah
SEVS PG TR N E R AT
o] REE 5, 25 %E 1Y) B R 43 o
% fofh A e BB 5E 30 T #
& 51 BUK i B o

(iv) Jik IR B fis fi

W 1 HE falt Af T8 AR R B 5
3(u)(iii) T 7t 5k DAy =2
5 B BCIE PR AR 0 R
o HERR 1 AL A F] R B %
BT 0 A AT 60 1 A
Bl il wHBCE B A TE -

AEENAEZAZ+—H
A0 YR T AR 4 R R BRI it A 4R
#H B #5690,043,0000T (L F
LA i %66,268,00000) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W 5 ok WY ik

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing

access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher shareholder returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and
makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of

changes in economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors
its capital structure on the basis of a net debt-to-
adjusted capital ratio. For this purpose the Group
defines net debt as total debt (which includes bank
and other borrowings, trade and other payables) plus
unaccrued proposed dividends, less cash and cash
equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises all components
of equity, other than amounts recognised in equity
relating to cash flow hedges, less unaccrued proposed
dividends.

During 2008, the Group’s strategy, which was
unchanged from 2007, was to maintain the net
debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at the lower end of the
range 1.1 to 9.9. In order to maintain or adjust the
ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, issue new shares, return capital
to shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell assets

to reduce debt.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W 5 ok WY ik

7%“'

The net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at 31 March 2008 TEENFER EFEELFEZ

and 2007 was as follows: A=+ —H o 55 5 5 5 KR
BOGEARRT
Group Company
AEH YA
2008 2007 2008 2007
“EENE ZFTLE O ZEEANE ZFTLE
Note HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000

bt EWTr  EWTT #WTX  EWTE

Current liabilities: L
Trade and other payables & 5 & H b € 3R 47,326 54,733 1,840 981
Bank and other borrowings  $RAT J HAth {8 & 43,293 58,042 - -
90,619 112,775 1,840 981

Non-current liabilities: Fe 0 o £ 4%
Bank and other borrowings 17 & HAth fif 10,394 14,122 - -
Total debt fEH M 101,013 126,897 - -
Less: Cash and BoREREE

cash equivalents HHEH (87,334) (40,575) (72,601) (10,193)
Net debt 15 55 5 13,679 86,322 NAAREM  NAKEA
Total equity B 2 U
Capital Bt Ak 12,952 8,727 12,952 8,727

Net debt-to-adjusted 5 0 0 1 A

capital ratio BHEARE 1.1 99 NAAEM NAREM
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are AR ) S OH: B RS A w) — MR A
subject to externally imposed capital requirements. 5 AMINE A HR E BT AR BR o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W 5 ok WY ik

On 11 November 2002, warrants to subscribe for a
total of 77,714,281 shares of the Company at
subscription price of HK$0.70 per share (subject to
adjustment) before 31st October 2007 were issued to
the Company’s shareholders at nil consideration.
76,926,085 warrants have been exercised during the

year. The warrants were expired on 31 October 2007.

On 1 January 2008, the Company entered into the
warrant placing agreement with the placing agent
pursuant to which the placing agent agreed to place
warrants attaching the rights to subscribe for
200,000,000 shares on the basis of the initial exercise
price of HK$1 per warrant share, on behalf of the
Company, to placees who are independent of the
Company and its connected persons, at the issue price
of HK$0.01 per warrant. No warrants have been

exercised since the date of issue.

During the year ended 31 March 2008, no new shares

were issued on exercise of the warrants.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W 5 ok WY ik

Under a share option scheme approved and adopted
by the shareholders on 21 October 2002 (the “Share
Option Scheme”), the directors of the Company may,
at their discretion, invite full-time employees including
executive directors to take up options to subscribe for
shares in the Company representing up to a maximum
of 10% of the shares in issue from time to time
(excluding shares issued on exercise of options under

the share option scheme).

The terms and conditions of the grant that existed
during the year are as follows, whereby all options
are settled by physical delivery of shares:

WFER —FEF+H +—
H H B SRtk v S £R 40 1 1% % e
Fh#) (THERHERT 8] ]) > AT
EHRIME B 2WESR (8
FEAATHE ) BRI DIR
WA A B 2 EE AN IRF BT
B3 10% (A B 55 47 o 1% B 4 5t
BTN 0 B R RE R R AT 09 i
) WAL | A o

A AR IR A R R A
(T A7 B IO RE 3 € oy BB 22 )
fie oy 19 77 A ) A h

Number of Contractual

Share options Vesting condition life of option

B RES H B A il B B 4 29 45 381
Option granted to Directors
87 3% 95 0 Ik It
14 September 2007 50,040,000 N/A 24 months
ZEEEEAA A AN 2448 A
20 April 2007 3,500,000 N/A 12 months
ZEEELFENMAZ+H AN 1218 A
Option granted to employees
878 B I It
3 April 2007 51,000,000 N/A 12 months
“EFFLENA =H A3 1218 A
19 April 2007 2,000,000 N/A 12 months
“EFFLENA+ LA A3 1218 A
21 May 2007 17,000,000 N/A 11 months
“EELFAA T —H A7 1118 H
15 August 2007 4,000,000 N/A 8 months
“EEEFENATHHA A3 815 J1
30 August 2007 1,700,000 N/A 7 months
“EEEFNA=TH A3 78 A
19 November 2007 49,800,000 N/A 12 months
—EFFEE+—HA LA A3 1248 A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W 5 ok WY ik

The number and weighted average exercise price of

share options are as follows:

Jil PSR S ) R R - 3 47
LU

Company
Y AR
2008 2007
ZRFNE “EELE
Weighted Weighted
average average
Number of exercise Number of exercise
share options price share options price
nHEF- 3 JINHE - 2
Jik I8 HE 4 H TR EREHE 1T
HK$ HK$
oW s W
At the beginning )
of the year 51,780,000 0.291 18,500,000 0.296
Granted during the year A 4F 4% H 179,040,000 0.922 147,800,000 0.308
Exercised during the year A 4F N AT i (77,440,000) 0.416 (108,520,000) 0.299
Lapsed during the year & 4F [N %% (65,240,000) 0.766 (6,000,000) 0.580
At the end of the year R4 & 88,140,000 1112 51,780,000 0.291
Exercisable at the end N AR AT
of the year 88,140,000 1.112 51,780,000 0.291

The weighted average closing share price at the date
of exercise for shares options exercised during the
year was HK$0.728 (2007: HK$0.597).

The options outstanding at 31 March 2008 had exercise
price ranging from HK$0.29 to HK$1.118 (2007:
HK$0.29 to HK$0.58) and a weighted average
remaining contractual life of 20 months (2007: 33

months).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted are measured by reference to the fair
value of share options granted. The estimate of the
fair value of the services received is measured based
on a Trinomial Model. The contractual life of the
option is used as an input into this model. Expectations
of early exercise are incorporated into the Trinomial

model.

AR ) Ji e 450 B JoT 48 Al
B 20 ST T 2 B P 452 1 i s e
B9 2~ B R o BT 2 AR 5 1Y
O F-{E 1 Al 7 9 AR 45 = TH A
B 5t & o U AR DL I HE Y 1
H) A AR By A R - = IH S
RN & % 8 4R 54T 6 Y T
#

Fair value of share options and assumptions i JBE BE 1y 2 1A K AR ik
Risk-free
interest rate
(based on
Expected 2 Years
Fair value Share Exercise Expected dividend Exchange
Grant date at grant date price price volatility Option life yield Fund Bills)
36 B ) R
4 (42 Wi 4
A8 BH IS EEEA
#inM BV e 51 iR BUM¥W RBHEAEN J& B % w5
HK$ HK$ HK$
el edia W W
3 April 07 0.1756 0.62 0.63 71.90% 12 monthsf@ H - 3.730%
“ETELENAZH
19 April 07 0.1611 0.61 0.64 70.70% 12 monthsf@ A - 3.860%
“EELENA LA
20 April 07 0.1745 0.64 0.63 70.70% 12 monthsfH - 3.860%
“ELLENAZHA
21 May 07 0.1594 0.66 0.66 66.30% 11 monthsf@ H - 3.950%
“ERLELAZT—H
21 May 07 0.1481 0.66 0.70 66.30% 11 monthsf@ A - 3.950%
“ERLERA -+ —H
15 August 07 0.1861 0.83 0.86 73.80% 8 monthsf# /] - 4.030%
“ETEEANTLA
30 August 07 0.2070 0.89 0.89 75.90% 7 monthsf - 4.010%
—“FEFLFEAA=TH
14 September 07 0.5956 1.28 1.08 74.00% 24 monthsffi /I - 3.830%
“ERLERATIHA
19 November 07 0.3369 1.18 1.18 72.90% 12 monthsfH 1 - 1.880%

SEFLEF AT AR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W 5 ok WY ik

Fair value of share options and assumptions

(continued)

The expected volatility is based on the historic
volatility, adjusted for any expected changes to future
volatility due to publicly available information.
Expected dividend yield are based on historical
dividends. Changes in the subjective input assumptions

could materially affect the fair value estimate.

Share options were granted under a service condition.
This condition has not been taken into account in the
grant date fair value measurement of the services
received. There were no market conditions associated

with the share option granted.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S B A A B ik

2008 2007
ZRENE BT LA
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
R 5E BWT L T T
Profit from operations 28 #2505 | 610,938 7,612
Interest income FE W A (3,998) (410)
Depreciation reE 11,975 9,925
Amortisation 5 5 8,144 724
Impairment loss W H 15 33,438 510
Bad debt written off I S Y 1,337 18
Excess of fair value of net assets . W i 1 & & 19 A T {H
acquired over the cost of R H O — [ R
acquisition of a subsidiary 5 E] A 1 FROH (849,627) -
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, i 8 ¥ 3~ 5 M 55 19
plant and equipment (W 45) /5 18 (825) 450
Unrealised loss on properties Fe A 1E BN
held for trading K 5 B e 15 870 -
Net realised and unrealised B E 75 I O 5 B
loss/(gain) on trading securities A< % B 5 18
(g %5) 1% 6,206 (1,214)
Net realised and unrealised fiAdem T N
gain/(loss) on derivative T 5 B J R 5 B
financial instruments Llﬁz %,/ (E518) 5 101,046 (1,631)
Fair value adjustment on AR B ST AE T REM
derivative of convertible bonds 72 F-{H #7 #& (5,264) -
Share-based payments DL A5y AN Y 3RO 60,140 13,584
Exchange differences, net [ 5, 2= 40 1 A = 1,033
Operating (loss)/profit before BEEEEEHRY
working capital changes % k) (25,620) 30,601
(Increase)/decrease in inventories 17 & (¥4 hm) %k > (20,416) 135
Increase in trade and B oy B o Ath i 3k TH
other receivables Ha (35,712) (43,857)
Increase in trading securities HOE &S (39,216) (4,642)
Increase/(decrease) in derivative  fiT 4= 4 /il T EL. 38 Jin /7
financial instruments (9 ) 360 (719)
Decrease in trade and other payables & 5 J& Al J#E 15 3K (12,155) (1,687)
Net cash outflow from operations 2 %5 i B 4 Jii ) 15 48 (132,759) (20,169)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W 5 ok WY ik

During the year, the Group has recognised non-cash
expense arisen from the grant of share options to
employees approximately HK$60,140,000 (2007:
HK$13,584,000).

During the year, 203,226,214 new ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each were issued to the holders of the
convertible bonds upon conversion of convertible bonds
with nominal value of HK$160,000,000 (note 33).

Part of the consideration for the business combination
that occurred during the year comprised shares. Further

details of the acquisitions are set out in note 38.

In pursuant to the Company’s circular and the
announcement dated 16 February 2007 and 17 April
2007 respectively, the Group had thereafter completed
a business combination by stages of the project of oil
exploitation business according to the stipulated terms
of the acquisition agreements (the “acquisition”)
throughout the year. The total consideration of
HK$50,000,000 was satisfied by the Group in cash of
HK$10,000,000 and new shares in the Company of
60,606,000 at HK$0.66 each.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W 5 ok WY ik

Following the pre-requisite terms of the acquisition
and the announcement of the Company dated 12 June
2007, the Group had completed the acquisition of 51%
equity interests in Northeast Oil, an investment holding
shell company, on 5 February 2007 as its first stage
by securing the ownership of Northeast Oil whereas
Northeast Oil was then required to set up a co-
operative joint venture, namely Qiqgihar Northeast, with
its PRC joint venture partner, Qiqihar Oil, as
mentioned in note 22(b), in Heilongjiang Province of
PRC in order to hold the project development right of
oil exploitation business (“oil exploitation right”) in
compliance with the PRC Laws as the final stage
during the year. According to the PRC laws, the
acquisition of the control over Qiqihar Northeast, of
which held the oil exploitation rights, was effectively
completed on 8 March 2008 when the Group satisfied
its parts of capital injection into Qiqihar Northeast
and then got a voting power of over 50% in this co-

operative joint venture.

AR 48 i i = T ) S PR AR 1 B AR
NFIR ZEELFEANA+H
BRI NEFERN ALER
FE-EETH A H ST R R
A (B E R 223\
519 % HE > b % B SR G A T
B HERY S8 — 20 5 M Rk
R JE AN B 5 22(b) BT 2t B H: rp
B B R N I A R
B0 B FE VLB T — [ & R
AR SIS B
GEGEMSZET YA A b
PREEFS O TE B BHEERE ([l B
PRAE L) T AT DLAF 4 o B
AR BE > & By AR — R B o
MR 45 Hp B > U R A A T
BH PR RE 1 725 785 s T I A 42 il
WE—F R FFNFE=H/NH
B IR 5T B o A 8 I IR > A% 4
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W 5 ok WY ik

The acquisition of this business combination had the JEUCSETS A DF v i i B 3 A R
following effect on the Group’s assets and liabilities: B EE X AR BT
Acquiree’s net assets at the acquisition date T Wi H Bk B 75 g B B R
Acquiree’s
BB 05 i
Carrying Fair
amount value
YR i fFL AR
HK$’000 HK$°000

e R T

Intangible assets* Wy G - 1,763,975
Less: Minority interests WD BB R BE (864,348)
Excess of fair value of net assets E Uk BT E E

acquired over the cost O PR R H i B

of acquisition S AS ) ZOIE (849,627)

Total consideration A 50,000

Satisfied by: AT

Cash Bl 10,000

Issue of shares of the Company A s w] B AT Ay 40,000

50,000

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: U5 [ /2 A& (1% B <5 It o V3 38

Cash consideration paid B AT B 4 AE 10,000
# Recognised based on the professional valuation report on # MR A5 AT B A W B i B R
the oil exploitation rights at the date of acquisition. HE 10 T S Al 7 3 4 TR R
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On 2 April 2007, the Group acquired 51% equity
interests in America Archi, an investment holding

company, which directly owned the entire equity

interests in Beijing Arch, which are engaged in

provision of painting service, sale and distribution of

paints products. The total consideration was
HK$8,000,000 satisfied in cash of HK$5,600,000 and
4,301,332 new shares of the Company at HK$0.558

each.

The acquisition had the following effect on the Group’s

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W 5 ok WY ik

ATERERLAFENA H A%
g S WO E S g
IS E]) 51% M HE © 55 B a0 4 42
AT b o 0 A 2 A T R
7 b 5 A A AR 2E 0 SE S S 1 it
B s DA B 8 5 By 8 R Rt
FE i o A8 AR A8 s 8,000,000
DL 3 4 7 55,600,000 7C M 4% B
Ji W5 % 0.558 7T ¥ 174,301,332
e A s ] B O = AE A e

W S = TECE AR SR B E I

assets and liabilities: ES 2 J NN
Acquiree’s net assets at the acquisition date TR W I H B NI T 1Y 3 B R
Acquiree’s
1 WO 7
Carrying Fair
amount value
I i A AR
HK$’000 HK$’000
W T T W T T

Property, plant and equipment E SN & ] 588 588
Intangible assets* My EE - 1,000
Inventories ety 437 437
Trade and other receivable B Sy e HoAth B Ui 3Kk TH 7,326 7,326
Cash and cash equivalents Be ke EEE 2,051 2,051
Trade and other payables B Gy e At A B IE (3,538) (3,538)
Income tax payables JRE 4800 T 45 Bt (8 (8
Net identifiable assets ] 6,856 7,856
Less: Minority interests WD BB R B (3,849)
Goodwill [EE 3,993
Total consideration R E 8,000
Satisfied by: T AT A

Cash W4 5,600

Issue of shares of the Company A s w] B AT Ay 2,400

8,000

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: Y I 2 A= () B 4 i 3 13 48

Cash consideration paid B8 4 RE 5,600
Less: Cash and cash equivalents acquired 38 : & i i B &

Bl a5 HHEH (2,051)
3,549
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W 5 ok WY ik

# Recognised based on the professional valuation report on

the customer list at the date of acquisition.

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of America
Archi is attributable to the anticipated profitability of
the distribution of the Group’s products in the new
markets and the anticipated future operating synergies
from the combination.

America Archi contributed approximately
HK$20,049,000 to the Group’s turnover and
approximately HK$2,082,000 to the Group’s profit
before tax, for the period between the date of

acquisition and the balance sheet date.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 April 2007,
total Group turnover for the year would have been
approximately HK$351,530,000, and profit for the year
would have been approximately HK$601,350,000. The
proforma information is for illustrative purposes only
and is not necessarily an indication of the turnover
and results of operations of the Group that actually
would have been achieved had the acquisition been
completed on 1 April 2007, nor is intended to be a
projection of future results.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W 5 ok WY ik

On 1 January 2008, the Group acquired the hardener
business of JIE & 7 B [ fb £ T 2647 FR 2 7] for a cash
consideration of approximately HK$10,245,000.

A EBTNAFE—H—H> A4
] DL B 4 A48 40345 %5 10,245,000
0 YA 36 e 7T gk [ L T2

BR 2> ] 9 B AL 7 S5 o

The acquisition had the following effect on the Group’s

W B o T AR SR Y B E B

assets and liabilities: BB T
Acquiree’s net assets at the acquisition date TR I H B I T 1Y 3 B R
Acquiree’s
1 WO 77
Carrying Fair
amount value
IR i A AR
HK$’000 HK$’000
W T T T T
Intangible assets* WY G E - 4,650
Goodwill [k 5,595
Total consideration B 10,245
Satisfied by: AT
Cash B4 10,245
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: U5 [ /2 A& (1% B <5 It o V3 38
Cash consideration paid oA B 4 UE 10,245
# Recognised based on the professional valuation report on # AR AT BRSO H i & 5 T

the customer list at the date of acquisition.

119 2 2 il (i e 7% R -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W 05 W M ek

38 BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 38 BB (4)
(d) Net cash paid in business combination d) REBHEAPXAHBL T
B
Note HK$’000

Bt & i

Net cash outflows from Wi e B A v Y B O O AR
acquisition of Northeast Oil 38(a) 10,000
Net cash outflows from Wi Heg S (B AR AL Y B 4B O O AR
acquisition of America Archi 38(b) 3,549
Net cash outflows from Wi B S 5 1 B 4 A O AR
acquisition of business 38(c) 10,245
23,794
39 COMMITMENTS 39 TR
(a) Capital commitments (a) BEARKYE
As at 31 March 2008, the Group had capital W oEENF=ZHAH=Z+—H>
expenditure commitments as follows: A B B 1Y) AR B SRS T
Group
YL |
2008 2007
“RFNE EEXLF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BW T BT
Contracted but not provided for T % A H K 1 4
— acquisition in subsidiaries — i g Bt e 2 ) - 6,500
— construction in progress — TR 8,314 5,870
— property, plant and equipment — W2 R B M 2,723 1,790
— acquisition of oil exploitation — WS B A i B R
development project (note 25(a)) R IE H
(Pt 5E25(a)) 117,000 -

128,037 14,160
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W 5 ok WY ik

At 31 March 2008, the Group had future aggregate AERZ)NE=ZH=+—H>
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable A AR B AR 45 A 1Y R ]l A
operating leases in respect of buildings as follows: o RH B 2R R A S AN R B IR
= AR AT
Group
¥ Y|
2008 2007
“EENE _EFXLHE
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT W T T
(Restated)
(K &E5)
Not later than one year NI — 4 3,853 1,829
Later than one year but B — A H A B R LA

not later than five years 6,340 6,076
Later than five years BN LA 25,753 22,771
35,946 30,676
Operating lease payments represents rentals payable K8 T B AT A AR B A O
by the Group for its office properties. Leases are Iy ) FEREAT I A 4 o FHL O

negotiated in a range from 1 year to 50 years. A F 14F 2 S04F HARE 7 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W 5 ok WY ik

At 31 March 2008,

commitments from lessees of rented properties and

the Group had outstanding

machinery under non-cancellable operating leases in

SEENEZA=ZF A
% S AR 0 S T g
L O L 5 0 3 G R R

respect of buildings as follows: FHON B oA (B 2 2R I8 G s
Group
7 4
2008 2007
ZRENE SRR LF
HK$’000 HK$°000
#BW T T
Not later than one year AN —4F 4,183 2,143
Later than one year but B R — AR H A B A AR
not later than five years 5,078 4,049
Later than five years BN L AF 3,670 2,713
12,931 8,905
Operating lease income represents rental receivable £ FH B W F5 A 48 ] it H
by the Group for its properties and machinery. Leases 3 Tt A M i B AH 4 o 1 B :F’
are negotiated for an average term of 6 years. - 34 64F J 1 7 o
As at 31 March 2008, the Group’s banking facilities totaling B EENAEZA =+ —H A%
approximately HK$183,883,000 (2007: HK$196,400,000) 4R AT R iéf HIA LW

were secured by the following:

bl
(i) first legal charges over leasehold land and buildings (1)
held by the Group with a total carrying amount of
approximately HK$45,385,000 (2007: HK$41,893,000);
and
(ii) corporate guarantees given by the Company of (i1)

approximately HK$329,500,000 (2007: HK$186,793,000).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W 5 ok WY ik

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, I 7 J 75 S 3R H A B 0 i B
the Group had the following significant related party O A EEAT B R A B
transactions: BN GHMT
Group
45
2008 2007
CREAE CFFLE
HK$°000 HK$°000

W T T o

Rental expenses paid to SCAE T W i AR 3
Luen Yat Enterprises Company AR A (TH i)
Limited (“Luen Yat™) 1 FH 48 B 32 1,441 996
Rental expenses paid to AT R H A K
Mr. Poon Sau Tin and W AR o AR iy HH 4 BH 52
Mr. Poon Sum 384 384
Mr. Poon Sau Tin has beneficial interests in the 7% H A AN R WA H 4
Company. Mr. Poon Sum is the director and has WE i o W AR A AN R E
beneficial interests in the Company. A7 A AN T A E A RE A
Luen Yat is related to the Group by virtue of the W 75 H S 2 B0 2R 5 AR 7 Wi i
interests of Mr. Poon Sau Tin and Mr. Poon Sum. A ME £ o 5 i B A AR R
A B -
Remuneration for key management personnel of the A5 B E N B A
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s (/6 45 B 5 16(a) i 41 #5 X 1) 7
directors as disclosed in note 16(a), is as follows: AN FERW SR W
2008 2007
“ERRNE EFFLEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
#BWT L R B
Short-term employee benefits i B AE ) 39,325 10,716
Post-employment benefits A 9 15 A ) 36 36
39,361 10752
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” MM ORI A T B TA ]
(see note 15). (R EELS)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W 5 ok WY ik

The Company had contingent liabilities as follows:

AT R SR AR

Company

¥ AR
2008 2007
ZRENE R LF
HK$’000 HK$’000

W T T

Guarantee for banking facilities
of subsidiaries HEE7S

In the opinion of the Directors of the Company, the
fair value of the financial guarantee contracts of the
Company are insignificant at initial recognition and
the Directors consider the possibility of default of the
parties involved is remote, accordingly, no value has

been recognised in the balance sheet.

Due to the underground oil exploitation method
adopted by the Group, the Group has not incurred any
significant expenditure on environmental rehabilitation
since their establishment. There is, however, no
assurance that stringent environmental policies and/or
standards on environmental rehabilitation will not be
implemented by the relevant authorities in the PRC in
the future which require the Group to undertake
environmental measures. The financial position of the
Group may be adversely affected by any environmental
liabilities, which may be imposed under such new

environmental policies and/or standards.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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BAL P 5 e 2 HL At 3 2 45 R A A IR
B EEENFE=ZA =+ — B REE
TAIE R F A

Same as disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements,
the following significant events took place subsequent to
31 March 2008:

On 17 March 2008, the Group formed a PRC joint
venture Company, Shenyang Fushan Oilfield Limited,
which is engaged in nano viscosity depressor business.
Details of which are disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 27 March 2008.

On 6 June 2008, the Company completed an Open
Offer of 647,577,739 offer shares on the basis of one
offer share for every two shares held on the record
date at HK$0.288 per offer share. The purpose of the
Open Offer is to strengthen the Group’s financial
position for future potential investments. The net
proceeds from Open Offer were approximately
HK$180 million. The raised fund with approximately
HK$117 million for the balance payment of the Project
Fu 718 was paid on 15 July 2008 and disclosed in
note 25(a) above. The rest of approximately HK$63
million was used as general working capital of the

Group.
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Al 51 7 15 3K TE IR B A S5 i
180,000,0007T » % & %A 1 4 s
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B 5E 25(a) 3 &% - ik T 40 s ¥
63,000,0007C A 1F A 4 B 1) —
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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44 COMPARATIVE FIGURES 44 B2

As a result of adopting HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: B 40 7 s B S S 4 e I 55 78 [ 4l
Disclosures, and the amendment to HKAS 1, Presentation TE:J&E | HEReS 819
of financial statements: Capital disclosures, certain MBI AR RENER TG
comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with AWEIFE ETHRBFE /AN
changes in disclosures in the current year and to show $ DUSG A A A B Py 5 S TE Y s
separately comparative amounts in respect of items disclosed WA BE RN T EEEE RS
for the first time in 2007. Further details of these WIEE M e 4 dH &3 R &
developments are disclosed in note 2. fb B A B 2 5 o
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
T AF S 5 e %

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
ZEEANE T LF SEREARF ELZHE FENE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T e BT oo T oo T oo
Turnover BEH 351,530 309,735 262,918 284,478 291,598

Profit/(loss) attributable — H %L 15 %
to shareholders / (E#) 610,535 2,070 11,536 (6,584) 15,029

TURNOVER
BEH

(HK’000)
(#¥ETI0)

2007 309,735
2006 262,918
2005 284,478
2004 291,598
1 1 1 1 1 1 J
0 50,000 100,000 150,000 200,000 250000 300,000 350,000

400,000

PROFIT/(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

(HK*000)
(#HToT)

700,000
600,000
500,000
400,000
300,000
200,000
100,000

0

-100,000

JBe 3 HE AN %k ), O 3])
610,535
2,070 11,536 15,029
(6,584)
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

b i VR BRI A E] o 2007-08 4F
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

T A B B B

(HK’000)
(M T 5E)
2,500,000 [ 2,340,225
2,000,000 [
1,500,000 [
1,000,000 [
— 365,102
500,000 274213 246,002 192343
0
(129.431) (143,428) (159,014) (100,448)
500000 — (260,480
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
ZEREN\YE ZEELAE ZERENF “EENF ZERE A
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EW%T L BT T oo T T oo
Total Assets 58 & & 2,340,225 365,102 274,213 246,002 192,343
Total liabilities 42 & f& (260,480) (129,431) (143,428) (159,014) (100,448)
Shareholders’ funds
R & 5 2,079,745 235,671 130,785 86,988 91,895
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